
           
PURSUANT TO A.R.S. §38-431.01, THE GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS WILL HOLD AN OPEN
MEETING IN THE SUPERVISORS’ AUDITORIUM, 1400 EAST ASH STREET, GLOBE, ARIZONA. ONE OR
MORE BOARD MEMBERS MAY PARTICIPATE IN THE MEETING BY TELEPHONE CONFERENCE CALL
OR BY INTERACTIVE TELEVISION VIDEO (ITV). ANY MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC IS WELCOME TO
ATTEND THE MEETING VIA ITV WHICH IS HELD AT 610 E. HIGHWAY 260, BOARD OF
SUPERVISORS’ CONFERENCE ROOM, PAYSON, ARIZONA. THE AGENDA IS AS FOLLOWS:

REGULAR MEETING - TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 17, 2015 - 10:00
A.M.

             
1. CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF

ALLEGIANCE - INVOCATION
 

 

2. PRESENTATIONS:  
 

A.   Presentation of the City of Globe Public Service
Answering Point closure and transition of
dispatch services to the Gila County Sheriff's
Office.  (Debra Williams)

Presented

 

3. PUBLIC HEARINGS:  
 

A.   Information/Discussion/Action for the public
sale of a portion of Canal Street as shown on
Official Map No. 45 and to accept a bid in the
amount of $145.00 from Clyde Elmer for that
portion of Canal Street adjacent to parcel
207-07-028D.  (Steve Sanders)

Sold

 

4. REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:  
 

A.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve
Intergovernmental Agreement No.
C-50-16-008-M-00 between Maricopa County
and Gila County regarding the use of Maricopa
County's Sheriff's Office Basic Training
Academy for the period of June 29, 2015,
through June 30, 2018.  (Mike Johnson)

Approved



 

B.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve
Memorandum of Understanding Agreement
No. 2015-405D-502 between the Governor's
Office of Highway Safety and the Gila County
Sheriff's Office to accept the regional DUI
vehicle that will be utilized by all law
enforcement agencies in Gila County for DUI
enforcement whereby the Sheriff's Office fleet
will be increased by one vehicle to
accommodate the DUI vehicle.  (Johnny
Sanchez)

Approved

 

C.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve
Intergovernmental Agreement No. 041015-1
whereby the Gila County Sheriff's Office shall
continue to provide law enforcement services
to the Town of Star Valley for the period of
July 1, 2015, through June 30, 2016, with
compensation in the amount of $383,273. 
(Adam Shepherd and Jeff Hessenius)

Approved

 

D.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve an
Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No.
ADHS16-110815) between the Arizona
Department of Health Services and Gila
County Health and Emergency Services in the
amount of $95,517 a year to implement a
prescription drug overdose and prevention
program in Gila County for the period of
September 1, 2015, through August 31,
2020.  (Michael O'Driscoll)

Approved

 

E.   Information/Discussion/Action to select the
firm of Election Systems & Software for the
future purchase of voting equipment to be
utilized at vote centers, precinct polling sites,
Gila County Recorder's Office, and Gila County
Elections Department, and further to instruct

Selected



Elections Department, and further to instruct
staff to negotiate the purchase for a not to
exceed amount of $395,000.  (Eric Mariscal)

 

F.   Information/Discussion/Action to accept a
Citizens' Petition in order to begin the process
to abandon a portion of Elaine Way, which is
adjacent to Lot 9 Christopher Creek Haven
Plat Five, an area of Payson.  (Steve Sanders)

Accepted

 

G.   Information/Discussion/Action to accept a
Citizens' Petition in order to begin the process
to abandon a portion of W. Cocopah Lane,
which is adjacent to Lot 14 Geronimo Estates
Unit One, an area of Payson.  (Steve Sanders)

Accepted

 

H.   Information/Discussion/Action
to approve Professional Services Contract No.
041515-7 in order to retain the services of
Steven E. Burk, Attorney, for the period of
July 1, 2015, through June 30, 2016; who
assists the Superior Court in Gila County as a
public defender on an annual basis.  (Kendall
Rhyne and Jeff Hessenius)

Approved

 

I.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve an
Agreement-Economic Development Grant
(Agreement No. 103015-1) between Gila
County and Pinal-Gila Council for Senior
Citizens Area Agency on Aging whereby the
County will disburse up to $21,500; and,
further, the Board determines this is for the
benefit of the public and will improve or
enhance the economic welfare of the
inhabitants of Gila County.  (Don McDaniel)

Approved

 

J.   Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Adopted



J.   Information/Discussion/Action to adopt
Resolution 15-11-02 regarding the 2016
legislative priorities and to authorize the
Chairman's signature on letters to be mailed
to state legislators requesting consideration
and support of legislative priorities which are
outlined in the resolution.  (Don McDaniel)

Adopted

 

5. CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS:  (Any
matter on the Consent Agenda will be
removed from the Consent Agenda and
discussed and voted upon as a regular
agenda item upon the request of any
member of the Board of Supervisors.)

 

 

A.   Approval of an application submitted by the
Gila County Gem & Mineral Society, Inc.
(Society) to waive the rental fees for the use of
the Exhibit Hall at the Fairgrounds for the
Society's annual Gem & Mineral Show to be
held on January 15-17, 2016, and not waive
the security fees.

Approved

 

B.   Approval of an application submitted by the
Gila County Cattle Growers Association
(GCCGA) to waive the rental fees for the use of
the Exhibit Hall at the Fairgrounds for
GCCGA's Holiday Dinner-Dance and Salute to
Ranching to be held on December 5, 2015,
and not waive the security fees.

Approved

 

C.   Acknowledgment of Tom Sexton's resignation
from the Pleasant Valley Fire District Board of
Directors and the appointment of Stan
Marshall to fulfill Mr. Sexton's unexpired term
effective September 16, 2015, through
December 31, 2018.

Acknowledged

 



D.   Approval of Amendment No. 2 to an
Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No.
ADHS14-053062) between the Gila County
Health and Emergency Services Division and
the Arizona Department of Health Services
which amends the price sheets for the Women,
Infants and Children Program and the
Breastfeeding Peer Counseling Program for the
contract period of October 1, 2015, through
September 30, 2016.

Approved

 

E.   Approval of Amendment No. 4 to an
Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No.
ADHS12-010890) between the Health and
Emergency Services Division and the Arizona
Department of Health Services which amends
the price sheet for the Commodity
Supplemental Foods Program and the Senior
Farmers' Market Nutrition Program for the
contract period of October 1, 2015, through
September 30, 2016.

Approved

 

F.   Approval of Amendment No. 1 to Contract No.
01142015 between the Arizona Community
Action Association and Gila County
Community Services Division which provides a
total of $3,965 of additional Southwest Gas
Energy Share funds and extends the contract
date to June 30, 2016.

Approved

 

G.   Approval of a HOME Program Close-Out
Report for Arizona Department of Housing
Owner Occupied Housing Rehabilitation
Contract No. 309-13 which will successfully
end the contract and ensure that Gila County
Housing Services has met all requirements of
said contract.

Approved

 

 



H.   Approval of a Memorandum of Agreement
between Arizona Community Action
Association and Gila County Community
Services to receive a one-time lump sum of
$7,539 to cover the costs incurred by Gila
County Community Services in the operation
of the CAP60 case management software.

Tabled

 

I.   Approval of Amendment No. 6 to a
Weatherization Low-Income Assistance
Agreement (Contract No. SW-ESA-12-2182-02)
between the State of Arizona, Governor's Office
of Energy Policy and the Gila County
Community Services Division to provide up to
$27,150 as a reimbursement ceiling for the
contract period of July 1, 2015, through June
30, 2016, and for other minor contract
revisions.

Approved

 

J.   Approval of Amendment No. 3 to a
Weatherization Low-Income Assistance
Agreement (Contract No. EW-ESA-14-4181-02)
between the State of Arizona, Governor's Office
of Energy Policy and the Gila County
Community Services Division to provide up to
$30,547 as a reimbursement ceiling for the
contract period of July 1, 2015, through June
30, 2016, and for other minor contract
revisions.

Approved

 

K.   Approval of Amendment No. 5 to a
Weatherization Low-Income Assistance
Agreement (Contract No.
LW-ESA-12-2182-02Y4) between the State of
Arizona, Governor's Office of Energy Policy and
the Gila County Community Services Division
to provide up to $89,826 as a reimbursement
ceiling for the contract period of July 1, 2015,
through June 30, 2016, and for other minor

Approved



contract revisions.
 

L.   Approval of the Rental Housing Bridge
Subsidy Program Agreement  - Close-out
Version between Health Choice Integrated
Care, LLC and Gila County dba Gila County
Public Housing Authority, which will allocate
funds in the amount of $27,090 to be used to
help Gila County residents who meet the
program qualifications for the period of
October 1, 2015, through June 30, 2016.

Approved

 

M.   Approval to appoint the following individuals
to the Gila County Board of Health for a term
of office beginning November 17, 2015,
through December 31, 2019:  Lance Porter,
M.D., Linda Scoville, Denise Hansen and Rick
Heron.

Appointed

 

N.   Acknowledgment of the September 2015
monthly activity report submitted by the Globe
Regional Constable's Office.

Acknowledged

 

O.   Acknowledgment of the September 2015
monthly activity report submitted by the
Payson Regional Constable's Office.

Acknowledged

 

P.   Acknowledgment of the September 2015
monthly activity report submitted by the
Payson Regional Justice of the Peace's Office.

Acknowledged

 

Q.   Acknowledgment of the September 2015
monthly activity report submitted by the Clerk
of the Superior Court's Office.

Acknowledged

 

R.   Acknowledgment of the August 2015 monthly Acknowledged



R.   Acknowledgment of the August 2015 monthly
activity report submitted by the Recorder's
Office.

Acknowledged

 

S.   Acknowledgment of the September 2015
monthly activity report submitted by the
Recorder's Office.

Acknowledged

 

T.   Approval of the October 20, 2015, and October
27, 2015, Board of Supervisors' meeting
minutes.

Approved

 

U.   Acknowledgment of the Human Resources
reports for the weeks of October 6, 2015,
October 13, 2015, October 20, 2015, and
October 27, 2015.

Acknowledged

 

V.   Acknowledgment of contracts under $50,000
which have been approved by the County
Manager for the weeks of October 12, 2015,
through October 16, 2015; October 19, 2015,
through October 23, 2015; and, October 26,
2015, through October 30, 2015.

Acknowledged

 

W. Approval of finance
reports/demands/transfers for the weeks of
October 27, 2015, November 3, 2015,
November 10, 2015, and November 17, 2015.

Approved

 

6. CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is
held for public benefit to allow individuals to
address the Board of Supervisors on any issue
within the jurisdiction of the Board of
Supervisors. Board members may not discuss
items that are not specifically identified on the
agenda. Therefore, pursuant to Arizona
Revised Statute §38-431.01(H), at the
conclusion of an open call to the public,

No Comments



individual members of the Board of
Supervisors may respond to criticism made by
those who have addressed the Board, may ask
staff to review a matter or may ask that a
matter be put on a future agenda for further
discussion and decision at a future date.

 

7. At any time during this meeting pursuant to
A.R.S. §38-431.02(K), members of the Board of
Supervisors and the County Manager may
present a brief summary of current events.  No
action may be taken on information presented.

Presented

 

8. EXECUTIVE SESSION ITEMS:  (Should the
Board of Supervisors vote to go into executive
session on any of the items listed below, no
action will be taken by the Board while in
executive session.)

 

 

A.   Information/Discussion/Action to vote to go
into executive session to receive legal advice
from its attorney regarding TX 2013-000185
the SATR Holdings LLC v. Gila County and
consider its position in the lawsuit; and
instruct its attorney how to proceed pursuant
to A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(3)-(4).  If the Board
does go into executive session, the County
Attorney’s Office suggests that after
adjourning from executive session, the Board
vote to instruct the County Attorney’s Office to
proceed as directed in executive session.   (Jeff
Dalton)

Directed
Attorney

 

IF SPECIAL ACCOMMODATIONS ARE NEEDED, PLEASE CONTACT THE RECEPTIONIST AT (928)
425-3231 AS EARLY AS POSSIBLE TO ARRANGE THE ACCOMMODATIONS. FOR TTY, PLEASE DIAL
7-1-1 TO REACH THE ARIZONA RELAY SERVICE AND ASK THE OPERATOR TO CONNECT YOU TO
(928) 425-3231.

THE BOARD MAY VOTE TO HOLD AN EXECUTIVE SESSION FOR THE PURPOSE OF OBTAINING
LEGAL ADVICE FROM THE BOARD’S ATTORNEY ON ANY MATTER LISTED ON THE AGENDA
PURSUANT TO A.R.S. §38-431.03(A)((3)



THE ORDER OR DELETION OF ANY ITEM ON THIS AGENDA IS SUBJECT TO MODIFICATION AT THE
MEETING



   

ARF-3413     Presentation Agenda Item      2. A.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 11/17/2015  

Submitted For: Adam Shepherd, Sheriff 
Submitted By: Sarah White, Chief Administrative Officer, Sheriff's Office
Department: Sheriff's Office

Information
Request/Subject
Presentation of the City of Globe Public Service Answering Point (PSAP) closure
and transition of dispatch services to the Gila County Sheriff's Office.

Background Information
On July 1, 2015, the Gila County Board of Supervisors entered into an
Intergovernmental Agreement with the City of Globe for the Sheriff's Office to
provide dispatch services to the City of Globe Police Department and Fire
Department. Once the Agreement was approved, the Gila County Sheriff's Office
began the process of closing the PSAP that was located at the City of Globe and
transitioned equipment and personnel to the Gila County Sheriff's Office
Communication Center.

Evaluation
N/A

Conclusion
The Gila County Sheriff's Office has completed a progress report to be
presented to the Board of Supervisors of the closure and transition of the PSAP
from the City of Globe to the Gila County Sheriff's Office.

Recommendation
N/A

Suggested Motion
Presentation of the City of Globe Public Service Answering Point closure and
transition of dispatch services to the Gila County Sheriff's Office.  (Debra
Williams)

Attachments
Presentation 



Gila County 911 Administration

Executive Summary: Globe PD PSAP Transition & Closure



What?  PSAP – Public Safety Answering Point

A call center responsible for answering calls to an emergency 

telephone number for police, firefighting, and ambulance 

services and dispatching those services appropriately 24 / 7 / 365.

Each political subdivision within the county that provides emergency 

services may request that a dispatch center be designated a primary PSAP 

if they receive 300 or more emergency calls per month and are able to 

support the technological, site and staffing requirements of 9-1-1 

infrastructure.



Why?  Was this project needed?

The Globe City Council’s decision to close their PSAP served a 

number of goals for the city, including satisfying the Council’s 

Strategic Plan and recent public safety audit. 

The closure would eliminate the need to shift or raise funds to 

upgrade or replace the infrastructure needed to continue 

supporting 9-1-1 dispatching equipment for city emergency 

services.



How?  Find the next best option.

Entering into a dispatching IGA with the Sheriff’s Office fuses 

the City and County’s commitment to providing high quality 

public safety services through regional coordination, use of new 

technologies and enhanced communication with other public 

safety partners.

This fusion offers opportunities to improve interoperability, 

standardize protocols and procedures for training and 

communication between emergency responders.



Who?  Stakeholders and Partners

City of Globe Gila County Partners

City Council

City Manager

Police Chief

Fire Chief

Finance Manager

Board of Supervisors

Sheriff’s Office Administration

911 Dispatch

GIS - 911 Rural Addressing

Finance

AzDPS

CenturyLink

Intrado

Durham Communications

Verizon

T-Mobile

Sprint

AT&T

Stakeholders and Partners came together in July to discuss tasks 

and timelines that were then defined as milestones.



When?  Stakeholders and Partners

� By the end of the project, 12 general milestones were 

identified and tracked.

� 9 milestones (75%) were completed on, or prior to the 

assigned due date, including the Official PSAP Closure.  

� 3 milestones (25%) were administrative in nature and did not 

affect infrastructure changes needed to complete the project.

� Each milestone had a target completion date.



Milestones Completed by Target Date

-8

6

-56

27
29

-4 -3

-24

-7

-4 -3

0

-70

-60

-50

-40

-30

-20

-10

0

10

20

30

40

Letter of Intent to

Close PSAP

Intergovernmental

Agreement

Finalized

Personnel

transition

Inter-agency

Planning Meeting

Set Target Date for

GPD PSAP closure

Engineering and

Costs Plan

Execution of

Engineering Plan

Radio

Programming

Reassignment of

ESNs / MSAG

update

Verify recording on

all channels

Wireless Routing

Changes

Official PSAP

Closure - All Tasks

Complete



Conclusions

As of September 21, the Sheriff’s Office Dispatch - Globe 

provides dispatch services to two (2) law enforcement agencies: 

Gila County and Globe Police Department, and;

three (3) fire departments: Globe Fire (1 station), Tri-City Fire (4 

stations) and Tonto Basin Fire (Roosevelt Sub-Station).



Conclusions

Benefits realized by responders:

� Expanded regional collaboration facilitates a Common 

Operating Picture

� Improved interoperability between response agencies

� Standardized Records Management

Benefits realized by the public:

� Shortened response times

� Enhanced services

� Standardized Records Management



Conclusions

Benefits realized by dispatchers:

� Shift hours reduced from 12 to 10

� Overtime minimized

� Standardized equipment

� Standardized reporting requirements

� Standardized training, protocols and procedures



Conclusions

To further strengthen the partnerships created by this 

consolidation, Sheriff Shepherd has founded a Users Group that 

will bring together representatives from each agency in a 

quarterly meeting where discussions affecting dispatch, patrol, 

policy, procedures, equipment, personnel and inter-agency 

planning and training can take place for continuous improvement 

of emergency services response to our citizens and the general 

public.



Thank You



   
ARF-3392     Public Hearing      3. A.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 11/17/2015  
Submitted For: Steve Sanders, Director 
Submitted By: Shannon Boyer, Executive Administrative Asst., Public

Works Division
Department: Public Works Division

Information
Request/Subject
Public Sale for a portion of Canal Street as shown on Official Map No. 45,
Gila County Records, Gila County, AZ.

Background Information
On November 5, 2013, during a regular meeting of the Board of
Supervisors, the Board gave the approval to begin the process to dispose
of an unnecessary public roadway being a portion of Canal Street. Staff
began the necessary notifications and public postings of the Board’s
decision.

There is one parcel of land that abuts the portion of Canal Street being
abandoned. There is one adjacent landowner whom has been contacted
and given the option that can exercise preference rights before the
proposed date of sale by or appear at the public sale and submit a bid for
that portion of Canal Street adjacent to their property.

Clyde Elmer has submitted a bid in the amount of $145.00 for the portion
of Canal Street adjacent to his property. This bid meets the minimum
requirements established by the current Gila County policy on the
abandonment of roadways in Gila County.

No other bid has been received; however bids may be accepted at the
public sale.

Evaluation
Canal Street was created when Fairmont Acreage Subdivision, Official
Map No. 45 Gila County records  was created in 1915. This portion of
Canal Street was never built and only exists on paper.

Other areas of Canal Street have been abandoned in the past.



The County will benefit from the sale of the road by having the property go
on the County’s tax rolls.

Conclusion
Since this road only exists on paper and has never been constructed, the
abandonment of this portion of Canal Street will not harm the County in
its duty to provide access to residents and the public.

Recommendation
The Public Works Division Director recommends that Gila County accept
the bid from Clyde Elmer.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action for the public sale of a portion of Canal
Street as shown on Official Map No. 45 and to accept a bid in the amount
of $145.00 from Clyde Elmer for that portion of Canal Street adjacent to
parcel 207-07-028D.  (Steve Sanders)

Attachments
Notice of Sale
Elmer Area Map
Public Notice of Sale Acknowledgment 9-8-15











   

ARF-3368     Regular Agenda Item      4. A.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 11/17/2015  

Submitted For: Adam Shepherd, Sheriff 
Submitted By: Sarah White, Chief Administrative Officer, Sheriff's Office
Department: Sheriff's Office
Fiscal Year: 2016 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

June 29, 2015
through June
30, 2018

Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Intergovernmental Agreement No. C-50-16-008-M-00 between Maricopa County and
Gila County regarding Maricopa County Sheriff's Office Basic Training Academy.

Background Information
The Gila County Sheriff's Office (GCSO) does not have its own academy and is required
to train its Deputy Recruits according to the State of Arizona Peace Officers Standards
Training (AZPOST). GCSO contacts agencies as needed throughout the State that
operate Basic Training Academies and requests seats for GCSO Deputy Recruits to
attend. Maricopa County Sheriff's Office (MCSO) Basic Training Academy is one that is
utilized as needed by  GCSO Deputy Recruits when space is available. This
agreement outlines the responsibilities of MCSO and GCSO regarding the use of MCSO
Basic Training Academy.

Evaluation
Maricopa County Sheriff's Office (MCSO) responsibilities: will provide training space,
when available, for GCSO recruit officers to attend scheduled Basic Training
Academies; has sole discretion to decide whether GCSO recruits maintain the
academic standings to continue in the academy; has sole discretion to dismiss any
recruit for training, academic, ethical or disciplinary standards applicable too all police
academy participants; will provide GCSO with training records of each recruit; will
maintain records of lesson plans, class rosters, and other documentation common to
the class as a whole, consistent with the requirements of State law; and, will treat
GCSO recruits in the same manner as MCSO recruits for purposes of training,
academics, ethics and discipline.

Gila County Sheriff's Office (GCSO) responsibilities: agrees to provide instructors or
administrative assistance to the MCSO Academy, upon request; agrees to pay $500 per
registrant; understands and agrees that the curriculum will consist of the standard
MCSO training program, although some facilitation of cross training on GCSO material
may occur, the focus shall be MCSO policies and procedures; and, will provide



statutory worker's compensation insurance, salary, benefits, weapons, ammunitions
and uniforms. 

Conclusion
The Gila County Sheriff's Office utilizes the Maricopa County Sheriff's Office Basic
Training Academy which meets the State of Arizona Peace Officers  Standards Training
(AZPOST) on an as-needed basis to assist in the training of the GCSO Deputy Recruits.

This Intergovernmental Agreement may be renewed for one additional three-year
period upon Board of Supervisors' approval.

Recommendation
It is the recommendation of Sheriff J. Adam Shepherd that the Board of Supervisors
approve Intergovernmental Agreement No. C-50-16008-M-00, between Maricopa
County and Gila County regarding the use of Maricopa County Sheriff's Office Basic
Training Academy beginning June 29, 2015, through June 30 2018.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve Intergovernmental Agreement No.
C-50-16-008-M-00 between Maricopa County and Gila County regarding the use of
Maricopa County's Sheriff's Office Basic Training Academy for the period of June 29,
2015, through June 30, 2018.  (Mike Johnson)

Attachments
Intergovernmental Agreement No. C-50-16-008-M-00













   

ARF-3446     Regular Agenda Item      4. B.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 11/17/2015  

Submitted For: Sarah White, Chief Administrative Officer 
Submitted By: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors
Department: Sheriff's Office
Fiscal Year: 2015-2016 Budgeted?: No

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

Upon Final
Signature on
MOU

Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Memorandum of Understanding Agreement No. 2015-405D-502 between the
Governor's Office of Highway Safety and the Gila County Sheriff's Office for a Regional
DUI (Driving under the Influence) Vehicle.

Background Information
The Governor's Office of Highway Safety has purchased a number of regional DUI
vehicles to be utilized throughout the state. The Sheriff' Office submitted a letter on
August 3, 2015, to be considered for one of the DUI vehicles pending the approval of
the Memorandum of Understanding by the Board of Supervisors.

Evaluation
The acquisition of a regional DUI vehicle would greatly enhance all of the law
enforcement agencies throughout Gila County. The DUI vehicle will come fully
equipped with all of the necessary equipment needed to test and evaluate individuals
suspected of impairment. This vehicle can also be utilized and stationed on scene of a
DUI detail, will be able to respond to events where alcohol is being served, and can be
used as a command center.

Conclusion
The Gila County Sheriff's Office would like to accept a regional DUI vehicle from the
Governor's Office of Highway Safety to be utilized by all law enforcement agencies
throughout Gila County.

Recommendation
It is the recommendation of Sheriff J. Adam Shepherd that the Board of Supervisors



It is the recommendation of Sheriff J. Adam Shepherd that the Board of Supervisors
approve Memorandum of Understanding Agreement No. 2015-405D-502 between the
Governor's Office of Highway Safety and the Gila County Sheriff's Office and accept the
regional DUI vehicle to be utilized by all the law enforcement agencies in Gila County
and to increase the Sheriff's Office fleet by one vehicle to accommodate the addition of
the DUI vehicle.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve Memorandum of Understanding Agreement
No. 2015-405D-502 between the Governor's Office of Highway Safety and the Gila
County Sheriff's Office to accept the regional DUI vehicle that will be utilized by all law
enforcement agencies in Gila County for DUI enforcement whereby the Sheriff's Office
fleet will be increased by one vehicle to accommodate the DUI vehicle.  (Johnny
Sanchez)

Attachments
Memorandum of Understanding 
Request Letter
Letter of Support-GPD
Letter of Support-DPS
Letter of Support-PPD
Letter of Support-TAPD
Letter of Support-HPD
Letter of Support-MPD
DUI Van Information 
Picture No. 1
Picture No. 2
Picture No. 3
County Attorney Memo Re DUI Van













































 

 
 

GILA COUNTY 
ATTORNEY 

Bradley D. 
Beauchamp 

 

 
 

Re: County Attorney’s Office Review of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-

952(D). To whom it may concern: 

The Gila County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Memorandum of Understanding 

(M.O.U.) prepared by the Governor’s Office of Highway Safety wherein a D.U.I. van is 

being offered to Gila County in exchange for its agreement to use it for D.U.I. 

enforcement activities.  The county attorney’s office is of the opinion that the (M .O.U.) is 

an Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) subject to the statutory requirements for IGA’s.  

Under A.R.S. § 11-952(D), the transaction is within the powers and authority granted under 

the laws of the state to the county and the state, however, the IGA not in “proper form.”    

Despite the fact that the IGA is not in “proper form,” the risk of negative 

consequences to the county following entering to the agreement appear to be minimal.   

 
 
 

 
Explanation of the Standard Gila County Attorney’s Office 

Intergovernmental 

Agreement (IGA) 

Review 
 

 
 

A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that: 

 
every agreement or contract involving any public agency or 

public procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, 

shall be submitted to the attorney for each such public agency 



or public procurement unit, who shall determine whether the 

agreement is in proper form and is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public 

agency or public procurement unit. 

 
In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that they are 

in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the contract conforms to 

fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative requirements, and is within the 

powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It does not mean that the County 

Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy objectives contained in the IGA.  That 

approval is solely the province of the public agency through its elected body. 
 

Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly executed.  

Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into the IGA have taken 

legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory requirement for the County Attorney’s 

Office to certify that IGAs are properly executed. 

 
Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is properly 

executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … applicable to the 

governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or extending the duration of the … 

contract shall be necessary before any such agreement, contract or extension may be filed or 

become effective.” This can be done by ensuring that the governing body gives the public 

proper notice of the meeting wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is 

adequately described in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes 

such 

action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 

directed to the County Attorney’s Office. 

 
Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 

“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 

approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 

person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for the 

monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date of payment.” 

 
The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the responsibility to 

read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its obligations under the IGA if 

it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board. This is because while the County 

Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, the office may not have any idea whether 

the public agency has the capacity to actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, 

the County Attorney’s Office does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or 

submitting department will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough 

knowledge of the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance. 

 
Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County Attorney’s 

Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about the contract.  It is the 

responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the IGA for review to ask any 

specific questions or address any concerns it has about the IGA to the County Attorney’s 

Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 

review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office review of 

the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of greatest concern to 

the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the agency does have issues or 



concerns will decrease the ability of the County Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the 

IGA. 



   

ARF-3434     Regular Agenda Item      4. C.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 11/17/2015  

Submitted For: Jeff Hessenius, Finance Director 
Submitted By: Jeannie Sgroi, Contracts Administrator, Finance Division
Department: Finance Division
Fiscal Year: 2015-2016 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

July 1, 2015 to
June 30, 2016

Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Approve Intergovernmental Agreement No. 041015-1-Town of Star Valley-Law
Enforcement Services.

Background Information
At the June 7, 2009 Board of Supervisors' Regular Meeting, the Board of Supervisors
approved entering into an Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) with the Town of Star
Valley, whereby Gila County would provide law enforcement services to the Town.  For
three years prior to this agreement, the Payson Police Department provided law
enforcement services to the Town of Star Valley.

The term of the IGA entered into on June 7, 2009, was for a one-year period, from July
1, 2009 through June 30, 2010, with the option to renew for five successive one-year
periods.  The amount of compensation from the Town of Star Valley for the law
enforcement services provided by Gila County was $383,273 per year.

Evaluation
The term of the IGA was from July 1, 2009 through June 30, 2010, with the option to
renew for five successive one-year periods.  As of June 30, 2015, all renewal periods
have been exhausted.

IGA No. 041015-1 will serve to allow Gila County to continue to provide law
enforcement services to the Town of Star Valley for a period of one year, from July 1,
2015 through June 30, 2016.  Prior to the expiration date of June 30, 2016, all terms
will be reviewed to see if any changes to the IGA are warranted.

The cost of $383,273 to provide this service includes not only the Sheriff's Office actual
costs, but also the cost to the County.  Per the terms of the IGA, payment shall be
made by the Town of Star Valley in two equal installments of $191,636.50, with each
installment due and payable no later than the last day of the second and fourth fiscal
quarters (December and June).  In addition to these costs, the Town of Star Valley
agrees to pay actual costs incurred in response to any single major criminal



investigation or other unforeseen, unplanned event(s) by the Sheriff's Office personnel
in excess of a total initial deployment of 100 man-hours.  Those costs will be billed in
accordance with the rates as listed on the attached Law Enforcement Contract
Proposal Worksheet, and will be due and payable on the next regularly scheduled
bi-quarterly installment payment date.

Conclusion
Gila County and the Town of Star Valley desire to continue the law enforcement
services to the Town of Star Valley, which Gila County has provided for the last six
years.

Recommendation
The Gila County Sheriff's Office and the Finance Division Director recommend approval
of Intergovernmental Agreement No. 041015-1 to enable the Gila County Sheriff's
Office to continue to provide law enforcement services to the Town of Star Valley.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve Intergovernmental Agreement No. 041015-1
whereby the Gila County Sheriff's Office shall continue to provide law enforcement
services to the Town of Star Valley for the period of July 1, 2015, through June 30,
2016, with compensation in the amount of $383,273. 
(Adam Shepherd and Jeff Hessenius)

Attachments
Approved as to Form
Intergovernmental Agreement No. 041015-1-Town of Star Valley
Intergovernmental Agreement-2009-Town of Star Valley



 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D). 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).   

 

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 

Agreement (IGA) Review 
 

 

  A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that  

 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 

procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 

submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 

procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 

proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 

the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 

unit. 

 

 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 

they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 

contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 

requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 

does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 

objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 

agency through its elected body.    



 

 Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 

executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 

the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 

requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 

executed. 

  

 Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 

properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 

applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 

extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 

agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 

by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 

wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 

in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 

action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 

directed to the County Attorney’s Office. 

 

 Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 

“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 

approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 

person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 

the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 

of payment.”  

 

 The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 

responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 

obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  

This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 

the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 

actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 

does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 

will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 

the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance. 

 

 Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 

Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 

the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 

IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 

IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 

review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 

review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 

greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 

agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 

Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.   

 













































   

ARF-3445     Regular Agenda Item      4. D.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 11/17/2015  

Submitted For: Michael O'Driscoll, Director 
Submitted By: Paula Horn, Deputy Director of Health, Health & Emergency Services

Division
Department: Health & Emergency Services Division
Fiscal Year: 2015-2016 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

09/01/15
through
08/31/20

Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Approval of an Intergovernmental Agreement Contract No. ADHS16-110815 with the
Arizona Department of Health Services. 

Background Information
On June 9, 2015, Michael O' Driscoll, Health and Emergency Services Division
Director, requested to apply for a prescription drug overdose prevention grant through
the Arizona Department of Health Services (AZDHS) and Centers for Disease Control
and Prevention (CDC). The Board of Supervisors approved the request to apply for the
funding. 

The CDC did award funding to the AZDHS to provide Gila County Health and
Emergency Services with the funds to implement a prescription drug prevention
program. With this funding, the Gila County Health and Emergency Services Division
will coordinate prevention efforts and work with community stakeholders to reduce
prescription drug misuse and abuse.  

Evaluation
This funding of $95,517 a year to the Gila County Health and Emergency Services
Division will be used to develop and implement best-practice strategies to reduce
prescription drug abuse in Gila County for the period of five years from 2015-2020. 

Conclusion
Approval of the Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No. ADHS16-110815) will
allow the Gila County Health Department to provide a prescription drug overdose
prevention program in Gila County.

Recommendation
It is the recommendation of the Health and Emergency Services Division Director that



It is the recommendation of the Health and Emergency Services Division Director that
the Board of Supervisors approve the Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No.
ADHS16-110815) with the Arizona Department of Health Services in the amount of
$95,517 a year to provide a prescription drug overdose prevention program from
September 1, 2015, through August 31, 2020.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve an Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract
No. ADHS16-110815) between the Arizona Department of Health Services and Gila
County Health and Emergency Services in the amount of $95,517 a year to implement
a prescription drug overdose and prevention program in Gila County for the period of
September 1, 2015, through August 31, 2020.  (Michael O'Driscoll)

Attachments
IGA Contract No. ADHS16-110815
CDC
Presentation
Approved As To Form





Contract Number INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS ADHS16-110815 

 

Page 2 of 19 

 

                                                     

1. Definition of Terms.  As used in this Contract, the terms listed below are defined as follows: 
 

1.1 “Attachment” means any document attached to the Contract and incorporated into the Contract.  
 
1.2 “ADHS” means Arizona Department of Health Services.  

 
1.3 “Budget Term” means the period of time for which the contract budget has been created and during 

which funds should be expended.   
 

1.4 “Change Order” means a written order that is signed by a Procurement Officer and that directs the 
Contractor to make changes authorized by the Uniform Terms and Conditions of the Contract.   

 
1.5 “Contract” means the combination of the Uniform and Special Terms and Conditions, the 

Specifications and Statement or Scope of Work, Attachments, Referenced Documents, any Contract 
Amendments and any terms applied by law.   

 
1.6 “Contract Amendment” means a written document signed by the Procurement Officer and the 

Contractor that is issued for the purpose of making changes in the Contract.   
 

1.7 “Contractor” means any person who has a Contract with the Arizona Department of Health Services.  
 

1.8 “Cost Reimbursement” means a contract under which a contractor is reimbursed for costs, which are 
reasonable, allowable and allocable in accordance with the contract terms and approved by ADHS.  

 
1.9 “Days” means calendar days unless otherwise specified.   

 
1.10 “Fixed Price” establishes a set price per unit of service.  The set price shall be based on costs, which 

are reasonable, allowable and allocable.   
 

1.11 “Gratuity” means a payment, loan, subscription, advance, deposit of money, services, or anything of 
more than nominal value, present or promised, unless consideration of substantially equal or greater 
value is received.   

 
1.12 “Materials” unless otherwise stated herein, means all property, including but not limited to 

equipments, supplies, printing, insurance and leases of property.   
 

1.13 “Procurement Officer” means the person duly authorized by the State to enter into and administer 
Contracts and make written determinations with respect to the Contract.   

 
1.14 “Purchase Order” means a written document that is signed by a Procurement Officer, that requests a 

vendor to deliver described goods or services at a specific price and that, on delivery and acceptance 
of the goods or services by ADHS, becomes an obligation of the State.   

 
1.15 “Services” means the furnishing of labor, time or effort by a Contractor or Subcontractor.   

 
1.16 “Subcontract” means any contract, express or implied, between the Contractor and another party or 

between a subcontractor and another party delegating or assigning, in whole or in part, the making or 
furnishing of any material or any service required for the performance of this Contract.   

 
1.17 “State” means the State of Arizona and/or the ADHS.  For purposes of this Contract, the term “State” 

shall not include the Contractor. 



Contract Number INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS ADHS16-110815 

 

Page 3 of 19 

 

2. Contract Type. 
  
 This Contract shall be:  Fixed Price  
  
3. Contract Interpretation. 
 

3.1 Arizona Law. The law of Arizona applies to this Contract including, where applicable, the Uniform 
Commercial Code as adopted by the State of Arizona. 

 
3.2 Implied Contract Terms.  Each provision of law and any terms required by law to be in this Contract are a 

part of this Contract as if fully stated in it. 
 
3.3 Contract Order of Precedence.  In the event of a conflict in the provisions of the Contract, as accepted by 

the State and as they may be amended, the following shall prevail in the order set forth below: 
 

3.3.1 Terms and Conditions; 
 
3.3.2 Statement or Scope of Work; 
 
3.3.3 Attachments; 
 
3.3.4 Referenced Documents. 

 
3.4 Relationship of Parties.  The Contractor under this Contract is an independent Contractor.  Neither party to 

this Contract shall be deemed to be the employee or agent of the other party to the Contract. 
 
3.5 Severability.  The provisions of this Contract are severable.  Any term or condition deemed illegal or invalid 

shall not affect any other term or condition of the Contract. 
 
3.6 No Parole Evidence.  This Contract is intended by the parties as a final and complete expression of their 

agreement.  No course of prior dealings between the parties and no usage of the trade shall supplement or 
explain any terms used in this document. 

 
3.7 No Waiver.  Either party’s failure to insist on strict performance of any term or condition of the Contract 

shall not be deemed a waiver of that term or condition even if the party accepting or acquiescing in the 
nonconforming performance knows of the nature of the performance and fails to object to it. 

 
3.8 Headings.  Headings are for organizational purposes only and shall not be interpreted as having legal 

significance or meaning. 
 
4. Contract Administration and Operation. 
  

4.1 Term.  As indicated on the signature page of the Contract, the Contract shall be effective as of the Begin 
Date and shall remain effective until the Termination Date.  

 
4.2 Contract Renewal.  This Contract shall not bind, nor purport to bind, the State for any contractual 

commitment in excess of the original Contract period.  The term of the Contract shall not exceed five years.  
However, if the original Contract period is for less than five years, the State shall have the right, at its sole 
option, to renew the Contract, so long as the original Contract period together with the renewal periods does 
not exceed five years.  If the State exercises such rights, all terms, conditions and provisions of the original 
Contract shall remain the same and apply during the renewal period with the exception of price and Scope 
of Work, which may be renegotiated.   

 
4.3 New Budget Term.   If a budget term has been completed in a multi-term Contract, the parties may agree to 

change the amount and type of funding to accommodate new circumstances in the next budget term. Any 
increase or decrease in funding at the time of the new budget term shall coincide with a change in the 
Scope of Work or change in cost of services as approved by the Arizona Department of Health Services. 



Contract Number INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS ADHS16-110815 

 

Page 4 of 19 

 

4.4 Non-Discrimination.  The Contractor shall comply with State Executive Order No. 2009-09 and all other 

applicable Federal and State laws, rules and regulations, including the Americans with Disabilities Act. 
 
4.5 Records and Audit.  Under A.R.S. § 35-214 and A.R.S. § 35-215, the Contractor shall retain and shall 

contractually require each subcontractor to retain all data and other records (“records”) relating to the 
acquisition and performance of the Contract for a period of five years after the completion of the Contract.  
All records shall be subject to inspection and audit by the State and where applicable the Federal 
Government at reasonable times.  Upon request, the Contractor shall produce a legible copy of any or all 
such records. 

 
4.6 Financial Management.  For all contracts, the practices, procedures, and standards specified in and 

required by the Accounting and Auditing Procedures Manual for the ADHS funded programs shall be used 
by the Contractor in the management of Contract funds and by the State when performing a Contract audit.  
Funds collected by the Contractor in the form of fees, donations and/or charges for the delivery of these 
Contract services shall be accounted for in a separate fund.   

 
4.6.1 Federal Funding. Contractors receiving federal funds under this Contract shall comply with the 

certified finance and compliance audit provision of the Office of Management and Budget (OMB) 
Circular A-133, if applicable.  The federal financial assistance information shall be stated in a 
Change Order or Purchase Order. 

 
4.6.2 State Funding.  Contractors receiving state funds under this Contract shall comply with the certified 

compliance provisions of A.R.S. § 35-181.03. 
 

4.7 Inspection and Testing.  The Contractor agrees to permit access, at reasonable times, to its facilities. 
 
4.8 Notices.  Notices to the Contractor required by this Contract shall be made by the State to the person 

indicated on the signature page by the Contractor, unless otherwise stated in the Contract.  Notices to the 
State required by the Contract shall be made by the Contractor to an ADHS Procurement Officer, unless 
otherwise stated in the Contract.  An authorized ADHS Procurement Officer and an authorized Contractor 
representative may change their respective person to whom notice shall be given by written notice, and an 
amendment to the Contract shall not be necessary. 

 
4.9 Advertising and Promotion of Contract.  The Contractor shall not advertise or publish information for 

commercial benefit concerning this Contract without the prior written approval of an ADHS Procurement 
Officer. 

 
4.10 Property of the State.   

 
4.10.1 Equipment.  Except as provided below or otherwise agreed to by the parties, the title to any and all 

equipment acquired through the expenditure of funds received from the State shall remain the 
property of the State by and through the ADHS and, as such, shall remain under the sole direction, 
management and control of the ADHS.  When this Contract is terminated, the disposition of all 
such property shall be determined by the ADHS.  For Fixed Price contracts, when the Contractor 
provides the services/materials required by the Contract, any and all equipment purchased by the 
Contractor remains the property of the Contractor.  All purchases of equipment need to be reported 
to the ADHS Office of Inventory Control.  

 
4.10.2 Title and Rights to Materials.  As used in this section, the term “Materials” means all products 

created or produced by the Contractor under this Contract, including, but not limited to: written and 
electronic information, recordings, reports, research, research findings, conclusions, abstracts, 
results, software, data and any other intellectual property or deliverables created, prepared, or 
received by the Contractor in performance of this Contract.  Contractor acknowledges that all 
Materials are the property of the State by and through the ADHS and, as such, shall remain under 
the sole direction, management and control of the ADHS.  The Contractor is not entitled to a patent 
or copyright on these Materials and may not transfer a patent or copyright on them to any other 
person or entity.  To the extent any copyright in any Materials may originally vest in the Contractor, 



Contract Number INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS ADHS16-110815 

 

Page 5 of 19 

 

the Contractor hereby irrevocably transfers to the ADHS, for and on behalf of the State, all 
copyright ownership.  The ADHS shall have full, complete and exclusive rights to reproduce, 
duplicate, adapt, distribute, display, disclose, publish, release and otherwise use all Materials.  The 
Contractor shall not use or release these Materials without the prior written consent of the ADHS.  
When this Contract is terminated, the disposition of all such Materials shall be determined by the 
ADHS.  Further, the Contractor agrees to give recognition to the ADHS for its support of any 
program when releasing or publishing program Materials. 

 
4.10.3 Notwithstanding the above, if the Contractor is a State agency, the following shall apply instead:  It 

is the intention of ADHS and Contractor that all material and intellectual property developed under 
this Agreement be used and controlled in ways to produce the greatest benefit to the parties to this 
Contract and the citizens of the State of Arizona.  As used in this paragraph, “Material” means all 
written and electronic information, recordings, reports, findings, research information, abstracts, 
results, software, data, discoveries, inventions, procedures and processes of services developed 
by the Contractor and any other materials created, prepared or received by the Contractor and 
subcontractors in performance of this Agreement.  “Material” as used herein shall not include any 
pre-existing data, information, materials, discoveries, inventions or any form of intellectual property 
invented, created, developed or devised by Contractor (or its employees, subcontractors or 
agents) prior to the commencement of the services funded by this Agreement or that may result 
from Contractor’s involvement in other service activities that are not funded by the Agreement. 

 
4.10.4 Title and exclusive copyright to all Material shall vest in the State of Arizona, subject to any rights 

reserved on behalf of the federal government.  As State agencies and instrumentalities, both ADHS 
and Contractor shall have full, complete, perpetual, irrevocable and non-transferable rights to 
reproduce, duplicate, adapt, make derivative works, distribute, display, disclose, publish and 
otherwise use any and all Material.  The Contractor’s right to use Material shall include the 
following rights:   the right to use the Material in connection with its internal, non-profit research and 
educational activities, the right to present at academic or professional meetings or symposia and 
the right to publish in journals, theses, dissertations or otherwise of Contractor’s own choosing.  
Contractor agrees to provide ADHS with a right of review prior to any publication or public 
presentation of the Material, and ADHS shall be entitled to request the removal of its confidential 
information or any other content the disclosure of which would be contrary to the best interest of 
the State of Arizona.  Neither party shall release confidential information to the public without the 
prior expressly written permission of the other, unless required by the State public records statutes 
or other law, including a court order.  Each party agrees to give recognition to the other party in all 
public presentations or publications of any Material, when releasing or publishing them.  

 
4.10.5 In addition, ADHS and Contractor agree that any and all Material shall be made freely available to 

the public to the extent it is in the best interest of the State.  However, if either party wants to 
license or assign an intellectual property interest in the material to a third-party for monetary 
compensation, ADHS and Contractor agree to convene to determine the relevant issues of title, 
copyright, patent and distribution of revenue.  In the event of a controversy as to whether the 
Material is being used for monetary compensation or in a way that interferes with the best interest 
of the state or ADHS, then the Arizona Department of Administration shall make the final decision.  
Notwithstanding the above, “monetary compensation’ does not include compensation paid to an 
individual creator for traditional publications in academia (the copyrights to which are Employee-
Excluded Works under ABOR Intellectual Property Policy Section 6-908C.4.), an honorarium or 
other reimbursement of expenses for an academic or professional presentation, or an unprofitable 
distribution of Material.  

 
4.11 E-Verify Requirements   In accordance with A.R.S. § 41-4401, Contractor warrants compliance with all 

Federal immigration laws and regulations relating to employees and warrants its compliance with Section 
A.R.S. § 23-214, Subsection A. 

 
 
4.12 Federal Immigration and Nationality Act   The Contractor shall comply with all federal, state and local 

immigration laws and regulations relating to the immigration status of their employees during the term of the 



Contract Number INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS ADHS16-110815 

 

Page 6 of 19 

 

Contract. Further, the Contractor shall flow down this requirement to all subcontractors utilized during the 
term of the Contract. The State shall retain the right to perform random audits of Contractor and 
subcontractor records or to inspect papers of any employee thereof to ensure compliance. Should the State 
determine that the Contractor and/or any subcontractors be found noncompliant, the State may pursue all 
remedies allowed by law, including, but not limited to; suspension of work, termination of the Contract for 
default and suspension and/or debarment of the Contractor. 

 
5. Costs and Payments  
 

 5.1 Payments.  Payments shall comply with the requirements of A.R.S. Titles 35 and 41, net thirty (30) days. 
Upon receipt and acceptance of goods or services, the Contractor shall submit a complete and accurate 
Contractor’s Expenditure Report for payment from the State within thirty (30) days, as provided in the 
Accounting and Auditing Procedures Manual for the ADHS. 

 
5.2 Recoupment of Contract Payments.  

 
5.2.1 Unearned Advanced Funds.  Any unearned State funds that have been advanced to the Contractor 

and remain in its possession at the end of each budget term, or at the time of termination of the 
Contract, shall be refunded to the ADHS within forty-five (45) days of the end of a budget term or of 
the time of termination. 

 
5.2.2 Contracted Services.  In a fixed price contract, if the number of services provided is less than the 

number of services for which the Contractor received compensation, funds to be returned to the 
ADHS shall be determined by the Contract price.  Where the price is determined by cost per unit of 
service or material, the funds to be returned shall be determined by multiplying the unit of service 
cost by the number of services the Contractor did not provide during the Contract term.  Where the 
price for a deliverable is fixed, but the deliverable has not been completed, the Contractor shall be 
paid a pro rata portion of the completed deliverable.  In a cost reimbursement contract, the ADHS 
shall pay for any costs that the Contractor can document as having been paid by the Contractor 
and approved by ADHS.  In addition, the Contractor will be paid its reasonable actual costs for 
work in progress as determined by Generally Accepted Accounting Procedures up to the date of 
contract termination.   

 
5.2.3 Refunds.  Within forty-five (45) days after the end of each budget term or of the time of termination 

of the Contract, the Contractor shall refund the greater of:  i) the amount refundable in accordance 
with paragraph 5.2.1, Unearned Advanced Funds; or ii) the amount refundable in accordance with 
paragraph 5.2.2, Contracted Services.   

 
5.2.4 Unacceptable Expenditures.  The Contractor agrees to reimburse the ADHS for all Contract funds 

expended, which are determined by the ADHS not to have been disbursed by the Contractor in 
accordance with the terms of this Contract.  The Contractor shall reimburse ADHS within forty-five 
(45) days of the determination of unacceptability. 

 
5.3 Unit Costs/Rates or Fees.  Unit costs/rates or fees shall be based on costs, which are determined by ADHS 

to be reasonable, allowable and allocable as outlined in the Accounting and Auditing Procedures Manual 
for the ADHS. 

 
5.4 Applicable Taxes. 

 
5.4.1 State and Local Transaction Privilege Taxes.  The State of Arizona is subject to all applicable state 

and local transaction privilege taxes.  Transaction privilege taxes apply to the sale and are the 
responsibility of the seller to remit.  Failure to collect taxes from the buyer does not relieve the 
seller from its obligation to remit taxes. 

 
 
5.4.2 Tax Indemnification.  The Contractor and all subcontractors shall pay all federal, state and local 

taxes applicable to its operation and any persons employed by the Contractor.  Contractor shall 



Contract Number INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS ADHS16-110815 

 

Page 7 of 19 

 

require all subcontractors to hold the State harmless from any responsibility for taxes, damages 
and interest, if applicable, contributions required under Federal, and/or state and local laws and 
regulations and any other costs, including transaction privilege taxes, unemployment compensation 
insurance, Social Security and Worker’s Compensation. 

 
5.4.3 I.R.S. W9 Form.  In order to receive payment under any resulting Contract, the Contractor shall 

have a current I.R.S. W9 Form on file with the State of Arizona.   
 

5.5 Availability of Funds for the Next Fiscal Year.  Funds may not be presently available for performance under 
this Contract beyond the first year of the budget term or Contract term.  The State may reduce payments or 
terminate this Contract without further recourse, obligation or penalty in the event that insufficient funds are 
appropriated in the subsequent budget term.  The State shall not be liable for any purchases or 
Subcontracts entered into by the Contractor in anticipation of such funding. The Procurement Officer shall 
have the discretion in determining the availability of funds.    

 
5.6 Availability of Funds for the Current Contract Term.  Should the State Legislature enter back into session 

and decrease the appropriations through line item or general fund reductions, or for any other reason these 
goods or services are not funded as determined by ADHS, the following actions may be taken by ADHS: 

 
5.6.1 Accept a decrease in price offered by the Contractor; 

5.6.2 Reduce the number of goods or units of service and reduce the payments accordingly; 

5.6.3 Offer reductions in funding as an alternative to Contract termination; or 

5.6.4 Cancel the Contract.    

5.7 Authorization for Provision of Services:  Authorization for purchase of services under this contract shall be 
made only upon ADHS issuance of a Purchase Order that is signed by an authorized agent.  The Purchase 
Order will indicate the contract number and the dollar amount of funds authorized.  The Contractor shall 
only be authorized to perform services up to the amount on the Purchase Order.  ADHS shall not have any 
legal obligation to pay for services in excess of the amount indicated on the Purchase Order.  No further 
obligation for payment shall exist on behalf of ADHS unless a) the Purchase Order is changed or modified 
with an official ADHS Procurement Change Order, and/or b) an additional Purchase Order is issued for 
purchase of services under this contract.   
 

6. Contract Changes 
 

6.1 Amendments, Purchase Orders and Change Orders.  This Contract is issued under the authority of the 
Procurement Officer who signed this Contract.  The Contract may be modified only through a Contract 
Amendment, Purchase Order and/or Change Order within the scope of the Contract, unless the change is 
administrative or otherwise permitted by the Special Terms and Conditions.  Changes to the Contract, 
including the addition of work or materials, the revision of payment terms, or the substitution of work or 
materials, directed by an unauthorized State employee or made unilaterally by the Contractor are violations 
of the Contract and of applicable law.  Such changes, including unauthorized Contract Amendments, 
Purchase Orders and/or Change Orders, shall be void and without effect, and the Contractor shall not be 
entitled to any claim under this Contract based on those changes. 

 
6.2 Subcontracts.  The Contractor shall not enter into any subcontract under this Contract without the advance 

written approval of the Procurement Officer.  The subcontract shall incorporate by reference all material 
and applicable terms and conditions of this Contract. 

 
6.3  Assignments and Delegation.  The Contractor shall not assign any right nor delegate any duty under this 

Contract without the prior written approval of the Procurement Officer.  The State shall not unreasonably 
withhold approval. 

 
 



Contract Number INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS ADHS16-110815 

 

Page 8 of 19 

 

7.  Risk and Liability 
 

7.1 Risk of Loss.  The Contractor shall bear all loss of conforming material covered under this Contract until 
received and accepted by authorized personnel at the location designated in the Purchase Order, Change 
Order or Contract.  Mere receipt does not constitute final acceptance.  The risk of loss for nonconforming 
materials shall remain with the Contractor regardless of receipt. 

 
7.2 Mutual Indemnification.  Each party (as “indemnitor”) agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless the 

other party (as “indemnitee”) from and against any and all claims, losses, liability, costs or expenses 
(including reasonable attorney’s fees) (hereinafter collectively referred to as “claims”) arising out of bodily 
injury of any person (including death) or property damage, but only to the extent that such claims, which 
result in vicarious/derivative liability to the indemnitee, are caused by the act, omission, negligence, 
misconduct, or other fault of the indemnitor, its officers, officials, agents, employees or volunteers. 

 
7.3 Indemnification - Patent and Copyright.  To the extent permitted by A.R.S. § 41-621 and A.R.S. § 35-154, 

the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the State against any liability, including costs and 
expenses, for infringement of any patent, trademark or copyright arising out of performance of the Contract 
or use by the State of materials furnished by or work performed under this Contract.  The State shall 
reasonably notify the Contractor of any claim for which it may be liable under this paragraph. 

 
7.4 Force Majeure. 

 
7.4.1 Liability and Definition.  Except for payment of sums due, neither party shall be liable to the other 

nor deemed in default under this Contract if and to the extent that such party’s performance of this 
Contract is prevented by reason of force majeure.  The term “force majeure” means an occurrence 
that is beyond the control of the party affected and occurs without its fault or negligence.  Without 
limiting the foregoing, force majeure includes acts of God; acts of the public enemy; acts of 
terrorism; war; riots; strikes; mobilization; labor disputes; civil disorders; fire; flood; lockouts; 
injunctions-interventions not caused by or resulting from the act or failure to act of the parties; 
failures or refusals to act by government authority not caused by or resulting from the act or failure 
to act of the parties; and other similar occurrences beyond the control of the party declaring force 
majeure, which such party is unable to prevent by exercising reasonable diligence. 

 
7.4.2 Exclusions.  Force Majeure shall not include the following occurrences: 

 
7.4.2.1 Late delivery of Materials caused by congestion at a manufacturer’s plant or elsewhere, or 

an oversold condition of the market; 
 
7.4.2.2 Late performance by a subcontractor unless the delay arises out of a force majeure 

occurrence in accordance with this force majeure term and condition; or 
 
7.4.2.3 Inability of either the Contractor or any subcontractor to acquire or maintain any required 

insurance, bonds, licenses or permits. 
 

7.4.3 Notice.  If either party is delayed at any time in the progress of the work by force majeure, the 
delayed party shall notify the other party in writing of such delay, as soon as is practicable and no 
later than the following working day of the commencement thereof, and shall specify the causes of 
such delay in such notice.  Such notice shall be delivered or mailed certified-return receipt and 
shall make a specific reference to this article, thereby invoking its provisions.  The delayed party 
shall cause such delay to cease as soon as practicable and shall notify the other party in writing 
when it has done so.  The time of completion shall be extended by Contract Amendment for a 
period of time equal to the time that the results or effects of such delay prevent the delayed party 
from performing in accordance with this Contract. 

 
7.4.4 Default.  Any delay or failure in performance by either party hereto shall not constitute default 

hereunder or give rise to any claim for damages or loss of anticipated profits if, and to the extent 
that, such delay or failure is caused by force majeure. 



Contract Number INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS ADHS16-110815 

 

Page 9 of 19 

 

7.5 Third Party Antitrust Violations.  The Contractor assigns to the State any claim for overcharges resulting 
from antitrust violations to the extent that those violations concern materials or services supplied by third 
parties to the Contractor for or toward the fulfillment of this Contract. 

 
8. Description of Materials The following provisions shall apply to Materials only: 
 

8.1 Liens. The Contractor agrees that the Materials supplied under this Contract are free of liens.  In the event 
the Materials are not free of liens, Contractor shall pay to remove the lien and any associated damages or 
replace the Materials with Materials free of liens. 

 
8.2 Quality. Unless otherwise modified elsewhere in these terms and conditions, the Contractor agrees that, for 

one year after acceptance by the State of the Materials, they shall be: 
 

8.2.1  Of a quality to pass without objection in the Contract description; 
 
8.2.2 Fit for the intended purposes for which the Materials are used; 
 
8.2.3 Within the variations permitted by the Contract and are of even kind, quantity, and quality within 

each unit and among all units; 
 
8.2.4 Adequately contained, packaged and marked as the Contract may require; and  
 
8.2.5 Conform to the written promises or affirmations of fact made by the Contractor. 

 
8.3 Inspection/Testing.  Subparagraphs 8.1 through 8.2 of this paragraph are not affected by inspection or 

testing of or payment for the Materials by the State. 
 
8.4 Compliance With Applicable Laws.  The Materials and services supplied under this Contract shall comply 

with all applicable federal, state and local laws, and the Contractor shall maintain all applicable license and 
permit requirements. 

 
8.5 Survival of Rights and Obligations After Contract Expiration and Termination. 
 

8.5.1 Contractor’s Representations.  All representations and warranties made by the Contractor under 
this Contract in paragraphs Seven (7) and Eight (8) shall survive the expiration or termination 
hereof.  In addition, the parties hereto acknowledge that pursuant to A.R.S. § 12.510, except as 
provided in A.R.S. § 12-529, the State is not subject to or barred by any limitations of actions 
prescribed in A.R.S. Title 12, Chapter Five (5). 

 
8.5.2 Purchase Orders and Change Orders.  Unless otherwise directed in writing by the Procurement 

Officer, the Contractor shall fully perform and shall be obligated to comply with all Purchase Orders 
and Change Orders received by the Contractor prior to the expiration or termination hereof, 
including, without limitation, all Purchase Orders and Change Orders received prior to but not fully 
performed and satisfied at the expiration or termination of this Contract. 

 
9. State’s Contractual Remedies 
 

9.1 Right to Assurance.  If the State, in good faith, has reason to believe that the Contractor does not intend to, 
or is unable to, perform or continue performing under this Contract, the Procurement Officer may demand 
in writing that the Contractor give a written assurance of intent to perform.  Failure by the Contractor to 
provide written assurance within the number of Days specified in the demand may, at the State’s option, be 
the basis for terminating the Contract. 

 
 
 
 
 



Contract Number INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS ADHS16-110815 

 

Page 10 of 19 

 

9.2 Stop Work Order. 
 

9.2.1 Terms.  The State may, at any time, by written order to the Contractor, require the Contractor to 
stop all or any part of the work called for by this Contract for a period up to ninety (90) Days after 
the order is delivered to the Contractor, and for any further period to which the parties may agree.  
The order shall be specifically identified as a stop work order issued under this clause.  Upon 
receipt of the order, the Contractor shall immediately comply with its terms and take all reasonable 
steps to minimize the incurrence of costs allocable to the work covered by the order during the 
period of work stoppage. 

 
9.2.2 Cancellation or Expiration.  If a stop work order issued under this clause is canceled or the period 

of the order or any extension expires, the Contractor shall resume work. The Procurement Officer 
shall make an equitable adjustment in the delivery schedule or Contract price, or both, and the 
Contract shall be amended in writing accordingly.  

 
9.3 Non-exclusive Remedies.  The rights and remedies of ADHS under this Contract are not exclusive, and 

ADHS is entitled to all rights and remedies available to it, including those under the Arizona Uniform 
Commercial Code and Arizona common law. 

 
9.4 Right of Offset.  The State shall be entitled to offset against any sums due the Contractor in any Contract 

with the State or damages assessed by the State because of the Contractor’s non-conforming performance 
or failure to perform this Contract.  The right to offset may include, but is not limited to, a deduction from an 
unpaid balance and a collection against the bid and/or performance bonds.  Any offset taken for damages 
assessed by the State shall represent a fair and reasonable amount for the actual damages and shall not 
be a penalty for non-performance.  
 

10. Contract Termination 
 

10.1 Cancellation for Conflict of Interest.  Pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-511, the State may cancel this Contract within 
three (3) years after Contract execution without penalty or further obligation if any person significantly 
involved in initiating, negotiating, securing, drafting or creating the Contract on behalf of the State is, or 
becomes at any time while the Contract or an extension of the Contract is in effect, an employee of or a 
consultant to any other party to this Contract with respect to the subject matter of the Contract.  The 
cancellation shall be effective when the Contractor receives written notice of the cancellation, unless the 
notice specifies a later time.  If the Contractor is a political subdivision of the State, it may also cancel this 
Contract as provided in A.R.S. § 38-511. 

 
10.2 Gratuities. The State may, by written notice, terminate this Contract, in whole or in part, if the State 

determines that employment or a Gratuity was offered or made by the Contractor or a representative of the 
Contractor to any officer or employee of the State for the purpose of influencing the outcome of the 
procurement, securing the Contract or an Amendment to the Contract, or receiving favorable treatment 
concerning the Contract, including the making of any determination or decision about Contract 
performance.  The State, in addition to any other rights or remedies, shall be entitled to recover exemplary 
damages in the amount of three times the value of the Gratuity offered by the Contractor. 

 
10.3 Suspension or Debarment.  The State may, by written notice to the Contractor, immediately terminate this 

Contract if the State determines that the Contractor or its subcontractor has been debarred, suspended or 
otherwise lawfully prohibited from participating in any public procurement activity, including but not limited 
to, being disapproved as a subcontractor of any public procurement unit or other governmental body.   

 
10.4 Termination Without Cause. 
 
 10.4.1 Both the State and the Contractor may terminate this Contract at any time with thirty (30) days 

notice in writing specifying the termination date.  Such notices shall be given by personal delivery 
or by certified mail, return receipt requested. 

 
 10.4.2 If the Contractor terminates this Contract, any monies prepaid by the State, for which no service 



Contract Number INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS ADHS16-110815 

 

Page 11 of 19 

 

or benefit was received by the State, shall be refunded to the State within five (5) days of the 
termination notice.  In addition, if the Contractor terminates the Contract, the Contractor shall 
indemnify the State for any sanctions imposed by the funding source as a result of the 
Contractor’s failure to complete the Contract. 

 
 10.4.3 If the State terminates this Contact pursuant to this Section, the State shall pay the Contractor the 

Contract price for all Services and Materials completed up to the date of termination.  In a fixed 
price contract, the State shall pay the amount owed for the Services or Materials by multiplying 
the unit of service or item cost by the number of unpaid service units or items.  In a cost 
reimbursement contract, the ADHS shall pay for any costs that the Contractor can document as 
having been paid by the Contractor and approved by ADHS.  In addition, the Contractor will be 
paid its reasonable actual costs for work in progress as determined by GAAP up to the date of 
termination.  Upon such termination, the Contractor shall deliver to the ADHS all deliverables 
completed.  ADHS may require Contractor to negotiate the terms of any remaining deliverables 
still due. 

 
10.5 Mutual Termination.  This Contract may be terminated by mutual written agreement of the parties 

specifying the termination date and the terms for disposition of property and, as necessary, submission of 
required deliverables and payment therein. 

 
10.6 Termination for Default.  The State reserves the right to terminate the Contract in whole or in part due to 

the failure of the Contractor to comply with any material obligation, term or condition of the Contract, to 
acquire and maintain all required insurance policies, bonds, licenses and permits, or to make satisfactory 
progress in performing the Contract.  In the event the ADHS terminates the Contract in whole or in part as 
provided in this paragraph, the ADHS may procure, upon such terms and in such manner as deemed 
appropriate, Services or Materials, similar to those terminated, and Contractor shall be liable to the ADHS 
for any excess costs incurred by the ADHS in obtaining such similar Services or Materials. 

 
10.7 Continuation of Performance Through Termination.  Upon receipt of the notice of termination and until the 

effective date of the notice of termination, the Contractor shall perform work consistent with the 
requirements of the Contract and, if applicable, in accordance with a written transition plan approved by the 
ADHS.  If the Contract is terminated in part, the Contractor shall continue to perform the Contract to the 
extent not terminated.  After receiving the notice of termination, the Contractor shall immediately notify all 
subcontractors, in writing, to stop work on the effective date of termination, and on the effective date of 
termination, the Contractor and subcontractors shall stop all work.  

 
10.8 Disposition of Property.  Upon termination of this Contract, all property of the State, as defined herein, shall 

be delivered to the ADHS upon demand. 
 
11. Arbitration  Pursuant to A.R.S. § 12-1518, disputes under this Contract shall be resolved through the use of 

arbitration when the case or lawsuit is subject to mandatory arbitration pursuant to rules adopted under A.R.S. § 
12 -133. 

  
12. Communication 
 

12.1 Program Report.  When reports are required by the Contract, the Contractor shall provide them in the 
format approved by ADHS.  

 
12.2 Information and Coordination.  The State will provide information to the Contractor pertaining to activities 

that affect the Contractor’s delivery of services, and the Contractor shall be responsible for coordinating 
their activities with the State’s in such a manner as not to conflict or unnecessarily duplicate the State’s 
activities.  As the work of the Contractor progresses, advice and information on matters covered by the 
Contract shall be made available by the Contractor to the State throughout the effective period of the 
Contract. 

 
 

 



Contract Number INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS ADHS16-110815 

 

Page 12 of 19 

 

13. Client Grievances   
 

If applicable, the Contractor and its subcontractors shall use a procedure through which clients may present 
grievances about the operation of the program that result in the denial, suspension or reduction of services 
provided pursuant to this Contract and which is acceptable to and approved by the State.  

 
14. Sovereign Immunity Pursuant to A.R.S. § 41-621(O), the obtaining of insurance by the State shall not be a 

waiver of any sovereign immunity defense in the event of suit. 
 
15. Administrative Changes   
 

The Procurement Officer, or authorized designee, reserves the right to correct any obvious clerical, typographical 
or grammatical errors, as well as errors in party contact information (collectively, “Administrative Changes”), prior 
to or after the final execution of a Contract or Contract Amendment.  Administrative Changes subject to 
permissible corrections include: misspellings, grammar errors, incorrect addresses, incorrect Contract 
Amendment numbers, pagination and citation errors, mistakes in the labeling of the rate as either extended or 
unit, and calendar date errors that are illogical due to typographical error.  The Procurement Office shall 
subsequently send to the Contractor notice of corrections to administrative errors in a written confirmation letter 
with a copy of the corrected Administrative Change attached. 

 
16.   Survival of Terms After Termination or Cancellation of Contract   
 

All applicable Contract terms shall survive and apply after Contract termination or cancellation to the extent 
necessary for Contractor to complete and for the ADHS to receive and accept any final deliverables that are due 
after the date of the termination or cancellation. 

 
17. Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA)   

 
The Contractor warrants that it is familiar with the requirements of HIPAA, as amended by the Health Information 
Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act (HITECH Act) of 2009, and accompanying regulations and will 
comply with all applicable HIPAA requirements in the course of this Contract.  Contractor warrants that it will 
cooperate with the Arizona Department of Health Services (ADHS) in the course of performance of the Contract 
so that both ADHS and Contractor will be in compliance with HIPAA, including cooperation and coordination with 
the Arizona Department of Administration-Arizona Strategic Enterprise Technology (ADOA-ASET) Office, the 
ADOA-ASET Arizona State Chief Information Security Officer and HIPAA Coordinator and other compliance 
officials required by HIPAA and its regulations.  Contractor will sign any documents that are reasonably necessary 
to keep ADHS and Contractor in compliance with HIPAA, including, but not limited to, business associate 
agreements. 
 
If requested by the ADHS Procurement Office, Contractor agrees to sign a “Pledge To Protect Confidential 
Information” and to abide by the statements addressing the creation, use and disclosure of confidential 
information, including information designated as protected health information and all other confidential or sensitive 
information as defined in policy.  In addition, if requested, Contractor agrees to attend or participate in HIPAA 
training offered by ADHS or to provide written verification that the Contractor has attended or participated in job 
related HIPAA training that is: (1) intended to make the Contractor proficient in HIPAA for purposes of performing 
the services required and (2) presented by a HIPAA Privacy Officer or other person or program knowledgeable 
and experienced in HIPAA and who has been approved by the ADOA-ASET Arizona State Chief Information 
Security Officer and HIPAA Coordinator. 
 

18. Comments Welcome    
 
The ADHS Procurement Office periodically reviews the Uniform Terms and Conditions and welcomes any 
comments you may have. Please submit your comments to: ADHS Procurement Administrator, Arizona 
Department of Health Services, 1740 West Adams, Suite 303, Phoenix, Arizona, 85007. 
 
 

 



Contract Number INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS ADHS16-110815 

 

Page 13 of 19 

 

19. Key Personnel  
  
It is essential that the Contractor provide adequate experienced personnel, capable of and devoted to the 
successful accomplishment of work to be performed under this Contract.  The Contractor must agree to assign 
specific individuals to the key positions. 

 
1. The Contractor agrees that, once assigned to work under this Contract, key personnel shall not be removed 

or replaced without written notice to the State. 
 

2. Key personnel are not available for work under this Contract for a continuous period exceeding 30 calendar 
days, or are expected to devote substantially less effort to the work than initially anticipated, the Contractor 
shall immediately notify the State, and shall, subject to the concurrence of the State, replace such personnel 
with personnel of substantially equal ability and qualifications. 

 
20. Data Universal Numbering System (DUNS) Requirement  For federal funding, pursuant to 2 CFR 25.100 et 

seq., no entity (defined as a Governmental organization, which is a State, local government, or Indian tribe; 
foreign public entity; domestic or foreign nonprofit organization; domestic or foreign for-profit organization; or 
Federal agency, but only as a subrecipient under an award or subaward to a non-Federal entity) may receive a 
subaward from ADHS unless the entity provides its Data Universal Numbering System (DUNS) Number to ADHS.   



Contract Number INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
SCOPE OF WORK ADHS16-110815 

 

Page 14 of 19 

 

1. DEFINATIONS 
 
1.1   “ADHS” for the purpose of this document refers to the Arizona Department of Health Services. 

 
1.2  “OIP” for the purpose of this document refers to the Office of Injury Prevention within the 

Arizona Department of Health Services. 
 

1.3  “CDC” for the purpose of this document refers to the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. 

1.4  “CME” for the purpose of this document refers to Continuing Medical Education. 

1.5  “CSPMP” for the purpose of this document refers to the Controlled Substances Prescription 
Monitoring Program. 

1.6  “County or County Health Department” for the purpose of this document means the individual 
counties selected as high-burden areas in the state to implement the Prescription Drug Misuse and 
Abuse Toolkit. 

1.7  “County Health Department program managers” for the purpose of this document, refers to the 
individual who works for the Contractor who has overall responsibility of the proposed project, 
including management of staff and Contractors to ensure that the State is in compliance with all 
grant requirements and communication with ADHS on progress made toward achieving the 
deliverables. 

 
1.8  “DEA” for the purpose of this document refers to the United States Drug Enforcement Administration. 

 
1.9  “High-burden areas” for the purpose of this document refers to communities which are identified by 

the department and Contractor as areas within the county with the highest rates of prescription drug 
mortality and morbidity. 

 
1.10 “NAS” for the purpose of this document refers to Neonatal Abstinence Syndrome. 

 
1.11 “Partners” for the purpose of this document refers to state agencies, providers, EBP’s, communities 

and others. 
 

1.12 “PSAs” for the purpose of this document refers to public service announcements. 
 

1.13 “RHBAs” for the purpose of this document refers to Regional Behavioral Health Authorities. 

 
1.14 “Rx” for the purpose of this document refers to prescription. 

 
1.15 “ADHS Program Manager” means Arizona Department of Health Services employed staff managing 

the Project contract. 
 

1.16 “ADHS Injury Epidemiologist” means Arizona Department of Health Services employed injury 
epidemiologist. 

 
1.17 “Shall or Must” means a mandatory requirement.  Failure to meet these mandatory requirements may 

deem Contractor out of compliance with the Contract. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Contract Number INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
SCOPE OF WORK ADHS16-110815 

 

Page 15 of 19 

 

2. BACKGROUND 
 

ADHS OIP administers funds provided by the CDC for operation of the Prescription Drug Overdose 
Prevention for States grant.  Abuse and addiction to opioids is a serious and challenging national public 
health problem. Deaths from drug overdose have risen steadily over the past two (2) decades and have 
become the leading cause of injury death in the United States. Rates of adult prescription drug misuse in 
Arizona are alarmingly high, with fifty percent (50%) of adults reporting misuse in the past twelve (12) months 
and thirteen percent  (13%)  reporting misuse in the past thirty (30) days. Although rates of adult prescription 
drug misuse traverse all age categories and regions in Arizona, significantly higher rates were reported 
among individuals living in the Southeastern region of the state and for individuals forty-five (45) years and 
older. The majority of the misuse involved pain relievers [Forty-seven percent (47%)]. 
 
In 2013, ninety-four percent (94%) of non-fatal poisoning-related inpatient hospitalizations involved drugs 
(prescription and non-prescription). Seventy-eight percent (78%) of the poisoning-related deaths in 2013 were 
unintentional; thirteen percent (13%) were due to suicide; and nine percent (9%) were of an undetermined 
manner of death. Males aged forty-five through fifty-four (45- 54) years had the highest rate of unintentional 
poisoning-related deaths with 35.7 deaths per 100,000 residents. 
 
Compared to other states, these alarming outcomes placed Arizona as the sixth (6

th
) highest state in the 

nation for youth drug overdose rates in 2010 and twelfth (12
th
) highest in 2012-2013 in adult prescription 

misuse and abuse. The economic consequences are also significant. It is estimated that the cumulative 
negative fiscal impact to the state is $72 billion being largely borne by employers, the healthcare industry, and 
law enforcement. 
 
Numbers of prescriptions have also risen quite dramatically in recent years. According to data from Arizona’s 
CSPMP, there were 9.6 million Class II-IV prescriptions written and 575 million pills dispensed in Arizona in 
2013. This equates to 87.4 Schedule II-IV controlled substance pills for every person, adults and children, 
living in Arizona. Prescription pain relievers accounted for 51.2% of these prescriptions, with Hydrocodone 
and Oxycodone accounting for the majority (~80.9%) of all pain relievers. According to experts, recent 
prescribing practices in Arizona place our state as the fifth (5

th
) highest opioid prescribing state in the country. 

 
These data not only suggest that the vast supply of opioids are dramatically contributing to the problem, but 
that particular groups may be at increased risk– females were almost twice as likely to receive a prescription 
for all controlled substances, including opioids, and sixty percent (60%) of the scripts were written for 
individuals forty-five (45)  years and older. Poisoning mortality rates were highest among American Indians 
with 40.7 deaths per 100,000 population – a sixty-two percent (62%) increase between 2009 and 2013. The 
death rate for non-Hispanic Whites was 23.1 deaths per 100,000 population. Additionally, during 2008-2013 
there were a total of 1,472 cases of NAS in Arizona with an NAS rate being 2.83 [Ninety-five percent (95%) 
Confidence Interval (CI), 2.68- 2.97] per 1000 cases. 

 
3. OBJECTIVES  

 
With resources awarded through the Prescription Drug Overdose Prevention for States grant, Arizona will be 
well equipped to develop, implement, and assess relevant and proven strategies to halt, reverse, and diminish 
the opioid crisis in our state. Key Strategies and Initiatives that will guide our work include: 

 
3.1 Improve the use of Arizona’s CSPMP in conjunction with proactive data reporting and analysis of the 

program; 
 
3.2 Expand the implementation of the community prevention efforts of the Arizona Prescription Drug 

Misuse and Abuse Initiative using the Rx Drug Misuse & Abuse Initiative Community Toolkit. The five 
(5) strategies are as follows: 

 
Strategy 1:   Reduce Illicit Acquisitions and Diversion of Prescription Medications, 

 
Strategy 2:   Promote Responsible Prescribing and Dispensing Policies and Practices, 
 
 



Contract Number INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
SCOPE OF WORK ADHS16-110815 

 

Page 16 of 19 

 

Strategy 3:   Enhance Rx Drug Practices and Policies among Law Enforcement,   
 
Strategy 4:   Increase Public Awareness and Patient Education about the Risks of Rx Drug Misuse 

and Abuse, and 
 
Strategy 5:   Enhance Assessment and Referral to Treatment; 

 
3.3 Build local capacity, particularly through County Health Departments to implement activities and sub-

activities, i.e., provide “boots on the ground”, technical expertise for analysis and strategic planning, 
enhance community situational awareness through outreach and education; and  

 
3.4 Increase and evaluate the uptake of the Arizona Opioid Prescribing Guidelines. 

 
4. SCOPE OF SERVICES  

 
The Contractor shall perform all necessary efforts to work with community stakeholders within the County to 
build local health department capacity to: 
 
4.1 Coordinate intensive prevention efforts aimed at high-burden areas within the County; 
 
4.2 Complement and enhance where appropriate, but shall not duplicate, activities conducted through 

similar prevention grants, e.g., Harold Rogers grant; 
 
4.3 Work with community stakeholders to identify goals and objectives to reduce prescription misuse and 

abuse using strategies and activities contained in the Arizona Rx Drug Misuse & Abuse Initiative 
Toolkit; and  

 
4.4 Build local health department capacity to develop and disseminate accessible analysis of local 

prescribing and mortality trends to community, state, and media partners. 
 

5. TASKS  
 
The Contract shall: 
 
5.1 Implement “Sign up to save lives” campaigns. “Sign up to save lives” has been identified as an 

evidence-based campaign and is a strategy in the Arizona Rx Drug Misuse and Abuse Toolkit. This 
campaign is designed to increase awareness of the CSPMP tool and facilitate enrollment and usage 
of prescribers, delegates, and pharmacists to the CSPMP; 

 
5.2 Continue with educational efforts to encourage use of the CSPMP; 

 
5.3 Print, distribute, and educate Rx Drug Misuse and Abuse Initiative Toolkit to high-burden areas of 

county in meetings with community partners; 

 
5.4 Attend Rx toolkit trainings with County Health Department employees, local coalitions, faith-based 

organizations, RHBAs and others. At these trainings, all five (5) strategies shall be reviewed with an 
emphasis on problematic prescribing. Rx toolkits shall be distributed; 

 
5.5 Coordinate with their local substance abuse coalitions; 

 
5.6 Participate in follow-up and ongoing training regarding the Rx toolkit at quarterly meetings with ADHS; 

 
5.7 Build local health department capacity to develop and disseminate accessible analyses of local 

prescribing and mortality trends to facilitate pickup by local media; 
 

5.8 Develop county level analyses for hospital and mortality data. ADHS injury epidemiologist shall work 
with County Health Departments to develop analyses regarding emergency department visits, in 
patient hospitalizations, and drug poisoning;  



Contract Number INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
SCOPE OF WORK ADHS16-110815 

 

Page 17 of 19 

 

5.9 Disseminate local prescribing and mortality trends. The ADHS program manager shall educate the 
County Health Department program managers on how to disseminate local prescribing and mortality 
trends using documents available in the Rx Initiative toolkit (e.g., how to create a PSA); 

 
5.10 Receive pre-approval before releasing any PSAs or new educational material; 

 
5.11 Expand uptake and use of Arizona Guidelines for Emergency Department Controlled Substance 

Prescribing, the Arizona Opioid Prescribing Guidelines, and the Arizona Guidelines for Dispensing 
Controlled Substances; 

  
5.12 Increase awareness on the “Safe and Effective Opioid Prescribing While Managing Acute and 

Chronic Pain” online CME course developed by the University of Arizona – Center for Rural Health to 
help Arizona DEA prescribers incorporate into practice the 2014 Arizona Opioid Prescribing 
Guidelines to prescribers in high-burden areas of county in community meetings and meetings with 
prescribers; 

 
5.13 Maintain documentation to quantify of Rx toolkits, “Sign up to save lives” brochures, and prescription 

guidelines distributed; 

 
5.14 Maintain documentation of any PSAs created and run in the county regarding prescription drug 

misuse and abuse; and 

 
5.15 Prepare and submit a quarterly Contractor’s Expenditure Report. 

 
6. REFERENCE DOCUMENTS 

 
6.1 CDC, National Center for Injury Prevention and Control, Prescription Drug Overdose Prevention for 

States, CDC-RFA-CE15-1501. 
 

7. STATE PROVIDED ITEMS 
 

ADHS will provide:   
 
7.1 Technical assistance to Contractor’s staff that shall implement the Rx Drug Toolkit; and 

 
7.2 Any forms or guides that may be necessary to establish a certification process. 

 
8. ADHS WILL: 

 
8.1 Monitor the implementation and operation of the Rx Drug Toolkit and ongoing compliance with 

Contract provisions through site visits, review of submitted forms and other mechanisms; and 
 
8.2 Hold phone conference calls for workgroup activities. 

 
9. APPROVALS 

 
9.1 Submitted reports shall be approved by the ADHS Program Manager prior to reimbursement; and 

 
9.2 Prior to publishing or recording any marketing materials including, but not limited to, brochures, 

posters, public service announcements, publications, videos, or journal articles which will be 
developed and paid using funds awarded under this Contract, a draft of the marketing material must 
first be approved by ADHS.  The ADHS Public Information Officer must approve prior to the 
dissemination of such materials or airing of such announcements. 

 
 
 
 
 



Contract Number INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
SCOPE OF WORK ADHS16-110815 

 

Page 18 of 19 

 

10. DELIVERABLES 
 

The Contractor shall submit to ADHS: 
 
10.1 A quarterly CER not later than thirty (30) days following the end of each quarter; 
 
10.2 A final CER not later than sixty (60) days following the end of each Contract year; 
 
10.3 Documentation to quantify the number of Rx toolkits, “Sign up to save lives” brochures, and prescription 

guidelines distributed; 
 
10.4 Documentation to quantify the number of any PSAs created and run in the County; 
 
10.5 Documentation to quantify the number of all trainings and meetings conducted based on materials from 

the Rx Toolkit; 
 
10.6 Results of analyses on drug poisonings completed at the local level; and 
 
10.7 An annual summary of all grant activity, not later than sixty (60) days following the end of each contract 

year. 
 

11. NOTICES, CORRESPONDENCE, REPORTS:  
 

11.1  Notices, Correspondence, Reports and Invoices from the Contractor to ADHS shall be sent to: 
 
 Injury and Substance Abuse Prevention Manager  
 Office of Injury Prevention 
 Arizona Department of Health Services 
 150 North 18

th
 Avenue, Suite 320   

 Phoenix, AZ  85007  
 Tel: 602-364-3321 
 Fax: 602-364-1496 
                                                  

11.2 Notices, correspondence, reports and payments from ADHS to the Contractor shall be sent to: 
  

Deputy Director of Health  
Gila County Health Services 
5515 South Apache Ave, Suite 100 
Globe, AZ 85501 
Tel: 928-402-8811 

 
 

        
 



Contract Number INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
PRICE SHEET  ADHS16-110815 

 

Page 19 of 19 

 

   

 
Gila County Health Services  

 
 
   
        

Type of Unit Rate per Unit Unit of Measure # of Units Total 

Implementation of 
Prescription Drug 

Toolkit 
$23,879.25 Quarterly 4 $95,517.00 

       
 
 



 

 
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention

 
National Center for Injury Prevention and Control

 
Prescription Drug Overdose Prevention for States

CDC-RFA-CE15-1501
Application Due Date: 05/08/2015

 



Prescription Drug Overdose Prevention for States
CDC-RFA-CE15-1501
TABLE OF CONTENTS

  Part I. Overview Information 

Federal Agency NameA.
Funding Opportunity TitleB.
Announcement TypeC.
Agency Funding Opportunity NumberD.
Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) NumberE.
Dates F.
Executive Summary G.

Part II. Full Text 

Funding Opportunity Description A.
Award Information B.
Eligibility Information C.
Required Registrations D.
Review and Selection Process E.
Award Administration Information F.
Agency Contacts G.
Other Information H.
Glossary I.

 



 

Part I. Overview Information 
Applicants must go to the synopsis page of this announcement at www.grants.gov and click on the "Send Me Change Notifications Emails" link
to ensure they receive notifications of any changes to CDC-RFA-CE15-1501. Applicants also must provide an e-mail address to www.grants.gov
to receive notifications of changes. 
A. Federal Agency Name:
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) 
B. Funding Opportunity Title:
Prescription Drug Overdose Prevention for States 
C. Announcement Type: New - Type 1
This announcement is only for non-research domestic activities supported by CDC. If research is proposed, the application will not be considered
Research for this purpose is defined at http://www.cdc.gov/od/science/integrity/docs/cdc-policy-distinguishing-public-health-research-nonresearc
h.pdf.

D. Agency Funding Opportunity Number:
CDC-RFA-CE15-1501 
E. Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) Number:
93.136 
F. Dates:
1. Due Date for Letter of Intent (LOI): 03/16/2015
2. Due Date for Applications: 05/08/2015, 11:59 p.m. U.S. Eastern Standard Time, at 

www.grants.gov.
3. Date for Informational Conference Call: 03/11/2015
Informational conference call for potential applicants: Wednesday March 11, 2015 at 1:00PM ET
Conference call number: (855) 644-0229  Conference ID: 9654605
The purpose of Amendment  1 to this FOA is to provide additional clarifying information based on questions received from potential applicants
during the Pre-Application Informational Conference Call held on March 11, 2015.  A summary of the questions and answers can be found in
Section H. Other Information beginning on page 39 of the amended FOA.

G. Executive Summary:
1. Summary Paragraph:
The purpose of this funding is to advance and evaluate comprehensive state-level interventions for preventing prescription drug overuse, misuse,
abuse, and overdose. Interventions of priority address drivers of the prescription drug overdose epidemic, particularly the misuse and
inappropriate prescribing of opioid pain relievers. Awardees will implement prevention strategies to improve safe prescribing practices and
prevent prescription drug overuse, misuse, abuse, and overdose.  This funding lays out four priority strategies that states may advance; two of
these strategies are required, two are optional.  The two required strategies are:

1) Enhance and maximize a state PDMP and 
2) Implement community or insurer/health system interventions aimed at preventing prescription drug overdose and abuse.

The two optional strategies are:

3) Conduct policy evaluations and/or 
4) Develop and implement Rapid Response Projects.

The targeted outcomes of each strategy will vary and may include programmatic outcomes, as well as changes in behaviors thought to be linked
to drug overdose morbidity or mortality. Awardees will be expected to implement robust evaluations of their program activities using timely data
from a variety of sources. A key to the success of this FOA is multi-sector collaboration with partners that have shared authority over this issue.
Applicants are therefore required to submit letters of support from state-level governmental entities and other partners depending on the strategies
they pursue. Finally, while the primary purpose of this funding is the prevention of prescription drug overdoses, it also presents opportunities to
advance surveillance and evaluation efforts to understand and respond to the increase in heroin overdose deaths, especially at the intersection of
prescription opioid abuse and heroin use. Funded states will track heroin morbidity and mortality as an outcome of their work and have
opportunities to evaluate policies with implications for preventing both prescription drug and heroin overdoses (e.g., naloxone access policies).
a. Eligible Applicants: Limited 
b. FOA Type: Cooperative Agreement 
c. Approximate Number of Awards: 16 

d. Total Project Period Funding: $55,600,000 
e. Average One Year Award Amount: $875,000 

f. Number of Years of Award: 4 
g. Estimated Award Date: 09/15/2015 
h. Cost Sharing and / or Matching Requirements: N 
  1 of 42

https://foa.grantsolutions.gov/announcementmodule/www.grants.gov
https://foa.grantsolutions.gov/announcementmodule/www.grants.gov
http://www.cdc.gov/od/science/integrity/docs/cdc-policy-distinguishing-public-health-research-nonresearch.pdf
http://www.cdc.gov/od/science/integrity/docs/cdc-policy-distinguishing-public-health-research-nonresearch.pdf
http://www.grants.gov


  2 of 42



h. Cost Sharing and / or Matching Requirements: N 
Cost sharing or matching funds are not required for this program. Although no statutory matching requirement for this FOA exists, leveraging
other resources and related ongoing efforts to promote sustainability is strongly encouraged.
Consistent with the cited authority for this announcement and applicable grants regulations, sources for cost sharing or matching may include
complementary foundation funding, other U.S. government funding sources including programs supported by HHS or other agencies (e.g.,
Department of Agriculture, Department of Education, Department of Housing and Urban Development, Department of Transportation,
Environmental Protection Agency, U.S. Park Service) and other funding sources. Applicants should coordinate with multiple sectors such as
public health, transportation, education, health care delivery, and agriculture.

 

Part II. Full Text
A. Funding Opportunity Description 

1. Background 

a. Overview 

Overdose deaths from prescription opioid pain relievers have quadrupled since 1999, killing more than 16,000 people in the U.S. in 2013.
Changes in how providers prescribe these powerful drugs created, and continue to fuel, the epidemic. The amount of opioids prescribed and sold in
the U.S. quadrupled in ten years, yet there has not been an overall change in the amount of pain that Americans report. Heroin overdose death rates
have been climbing sharply since 2010.  Evidence to date suggests that widespread prescription opioid exposure and increasing rates of opioid
addiction have played a role in the growth of heroin use.
States, including state health departments, are crucial players in reversing the epidemic. This funding builds on a previous CDC FOA, Prescription
Drug Overdose: Boost for State Prevention FOA CE14-1404, to provide states the support and resources needed to build robust prevention
programs. States may advance four priority strategies under this funding; two of these strategies are required, two are optional.  The two required
strategies are:

1) Enhance and maximize a state PDMP and 
2) Implement community or insurer/health system interventions aimed at preventing prescription drug overdose and abuse.

 The two optional strategies are:
3) Conduct policy evaluations and/or 
4) Develop and implement Rapid Response Projects.

This FOA provides funding to implement these four major strategies. 
Below is a brief description of each strategy:

(1) Enhancing and maximizing PDMPs: Existing evidence, though sparse, indicates the potential of PDMPs to identify patients at high risk of
overdose and to impact key prescribing behaviors. All applicants will be required to propose two or more activities to enhance use of PDMPs.
(2) Implementing community or insurer/health system interventions: This strategy targets two promising avenues for prevention: 1)
enhancing and empowering community-level prevention and 2) implementing insurer and health system improvements to reduce overdose risk.
For community interventions, activities include deploying and coordinating intensive prevention efforts in high-burden communities and
working with local health departments to disseminate analyses of prescribing and overdose trends. Insurer/health system interventions include
drug utilization review, prior authorization, quantity limits, and coordinated care. All applicants will be required to propose at least one activity
under this strategy (i.e., community and/or insurer/health system interventions).
(3) Evaluating existing policies designed to reduce prescription drug overdose morbidity and mortality: Understanding the effectiveness
of prescription drug overdose policies is crucial. Awardees can conduct evaluations of laws/policies/regulations designed to prevent
prescription drug overuse, misuse, abuse, and overdose.
(4) Developing and implementing Rapid Response Projects (RRPs): The prescription drug epidemic is fast moving. States can propose
small, innovative projects that do not fit into the above three strategies to break new ground on addressing the epidemic. For example, states
could use RRPs to build a new syndromic surveillance system or test a communication campaign. This strategy allows states to be nimble and
work collaboratively with other states and CDC in identifying priority actions and responding to emerging public health threats.

While the primary purpose of this funding is the prevention of prescription drug overdoses, CDC recognizes that the increase in heroin use and
overdose deaths in recent years is not unrelated to the unprecedented levels of prescription opioid exposure and abuse seen over the last decade. The
strategies outlined above present opportunities to advance surveillance and evaluation efforts to understand and respond to the increase in heroin
overdose deaths, especially at the intersection of prescription opioid abuse and heroin use. Funded states will track heroin morbidity and mortality as
an outcome of their work and have opportunities to evaluate policies with implications for preventing both prescription drug and heroin overdoses.

b. Statutory Authorities 

Section 301 (a) [42 U.S.C. 241a)] of the Public Health Service Act, and Section 391 (a) [42 U.S.C. 280 b (a)] of the Public Health Service Act

c. Healthy People 2020 

This FOA supports two Healthy People 2020 objectives: SA-12, to reduce drug-induced deaths and SA-19, to reduce the past-year nonmedical use
of prescription drugs.

d. Other National Public Health Priorities and Strategies 

  3 of 42

ttp://www.healthypeople.gov/2020/topicsobjectives2020/objectiveslist.aspx?topicId=40


  4 of 42



This FOA aligns with and supports the National Prevention Strategy (NPS) in several  ways: 1) addresses one of the seven priorities designated in
the NPS, i.e., Injury and Violence Free Living; 2) emphasizes engaging partners across disciplines, sectors, and institutions as an important factor in
significantly improving well-being; 3) supports state governments to facilitate collaboration among diverse sectors when making decisions to have a
significant effect on health; and 4) supports the NPS priority of Preventing Drug Abuse and Excessive Alcohol Use, which includes a
recommendation to reduce inappropriate access to and use of prescription drugs.
http://www.surgeongeneral.gov/initiatives/prevention/strategy/

e. Relevant Work 

CDC’s Injury Center is committed to directly strengthening state efforts to reduce and prevent prescription drug overuse, misuse, abuse, and
overdose through implementation and evaluation of strategies supported by promising research. This FOA builds on the 2014 FOA, Prescription
Drug Overdose: Boost for State Prevention, CDC-RFA-CE14-1404, or Prevention Boost. Also, through the Core Violence and Injury Prevention
Program ( Core VIPP) the Injury Center supports health departments to strengthen their general capacity to collect and use data to better understand
local injury issues and to put science into action to prevent injury; many of these states have identified PDO as a priority area for action.

2. CDC Project Description 

a. Approach 

Inputs Priority Strategies & Major
Activities

State-Level Outcomes

Funding
 

Surveillance
expertise

 
TA on policy &

program
development

 
Evaluation guidance

 
Dissemination of
best practices

Enhance and Maximize
PDMPs

Move toward universal
registration and use
Make PDMPs easier to
use and access
Move toward a
real-time PDMP (i.e.,
reduce data collection
interval)
Expand and improve
proactive (i.e.,
unsolicited) reporting
Conduct public health
surveillance with
PDMP data and
publicly disseminate

Short-Term 
Policy/Program Development

Intermediate-Term
Behavior Change

Long-Term
Health Outcomes

PDMPS
Reduced barriers to
PDMP registration and
use
Shorter data collection
interval
Increased rate of
unsolicited reports
Increased use of
standard PDMP reports
for surveillance

Providers
Increased registration
and use of PDMPs
Decreased rate of high
dose (>100 MME/day)
opioid prescribing
Increased treatment
referrals for opioid use
disorder
Increased use of
non-opioid therapies
for pain
Reduced problematic
drug co-prescribing
(e.g.,
opioid/benzodiazepines)

Decreased rates of opioid
abuse

 
Increased opioid  use disorder
treatment (ultimately want

decrease)
 

Decreased rate of ED visits
related to opioids

 
Decreased drug overdose
death rate, including both

opioid and heroin death rates
Improved health outcomes in

state "hot spots"
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

High-burden Communities
Implementation of
community level
interventions in state
"hot spots" 

Implement Community
or Insurer/Health System

Interventions
Provide technical
assistance to
high-burden
communities and
counties, especially
efforts to address
problematic
prescribing 
Implement opioid
prescribing
interventions for
insurers and/or health
systems
Enhance uptake of
evidence-based opioid
prescribing guidelines

Insurers & Health Systems
Expanded opioid
management programs
Implementation of
opioid prescribing
interventions
Expanded uptake and
use of evidence-based
opioid prescribing
guidelines

Patients
Decreased use of
multiple prescribers for
opioids

  5 of 42

http://www.surgeongeneral.gov/initiatives/prevention/strategy/
http://www.cdc.gov/injury/stateprograms


  6 of 42



 
 
 
 
 

*Note: all outcomes are
project period outcomes

Policy Evaluation
Conduct a rigorous
evaluation on a law,
policy, or regulation
designed to prevent
opioid overuse,
misuse, abuse, and
overdose

Indicators of system or
practice change

Evidence of
implementation of law,
policy or regulationRapid Response Project

Implement an RRP to
advance an innovative
prevention approach

Insurers & Health Systems
Decreased rate of high
dose (>100 MME/day)
opioid Rx
Increased use of claims
reviews to identify
high-risk prescribing
Increased # of patients
in opioid mgmt.
programs

Oversight/Enforcement
Increased enforcement
actions against outlier
providers
Decreased number of 
outlier pain clinics (“pill
mills”)

i. Purpose 

To provide states guidance and resources to prevent prescription drug overdoses by addressing problematic opioid prescribing. This funding lays out
four priority strategies that states may advance:1) enhance and maximize a state PDMP (required); (2) implement community or insurer/health
system interventions aimed at preventing prescription drug overdose and abuse (required); (3)  conduct policy evaluations (optional); and (4)
develop and implement Rapid Response Projects (optional). 
While the primary purpose of this funding is prescription drug overdose prevention, it also presents opportunities to advance surveillance and
evaluation efforts to respond to the increase in heroin overdose deaths.

ii. Outcomes 

Awardees are expected to implement activities that will impact relevant short and intermediate outcomes listed in the logic model.  The specific
short, intermediate, and long-term outcomes should be tailored to the work plan of strategies selected. 
All awardees should be positioned and are expected to impact long-term outcomes within four to six years or earlier after receiving funding,
regardless of the strategies chosen. These outcomes include:

decreased rate of opioid abuse
increased opioid use disorder treatment
decreased rate of emergency department (ED) visits due to misuse or abuse of controlled prescription drugs, and
decreased drug overdose death rate, including prescription opioid and heroin overdose death rates.

OUTCOMES FOR PRIORITY STRATEGY #1
For work under Priority Strategy #1,  enhance and maximize PDMPs, (see logic model) awardees are expected to demonstrate change in
short-term outcomes associated with the PDMP enhancements being implemented. Examples include:

Reduced barriers to registration and use
Shorter data collection interval
Increased rate of unsolicited reports
Increased timeliness and use of standard population-based PDMP reports for surveillance
Regular distribution of reports on surveillance metrics established by CDC.

Awardees are also to demonstrate change in intermediate behavior changes to some of the following provider and patient behaviors; for example:
Increased registration for and use of PDMPs

  7 of 42



  8 of 42



Decreased rate of high dose (>100 MME/day) opioid prescriptions
Increased use of non-opioid therapies for pain
Reduced problematic drug co-prescribing (e.g., opioids with benzodiazepines)
Decreased use of multiple prescribers for opioids

OUTCOMES FOR PRIORITY STRATEGY #2
For work under Priority Strategy #2,  implement community or insurer/health system interventions, (see logic model) awardees are expected to
demonstrate change in outcomes that show implementation of promising interventions.
Outcomes for community intervention include:

Identification of counties and communities with a high burden of drug overdose deaths
Expanded use of opioid prescribing guidelines in the EDs of high-burden areas
Improved local health department capacity for acquiring, analyzing, and disseminating drug overdose data
Decreases in opioid abuse, ED visits, overdoses, and other indicators in high-burden counties and localities.

For work on insurer/health system interventions, examples of outcomes include:
Implementation of opioid management programs (e.g., prior authorization for opioids used at dosages or durations that are not recommended,
drug utilization review, coordinated care programs, and patient review and restriction  (PRR) programs, aka ”Lock In”)
Enhancements in a drug utilization review program in a state health insurance program that screens prescription drug claims for problematic
prescribing and potential misuse (see, e.g., Proactive notification to providers of outlier prescribing as discussed in Betses M, Brennan T.
Abusive prescribing of controlled substances—a pharmacy view.  N Engl J Med 2013; 369:989-991.)
Implementation of improved drug formularies (e.g., removal of methadone as a preferred drug  for the treatment of pain)
Interventions and practices that expand access to medication assisted treatment
Expanded uptake of evidence-based opioid prescribing guideline  
Alignment of insurance incentives with evidence-based opioid prescribing guidelines (e.g. non-opioid therapies accessible and preferred for
conditions for which guidelines do not support opioids as first-line treatment; prior authorization for dosages that are not recommended)
Implementation of  programs that can enhance prescribing guideline adherence beyond incentives (e.g., implementation of health system
quality improvement programs to enhance guideline adherence)

In the intermediate term, awardees are also expected to demonstrate change in provider and patient behaviors; for example:
Decreased rate of high-dose opioid prescribing by providers;
Decreased rate of problematic drug combinations prescribing by providers;
Decreased rate of  multiple providers for opioid prescriptions;
Increased use of medication assisted treatment;
Increased use of drug utilization reviews to identify prescriptions that may put patients at increased risk for overdose
Increased use of insurance claims reviews to identify outlier providers
Increase in academic detailing or other provider outreach related to potentially risky prescribing based on drug utilization reviews; and
Decreased prescribing of methadone for pain.

OUTCOMES FOR PRIORITY STRATEGY #3
If chosen, the work under Priority Strategy #3, policy evaluation, (see logic model) awardees should conduct an evaluation of 
laws/policies/regulations designed to prevent prescription drug overuse, misuse, abuse, or overdose (e.g., pain clinic laws, naloxone access
policies)   to:

Assess and enhance the implementation of these initiatives (i.e., referred to quality improvement or process evaluation); and/or
Analyze the impact of the law on behaviors related to prescription drug overuse, misuse, abuse, or overdose and/or to prescription drug
overdose morbidity and mortality.

These evaluations should improve the effectiveness of a state’s prevention efforts by enhancing the implementation of current prevention efforts;
concentrating resources on prevention initiatives that are promising for reducing high-risk behaviors, morbidity, or mortality  associated with
prescription drug overdoses; understanding the impact of interventions on heroin use and overdose;  examining unintended consequences of
interventions; and reducing resources allocated to prevention initiatives found to have no or limited impact on targeted behavioral, morbidity, and
mortality outcomes. Short-term outcomes will include increased evidence of system or practice change—either positive or negative—as a result of
the studied policy’s implementation. Findings from evaluations across awardees may be used to identify best practices and highlight the most
effective interventions.
OUTCOMES FOR PRIORITY STRATEGY #4
If chosen, the work under Priority Strategy #4, develop and implement Rapid Response Projects, (see logic model)  awardees are expected to
implement initiatives not covered by Priority Strategy #1 (PDMP enhancement) or Priority Strategy #2 (implement community or insurer/health
system interventions). The description of the Rapid Response Project should specify clear implementation goals logically related to the Rapid
Response Project and developed in accordance with CDC. While short-term implementation outcomes may vary, the intermediate and long-term
outcomes to be addressed by these projects are expected to be largely consistent with those indicated in the logic model.

iii. Strategies and Activities 

This program requires work in certain areas, called “priority strategies,” but allows some flexibility and discretion in the specific activities chosen to
advance these strategies. This design is intentional: CDC wants awardees to advance work in prioritized, high-impact areas, but also wants to make
sure the program can be tailored to fit the state’s specific needs and capacities and be responsive to emerging concerns.
This funding lays out four priority strategies that states may advance; two of these strategies are required, two are optional.  The two required
strategies are:

1) Enhance and maximize a state PDMP and
2) Implement community or insurer/health system interventions aimed at preventing prescription drug overdose and abuse.

The two optional strategies are:
  9 of 42



  10 of 42



3) Conduct policy evaluations and/or
4) Develop and implement Rapid Response Projects.

These priority strategies are listed on the left hand side of the logic model. Under each of these priority strategies are bulleted “major activities” that
applicants can choose. Not all of these major activities need to be chosen, but CDC requires that a certain number of major activities be
implemented by the awardee, specifically:

Awardees must do at least two major activities under the PDMP priority strategy.
Awardees must do at least one major activity under the community or insurer/health system priority strategy.
Awardees may, but are not required to, choose one or more policies to evaluate under the policy evaluation strategy. 
Awardees may, but are not required to, choose a Rapid Response Project to develop and implement under the Rapid Response Project strategy.

Once priority strategies and major activities have been chosen, the applicant has significant discretion in how to advance these strategies and
activities.  The sub-activities provided for each major activity are suggestions on the type of work that can be done. Specific sub-activities are not
required — applicants can design their own plan for advancing the chosen priority strategies and major activities.
Please note: Program funds cannot be used for purchasing naloxone, implementing or expanding drug “take back” programs, or directly funding or
expanding substance abuse treatment programs. Such activities are outside the scope of this FOA.
 

PRIORITY STRATEGY 1:
ENHANCING AND MAXIMIZING PDMPS

Overview: PDMPs are foundational programs for reversing the epidemic. Their potential impact on clinical practice and public health surveillance
is critical to understanding and addressing the behaviors driving over-prescribing. The PDMP priority strategy is designed to advance three key
PDMP practices that can help reduce the overuse and misuse of prescription of opioids:

Real-time: The PDMP captures up-to-the-minute dispensing and provides near real-time data to clinicians and public health officials working
to prevent inappropriate prescribing.

1.

Universal use:  PDMPs should be reviewed by clinicians before writing prescriptions for opioids and other key controlled substances,2.
Actively managed: PDMP data should be used as a public health surveillance system to inform and evaluate interventions. 3.

CDC recognizes that not all states are ready, or have the legal authority, to achieve these aims. This program would enable states to make
incremental improvements toward these goals (e.g., streamlining registration, expanding the pool of providers with PDMP access, reducing data
collection interval to 24-hours, improving data management and reporting of key surveillance metrics).
Awardees must advance at least two of the major PDMP activities listed in the left-hand column below (also found in the logic model).
Priority Strategy 1:  ENHANCING AND MAXIMIZING PDMPS, Major Activities and Sub-Activities

Major Activities 
Applicants must pick at
least 2 of these major
activities. 

Recommended Sub-Activities:
Below CDC has listed some recommended sub-activities applicants can engage in to advance chosen PDMP
strategies. These sub-activities are not required; applicants can choose from the recommended sub-activities or
applicants can propose actions that are not listed below if they still advance the selected strategy—please provide
detail on how these actions support the strategy.

Move toward universal
PDMP registration and use

Streamline and simplify PDMP registration process.

Build PDMP information systems to support universal registration and use.

Develop and disseminate information to aid in universal registration and use.

Other  sub-activities as needed to advance universal registration and use.

Make PDMPs easier to use
and access
 

Review and rectify barriers to data sharing between PDMPs and EHRs.

Expand pool of healthcare professionals permitted to access PDMP data, including delegates who can obtain
PDMP data on behalf of a PDMP provider.

Expand access to PDMPs via a health information exchange.

Expand access to PDMPs via an interstate exchange.

 Support PDMP training efforts in high-burden regions.

Other actions as needed to make PDMPs easier to use and access.

Move toward a real-time
PDMP (i.e., reduce the
data collection interval)

Improving PDMP infrastructure or information systems to support reduced data collection intervals

Developing and disseminating information or guidance to aid in reducing the PDMP data collection interval

Other sub-activities as needed to reduce PDMP data collection interval.

Expand and improve
proactive (i.e., unsolicited)
reporting
 

Designing, validating, or refining algorithms for identifying high-risk prescribing activity to use as a trigger for
proactive reports.

Improving PDMP infrastructure or information systems to support proactive reporting and data analysis.

Developing and disseminating information or guidance to aid in proactive reporting.

Enhancing reporting system to increase frequency and quality of reporting.

  11 of 42



  12 of 42



Other sub-activities as needed to expand or improve proactive and unsolicited reporting about both patients and
providers.

Conduct public health
surveillance with PDMP
data and publicly
disseminate reports
quarterly or semi-annually
on CDC-directed metrics
[1]
 

Developing and disseminating guidance on the use of PDMP data for public health surveillance.

Improving PDMP infrastructure or information systems to support PDMP use as a public health surveillance system.

Implementing strategies that improve linkage of prescription records for each consumer (e.g., software
enhancements).

Linking PDMP data to health outcomes data, e.g., overdose emergency department visits, vital records or medical
claims data on patient diagnoses.

 Collect, disseminate, and analyze county and community level PDMP data and facilitate the use of PDMP data by
county and local health departments.

Establishing working relationships (e.g., by developing memorandums of understanding or data use agreements)
between PDMPs and other state agencies or community organizations.

Other sub-activities as needed to expand or maximize PDMPs as a surveillance system.

[1] Awardees using PDMPs for public health surveillance will be required, to the extent permissible under their state's law: to publically report the
following five indicators: (1) Decrease in the percent of patients receiving more than an average daily dose of >100 morphine milligram equivalents
(across all opioid prescriptions); (2) Decrease in the rate of multiple provider episodes for prescription opioids (5 or more prescribers and 5 or more
pharmacies in a 6-month period) per 100,000 residents; (3) decrease in the percent of patients prescribed long-acting/extended-release opioids who
were opioid-naïve (i.e., have not taken prescription opioids in 60 days); (4) decrease in percent of prescribed days overlap between opioid
prescriptions; and (5) decrease in percent of prescribed opioid days that overlap with benzodiazepine prescriptions. These metrics can be generated
with SAS programs developed by CDC and its partner the Brandeis University PDMP Center of Excellence; CDC can provide the SAS programs to
awardees pursuing this activity.
 

PRIORITY STRATEGY 2:
IMPLEMENTING COMMUNITY OR INSURER/HEALTH SYSTEM INTERVENTIONS

Overview:  This strategy targets two promising avenues for prevention: enhancing and empowering local and community-level prevention and
implementing insurer/health system improvements designed to reduce overdose risk.
The severity of the prescription drug overdose epidemic can vary widely throughout a state, and there are many opportunities for enhancing
prevention at the county and local level. This program presents states the opportunity to engage community partners and implement
community-level interventions in state “hot spots”. By equipping high-burden communities with promising, evidence-informed, data-driven
prevention, states can focus resources and efforts within the communities most impacted by the epidemic. As noted above, program funds cannot be
used for purchasing naloxone, implementing drug “take back” programs, or directly funding or expanding substance abuse treatment programs.
Such activities are outside the scope of this FOA.
In addition to the community partnerships and interventions captured by this strategy, insurance programs and health systems present critical
opportunities for prevention. States run some of the largest insurance programs (e.g., Medicaid, workers compensation) and have access to important
levers that can improve controlled substance prescribing in these programs. States can also exercise influence over local and community health
system practices. This priority strategy will support state strategies to improve prescribing in their roles as major public insurers and health care
leaders to implement effective strategies. Promising insurer and health system interventions include pain management programs for long-term
opioid patients, drug claim screening for outlier prescribing, and quality improvement programs to enhance guideline adherence (e.g., academic
detailing).
Awardees must advance at least one of the major activities in the left hand column below, also found in the logic model. States do not have to
advance both a community intervention and an insurer/health system intervention—they may choose just one major activity to advance. 
Priority Strategy 2:  IMPLEMENTING COMMUNITY OR INSURER/HEALTH SYSTEM INTERVENTIONS, Major Activities and
Sub-Activities

Major activities:
Awardees must select at least 1 of these
major activities. 

 

Recommended Sub-Activities:
Listed below are some recommended sub-activities to engage in to advance the chosen Insurer or
Health System major activities. These sub-activities are not required; awardees can choose from the
recommended sub-activities or propose sub-activities that are not listed below if they still advance the
selected strategy—please detail how they do so. 

Identify and provide technical assistance
to high-burden communities and
counties, especially efforts to address
problematic prescribing 

Create a multidisciplinary data-focused group convening players from local public health and law
enforcement to prevent prescription opioid abuse and overdose, especially by focusing on
prescribing.  For an example, see, New York City’s RxStat initiative, as described in  Heller D, Bradley
O’Brien D, Harocopos A, Hreno J, Lerner J, McCoy EB, Nolan M, Phillips Lum P, Tuazon E, Parker C,
Kunins H, Paone D. RxStat: Technical Assistance Manual. 2014, New York City, available at  http://www
.pdmpassist.org/pdf/RxStat.pdf.

Build local health department capacity to develop and disseminate accessible analyses of local
prescribing and mortality trends (e.g., by press release)  to facilitate pickup by local media.

Coordinate intensive prevention efforts aimed at high-burden counties or sub-state regions with an
emphasis on addressing problematic prescribing.

  13 of 42

http://www.pdmpassist.org/pdf/RxStat.pdf.
http://www.pdmpassist.org/pdf/RxStat.pdf.


  14 of 42



Implement or improve opioid prescribing
interventions for insurers, health
systems, or pharmacy benefit managers 

Implement or enhance a program that moves toward alignment of opioid prescribing with guidelines,
using effective insurance levers such as prior authorization for prescriptions that are outside of
recommended dosages or durations.

Create or expand academic detailing for outlier opioid prescribers; implement program for sending
proactive notification to prescribers when their prescribing deviates significantly from other
prescribers in the program.

Set up, implement, or enhance a Coordinated Care Program for patients on chronic opioid therapy
(e.g., Group Health’s Chronic Opioid Therapy Safety Guideline). These programs would re-evaluate
effectiveness of opioid therapy in meeting patients’ goals for pain relief and improved function, offer
non-opioid pain therapy (e.g., non-opioid medication, cognitive-behavioral therapy, physical therapy),
offer tapering for patients on high-dose opioids, and offer opioid use disorder treatment or referral
when appropriate.

Set up, implement, or enhance Patient Review and Restriction Program (or PRR, also called a “Lock In”
Program). While these programs are most frequently found in Medicaid programs, awardees can also
use this funding to create a program in another type of insurance program (e.g., Workers
Compensation).

Design, validate, refine, and then apply algorithms or metrics for inappropriate prescribing or high-risk
patient behaviors using a health system or insurer’s own data. These metrics or algorithms would then
be used by the insurer or health system to trigger mechanisms to prevent inappropriate prescribing or
otherwise protect patients.

Drug claim screening for outlier controlled substance prescribers and  targeted efforts to increase use
by insurers/health systems of these reports.

Other sub-activities to implement or improve opioid prescribing interventions for insurers, health
systems, or pharmacy benefit managers

Enhance uptake of evidence-based
opioid prescribing guidelines

Awardees can use this funding to enhance uptake of evidence-based opioid prescribing guidelines. For
example, awardees could engage in efforts to enhance guideline-concordant care (e.g., quality
improvement programs, such as use of academic detailing); and effective dissemination of
information about the guidelines to providers, health systems, insurers, or pharmacy benefit
managers, particularly in high burden areas of the state

 
PRIORITY STRATEGY 3:

POLICY EVALUATION
Overview:  Awardees may choose to evaluate laws, policies, or regulations designed to address prescription drug overuse, misuse, abuse, and
overdose.  Awardees are expected to clearly articulate the policy or policies to be evaluated, use qualitative and quantitative approaches to analyze
the results, and engage in active dissemination of the findings. The evaluation of laws, policies, or regulations should include both process
evaluation (to examine the implementation of the law/policy/regulation) and outcome evaluation (to examine the law/policy/regulation’s impact on
a health metric outcome, such as prescribing rates or emergency department visits). Evaluations that consider the economic costs and benefits of
laws, policies, and regulations are also of interest. CDC will work closely with awardees to develop protocols for policy evaluation. Dissemination
efforts should focus on improving implementation of current initiatives based on process evaluation findings and expanding knowledge of 
effective and ineffective approaches to improve prioritization of high-impact interventions.
Priority Strategy 3:  POLICY EVALUATION, Major Activities and Sub-Activities

Major Activities for Policy Evaluation
 

Recommended laws, policies, or regulations  applicants  can evaluate (sub-activities)
Applicants may pick one or more policies, regulations, laws, or practices to evaluate. 

Conduct a rigorous evaluation on a law,
policy, or regulation designed to prevent
opioid overuse, misuse, abuse, and
overdose

Evaluate existing PDMP practices: For example,  awardees can evaluate the implementation and impact
of universal use requirements, real-time reporting, proactive use, etc.

Existing health insurer or health system policies or practices:  Awardees can evaluate the
implementation and impact of health insurer or health system policies

Examining the impact of laws, policies, and regulations on heroin use and overdose

Other laws, policies, or regulations, including, but not limited to:
Pain clinic laws and regulations
Public or private payer policies that may serve as barriers to medication assisted treatment
access (MAT) (e.g. duration limits on buprenorphine for substance use disorder) or facilitators of
MAT Healthcare licensure board policies and actions
Naloxone access laws
Impact of state efforts to increase the number of providers who are waivered to prescribe
buprenorphine, such as release of specific state guidance regarding office-based buprenorphine
use for opioid use disorder 
Laws that provide for immunity for those seeking medical assistance following an overdose

 

  15 of 42



  16 of 42



 
PRIORITY STRATEGY 4:

RAPID RESPONSE PROJECT
Overview: The prescription drug epidemic is fast moving—new interventions can arise; the effectiveness of existing programs can be reevaluated;
and new problems, like heroin, can emerge. Under this optional strategy, states can propose to implement Rapid Response Project (RRP)
throughout the course of the award that do not fit into the above three strategies to break new ground on addressing the epidemic. For example,
states could use RRPs to build a new syndromic surveillance system; test a communication campaign; or facilitate intradepartmental data sharing,
review and analysis to address opioid overdoses.
Applicants interested in this strategy do not need to submit an initial RRP proposal in the application, though they may propose potential RRP ideas
that would be examined further during the funding period. Applicants selecting the RRP strategy would take the first year of the funding period to
develop a plan for identifying RRPs throughout the course of the award. This would include working with internal (e.g., state, community) and
external (e.g., other states, CDC) stakeholders and partners to develop a process to assess needs, detect emerging concerns, propose RRPs, and plan
for RRP implementation. In year 1, up to 10% of the year’s funding can be used for the RRP planning process. CDC intends to work closely with
the awardee to develop RRPs; all RRPs are subject to CDC approval. In each year of years 2-4, the applicant would submit the RRP plan to CDC in
the Annual Performance Report/continuation application for approval. The applicant could use up to 10% of project funding each year to implement
RRPs in years 2-4 of the project period. RRPs could be conducted for single years or multiple years depending on emerging concerns, aims, and
scope.
To recap, this is how the program is structured: 

Priority Strategies Major Activities Sub-Activities

These are the four major categories of work supported
by this funding: (1) PDMPs; (2) community
or insurer/health system interventions; (3) policy
evaluation; and (4) Rapid Response Projects. 
Awardees must do work supporting (1) and (2);
awardees may also choose (3) and/or (4), but are not
required to. 

These are the specific activities that awardees
can choose from to advance the priority
strategies.  Awardees must choose two or
more major activities for PDMPs and one or
more for community or insurer/health
systems interventions.  Awardees may choose
none, one, or more major activities for the
other two priority strategies.  

These are recommended activities
awardees can do to advance chosen
major activities. These are not
required—just suggestions on things
that can be done.

1.Collaborations 

Collaborations are a vital part of this work; no single player can address all the levers that impact prescribing and drug overdoses. Success in this
work is not possible without effective collaboration with key stakeholders.  Below are both required and optional collaborations.

a. With CDC-funded programs: 

Awardees are required to collaborate with CDC to improve technical and program guidance and conduct evaluations. Awardees will also be
expected to work with CDC staff to identify and develop success stories arising from their program.
Here are some collaborations to address in the application, as applicable:

States with Core VIPP Funding: Awardees currently receiving funding under CDC’s Core Violence and Injury Prevention Program (Core
VIPP) must meet quarterly with the Core VIPP point of contact in the state health department to coordinate program activities where possible.
Core VIPP Regional Networks: The Core VIPP Regional Networks provide a structure for cross-state collaboration and assistance to all
states within their designated regions on a variety of injury and violence prevention topics. Awardees are encouraged but not required to be
active participants of their Regional Network and provide information and technical assistance about their PDO program.
Other States Awarded Under this Announcement and Prevention Boost States:  Awardees are encouraged but not required to collaborate
and share information and findings with other states awarded under this announcement and/or with states currently funded under the
Prescription Drug Overdose: Prevention Boost FOA (CDC-RFA-CE14-1404).
Injury Control Research Centers: Injury Control Research Centers (ICRCs) conduct research in all three core phases of injury control
(prevention, acute care, and rehabilitation) and serve as training centers as well as information centers for the public.  ICRCs are great sources
of research knowledge and other resources for state programs and awardees are encouraged but not required to collaborate with any of the
ICRCs across the nation.

b. With organizations external to CDC: 

Applicants Must Show Engagement with Law Enforcement
The prescription drug overdose epidemic has major implications for both public health and law enforcement. Success in reducing prescription drug
overdoses requires coordination and engagement between these two sectors. Applicants must demonstrate this engagement with law enforcement.

Applicants must provide a Letter of Support (LOS) from a state-level law enforcement authority in their state.
The LOS must show that the law enforcement authority supports the application and agrees to regular meetings to support and coordinate
activities.

Applicants Must Show Engagement with the State Substance Abuse Services Authority
State substance abuse services authorities are important partners in this effort. Applicants must demonstrate coordination and engagement with the
state substance abuse services authority.

Applicants must provide a Letter of Support (LOS) from the state substance abuse services authority in their state.
The LOS must show that the state substance abuse services authority supports the application and agrees to regular meetings to support and
coordinate activities.

Applicants Must Show Collaboration with Certain Key Partners
Applicants must demonstrate support from other key authorities involved in their work. Who these authorities are depends on which Priority
  17 of 42



  18 of 42



Applicants must demonstrate support from other key authorities involved in their work. Who these authorities are depends on which Priority
Strategies are being pursued. Because all applicants must do work on Priority Strategy #1 (PDMPs), applicants must demonstrate support from the
state PDMP authorities. Applicants must provide additional LOSs depending on the other priority strategies they are advancing. 
Priority Strategy #1: Enhancing and Maximizing PDMPs:

All applicants must provide a Letter of Support (LOS) from the PDMP authority in their state.
The LOS must show that the PDMP authority supports the application, agrees to quarterly meetings to support and coordinate activities, and
how the PDMP authority will facilitate proposed activities for enhancing and maximizing the state’s PDMP.
Applicants may provide any other materials (e.g., MOUs, LOS from other entities) that demonstrate collaborations that will make the work in
this area stronger.
Please note, applicants who receive funding under the Harold Rogers Prescription Drug Monitoring Program from the Bureau of Justice
Assistance will be expected to coordinate activities under the two programs and communicate with CDC what activities they are engaging in
with the BJA funding. However, no LOS or other documentation is required for the application.

Priority Strategy #2: Implementing Community or Insurer/Health System Interventions:
Applicants advancing insurer/health system work under Priority Strategy #2 must provide a LOS from the entity where the work is focused. 
For example,if the applicant proposes to create an opioid management program for the state Medicaid program it should provide an LOS from
the Medicaid authority. If improving an element of the Workers’ Compensation program, it should provide an LOS from the Workers’
Compensation authority. If the applicant is working in partnership with a particular health system or insurance program (e.g., integrating
and/or disseminating evidence-based opioid prescribing guidelines), the applicant should include an LOS from that system or program.
The LOS must demonstrate the authority’s support, agreement to quarterly meetings, and explanation of how the state authority will facilitate
the proposed activities.
Applicants implementing community interventions under Priority Strategy #2 may provide any materials (e.g., MOUs, LOS from local health
departments) that demonstrate collaborations that will make this work stronger and more impactful, but are not required to do so. 
Applicants may provide any other materials (e.g., MOUs, LOS from other entities) that demonstrate collaborations that will make the work in
this area stronger.

Priority Strategy #3: Policy Evaluation
Applicants proposing work under this Priority Strategy must provide a LOS from agencies that maintain access to relevant data the state will
be using for evaluation. For example, provide an LOS from the state medical board or Medicaid agency if their data is to be used in an
evaluation. The LOS must indicate the agency’s support and intention to share data with the awardee for evaluation purposes.
Applicants may provide any other materials (e.g., MOUs, LOS from other entities) that demonstrate collaborations that will make the work in
this area stronger.

Priority Strategy #4:  Develop and Implement a Rapid Response Project
No materials are required; however, applicants may provide any materials (e.g., MOUs, LOS from other entities) that demonstrate
collaborations that will make the work in this area stronger.

Applicants Are Encouraged to Show Other Relevant Collaborations
Regardless of the strategies selected, applicants are strongly encouraged to describe other strategic partnerships and collaborations with
organizations that have a role in achieving the FOA outcomes and proposed activities (e.g., state boards of medicine, boards of pharmacy, substance
abuse and mental health agencies, local businesses, medical organizations).

2. Target Populations 

Applicants must describe how the interventions initiated, improved or evaluated target high-risk groups of clinicians and patients to achieve the
greatest health impact. Awardees should use data to identify groups within their jurisdiction or community that are disproportionately contributing to
or affected by the public health problem, and plan activities to reduce or eliminate disparities. Disparities by race, ethnicity, gender, age, geography,
socioeconomic status, and other relevant dimensions should be considered.

a. Inclusion 

Applicants should address how the program will be inclusive of specific populations who can benefit from proposed strategies. These populations
include groups such as providers and patients in rural areas, populations with low socio-economic status, or patients covered under state insurance
mechanisms (e.g., Medicaid), or other populations that might be otherwise missed by promising strategies.

iv. Funding Strategy (for multi-component FOAs only) 

N/A

b. Evaluation and Performance Measurement 

i. CDC Evaluation and Performance Measurement Strategy 

Evaluation and performance measurement help demonstrate achievement of program outcomes, build a stronger evidence base for specific program
interventions, clarify applicability of the evidence to different populations and settings, drive continuous program quality improvement, and identify
and articulate successes achieved to inform other states’ efforts. Evaluation and performance measurement can also determine if program strategies
are scalable and effective at reaching target populations.  
Awardees will develop an evaluation plan for the primary purpose of local evaluation and program improvement. Awardees are expected to
participate in a CDC-sponsored cross-site evaluation by sharing local data already collected for state program enhancement purposes. CDC will not
direct local data collection efforts, but will provide suggestions and support for implementation of their evaluation plans. Please see the CDC
Evaluation and Performance Measurement Strategy section below for more detail.
CDC Evaluation and Performance Measurement Strategy:

  19 of 42



  20 of 42



This section presents example measures that CDC will use to track the implementation of awardee strategies and activities (process evaluation) and
examples of how CDC will determine progress on achieving the project period outcomes (outcome evaluation).
In many cases, data used for performance measurement are administrative data that already exist within states. In some cases, states may propose to
collect new data to allow for outcome measurement depending on the strategies selected.
This FOA’s Logic Model shows the expected outcomes of this program. States are expected to see short-term policy and program developments
around PDMPs, high-burden communities, insurers/health systems, and indicators of system or practice change. Which short-term changes states
should expect to see depends on the specific priority strategies they select and the activities they advance. 
In the intermediate term, states are expected to see impacts on key behaviors that drive the epidemic among providers, patients, high-burden
communities, and insurers/health systems. In the long-term, states should expect changes in health outcomes—including rates of opioid abuse and
treatment, opioid-related ED visits, and overdose deaths.
Process and Outcome Performance Measures
To understand why an outcome did or did not occur, it is critical to capture process or implementation outcomes as well. An analysis that includes
both process and outcome measures is necessary to determine what is working well and what may need to change in order to get to impact.
To show how to measure performance over the course of the funding, below CDC has provided example measures for process and outcome
evaluation. These are offered to give applicants an understanding of the scope and breadth of implementation and outcome evaluation related to this
FOA.
These example measures are neither comprehensive nor final. CDC will work with awardees in the first year of the project to discuss and finalize
performance measures. Awardees will be expected to report their performance measures at least annually and preferably on a semi-annual basis. For
specific reporting requirements, refer to section F.3.b “Annual Performance Report” and F.3.c “Performance Measure Reporting” later in this FOA.
Awardees will track and report on appropriate process measures for the strategies and activities they have undertaken. These measures are to help
track the implementation of strategies and their component activities. CDC will work with awardees in the six months following award to finalize
these measures
Example Process (Implementation) Performance Measures

 Strategy Example Process Performance Measures

Enhance and Maximize
PDMPs

Was there improved efficiency of the PDMP registration process?
Were there increases in access to PDMP, for example, increases in the number or types of healthcare professionals
with access PDMP data?
Were there reductions in PDMP data collection intervals?
Did improvements to the PDMP infrastructure or information systems improve proactive reporting?
Did the enhancements to the reporting system increase frequency and quality of reporting?
Were there linkages made between PDMP data and health outcome data?

Implementing
Community or
Insurer/Health System
Interventions 

Was there an increase in local health department capacity to develop and disseminate analyses of local prescribing
and mortality trends?
Was there an increase in the number or scope of academic detailing for outlier opioid prescribers?
Was there an increase in the number of proactive notifications sent to outlier prescribers?
Was there an increase in the number of patients enrolled in Patient Review and Restriction programs?

Policy Evaluation
 

Was the implementation of the selected policy evaluated (e.g., observation checklists or logs, record reviews, list of
barriers and facilitators to implementation, documentation of completion of steps in CDC Framework for Program
Evaluation)?
Was there an outcome evaluation conducted related to the impact of the selected policy?
Was a comprehensive evaluation report generated, integrating information from the implementation and outcome
evaluation?

Rapid ResponseProject Were internal and external stakeholders and partners convened to develop a process to identify RRPs?
Was an RRP identified and developed?

 
Grantees will track and report on outcome measures for the outcomes they are being held accountable for.  These measures are to help measure
progress on achievement of the accountable outcomes.
The table below lists example outcome measures for selected outcomes in some of the categories of short-term, intermediate-term, and long-term
outcomes. CDC will work with awardees in the six months following award to finalize these measures for all relevant outcomes.
Example Short and Intermediate Term Outcomes and Measures

EXAMPLE SHORT –TERM OUTCOMES
Policy/Program Development

Example Outcome Example Outcome Measure/Indicator

Reduced barriers to PDMP registration and use Expanded list of providers able to use PDMP
Reduction in amount of time and number of steps required
to register for PDMP

Implementation of community level interventions in state “hot spots” Execution of data sharing and use agreements between
local partners and agencies

  21 of 42



  22 of 42



Expanded opioid management programs Increase in the number of claims reviews conducted  to
identify high-risk prescribing (e.g., high-dose opioids,
opioids from multiple prescribers for same patient,
opioids co-prescribed with benzodiazepines)
Increased projected patient capacity for opioid
management programs

EXAMPLE INTERMEDIATE-TERM OUTCOMES
Behavior Change 

 Example Outcome  Example Outcome Measure/Indicator

Increased registration and use of PDMP Increase in the number/percent of providers and dispensers
registered in PDMP

Decreased rate of high dose (>100 MME/day) opioid Rx Increase in the percentage of providers who check the
PDMP the first time an opioid pain reliever prescription is
written for a patient

Decreased use of multiple prescribers for opioids Percent of patients receiving more than an average daily
dose of >100 morphine milligram equivalents (across all
opioid prescriptions)*

Decreased prescribing of long acting/extended release opioids for patients who
are opioid-naïve (i.e., have not taken prescription opioids in 60 days)

Rate of multiple provider episodes for prescription opioids
(5 or more prescribers and 5 or more pharmacies in a
6-month period) per 100,000 residents*

Reduced instance of opioid prescription overlap Decrease in the percent of patients prescribed
long-acting/extended-release (LA/ER) opioids who were
opioid-naïve (i.e., have not taken prescription opioids in
60 days)*

Reduced overlap of opioid prescriptions with benzodiazepine prescriptions. Percent of prescribed days overlap between opioid
prescriptions*

Improvements in key provider and patient behaviors in high-burden areas of state E.g., decreased rate of high dose opioid prescribing,
decreased number of outlier providers, decreased patient
use of multiple providers for opioids

Increased use of claims reviews to identify high-risk prescribing Number of claim reviews to identify outlier prescribing

Increased number of patients in opioid management programs Number of patients actively enrolled in program

 * Can be generated with SAS programs that CDC will provide to awardees. Awardees will be expected to provide this information.

 
Long-term Health Outcomes
To assess the long-term impact of awardees’ activities on the health of their residents, awardees will be required to calculate and report to CDC
seven health outcomes each year:

Rate/number of emergency department (ED) visits related to acute poisonings associated with the effects of opioid analgesics.1.
Rate/number of emergency department (ED) visits related to heroin poisoning.2.
Rate/number of ED visits related to acute poisonings due to the effects of drugs.3.
Age-adjusted mortality rate of fatalities related to acute poisonings associated with the effects of opioid analgesics.4.
Age-adjusted mortality rate of fatalities related to heroin.5.
Age-adjusted mortality rate of fatalities related to acute poisonings associated with the effects of prescription drugs.6.
Age-adjusted mortality rate of fatalities related to acute poisonings due to the effects of drugs.7.

Awardees are strongly encouraged to collect more timely information by tracking quarterly the rate/number of ED visits related to drug overdoses
(e.g., syndromic surveillance) or death certificates.
Information on how to calculate the indicators will be provided to awardees and finalized during the first year of funding, in consultation with
awardees.
Cross-Site National Evaluation  
For the cross-site evaluation (as resources permit), CDC and any contracted agents will lead the design, work and collaborate with awardees to
identify research questions, coordinate data collection/submission, oversee analysis, and disseminate findings to awardees and other key
stakeholders. Awardees are expected to participate in and provide administrative data for a cross-site national evaluation of the program. It is
anticipated that awardees will share data sources (e.g., de-identified aggregate PDMP data, claims data) with CDC to assist in evaluation efforts.
Evaluators within state programs are expected to collaborate with CDC and contracted evaluators to identify evaluation questions based on selected
strategies, share data sources, and implement cross-site evaluation activities. The CDC evaluation team will use the CDC Framework for Program
Evaluation in Public Health ( http://www.cdc.gov/eval/framework/index.htm) to assist in designing the evaluation strategy.
The cross-site evaluation will consider both process and outcome measures for all four priority strategies. The evaluation will assess the progress of
each awardee and determine the feasibility and utility of a cross-awardee comparisons (i.e., what common activities can be compared across
  23 of 42

http://www.cdc.gov/eval/framework/index.htm


  24 of 42



each awardee and determine the feasibility and utility of a cross-awardee comparisons (i.e., what common activities can be compared across
awardees). Results from the cross-site evaluation will support continuous quality improvement for the program, contribute to the evidence about
effective practices to reduce prescription drug overdose morbidity and mortality, document and share lessons learned to support replication of
successful interventions, and inform future funding opportunities at CDC.

ii. Applicant Evaluation and Performance Measurement Plan 

Applicants must provide an Evaluation and Performance Measurement Plan that is consistent with the CDC Evaluation and Performance
Measurement Strategy section of the CDC Project Description of this FOA.  Data collected must be used for ongoing monitoring of the award to
evaluate its effectiveness, and for continuous program improvement.
The Evaluation and Performance Measurement plan must:

Be no more than 25 pages (excluding tables and diagrams)
Be organized around the selected priority strategies 1-4.
Describe the type of evaluations (i.e., process, outcome, or both).
Describe key evaluation questions to be addressed by these evaluations.
Describe indicators, data sources (specifying if administrative data already exists or if new/primary data collection is necessary), and
frequency of data collection. Collection and sharing of timely (i.e., within one year) aggregate morbidity and mortality data is of particular
interest and importance.
Describe how key program partners will participate in the evaluation and performance measurement planning processes.
Describe how evaluation findings will be used for continuous program quality improvement.
Describe the dissemination channels (including public ones) and audiences for performance measures and evaluation findings.
Affirm ability to collect the performance measures and respond to the evaluation questions specified in the CDC strategy.  (For guidance
regarding the Paperwork Reduction Act, please visit (http://www.hhs.gov/ocio/policy/collection/infocollectfaq.html)

When preparing an evaluation and performance measurement plan it is important to keep in mind resource considerations, how results will be
disseminated, and how results will be used.
Resources.  Resource considerations affect scope and level of effort.  For example:

What resources are available to conduct the evaluation?
How will you prioritize your evaluation questions/activities given the resources you have available?
What data are available to you/are you already collecting?
How often will data be collected?
Who is responsible for collecting the data?

Dissemination.  It is important to know how you will share your evaluation findings with your stakeholders, and how these findings will be used.
Referring back to your evaluation goals can help you focus your dissemination activities. Was your goal to evaluate your program for the purpose
of improving it, or was the purpose of your evaluation to show the impact of your activities on selected outcomes? The answers to these questions,
and the ones below, can help you organize your plan for disseminating and using your evaluation findings.

Who are your audiences—both internal and external? (e.g., project team, coalition members, state public health department, state decision
makers, community members, potential funders, etc.)
How will you disseminate the evaluation findings to your audiences (e.g., presentation at a meeting, brief fact sheet/summary of findings,
comprehensive report, weekly program improvement meetings, overview of findings on a website, etc.)?
Who will develop these dissemination materials and/or present your evaluation findings to key stakeholders? 
Please refer to http://www.cdc.gov/dhdsp/docs/Evaluation_Reporting_Guide.pdf for more information on how to ensure use of evaluation
findings.

Use. A goal of any evaluation is to ensure that the findings are used by the stakeholders. Writing the report is not the end point or the final step in
the evaluation process. To ensure use of evaluation findings, work must continue beyond completing a final report. 

What are your plans for using evaluation findings? (e.g., program improvement, generating stakeholder buy-in, demonstrating impact, etc.)
How, where, and when will the findings be used?
Who will use these findings?
How will you monitor the use of these findings?

Awardees will be required to submit a more detailed Evaluation and Performance Measurement Plan within the first six months of the project, as
outlined in the reporting section of this FOA.

c. Organizational Capacity of Awardees to Execute the Approach 

Applicants need to demonstrate the capacity to complete all activities proposed. “Organizational capacity” demonstrates the applicant’s ability to
successfully execute the FOA strategies and meet project outcomes. Applicants should have adequate infrastructure (physical space and equipment),
workforce capacity and competence, relevant skill sets, information and data systems, and electronic information and communication systems to
implement the award.
Applicants must describe their organizational capacity to carry out the strategies and activities proposed. Please describe:

Prior knowledge and experience working with the strategies selected.
Proven ability to collect data at a population level and use data to demonstrate impact.
Experience with planning and implementing programs state-level and/or statewide.
Experience with evaluating programs state-level and/or statewide.

Specifically, the applying organization should have existing staff with expertise in  program implementation, surveillance, program and
performance management, evaluation, policy and management of travel and program requirements, and the full capability to manage the required
award. Applicants should identify a qualified  evaluator who will conduct evaluation activities within the state and collaborate with the CDC
evaluation team. Please document these capabilities with résumés of key staff.

  25 of 42

http://www.hhs.gov/ocio/policy/collection/infocollectfaq.html
http://www.cdc.gov/dhdsp/docs/Evaluation_Reporting_Guide.pdf


  26 of 42



d. Work Plan 

Applicants must prepare a detailed work plan for the first year of the award and a high-level plan for subsequent years. If funded, CDC will provide
feedback and technical assistance to help finalize the work plan post-award.
Applicants must name this file “Work Plan” and upload it as a PDF file on www.grants.gov.
Applicants should organize the work plan according to the Priority Strategies being advanced and the Major Activities selected. The work plan at a
minimum should:

Describe major activities and sub-activities to be conducted to meet the program outcomes for each of the chosen priority strategies.1.
Include a single, state-specific Logic Model describing the comprehensive approach being proposed to work toward the outcomes specified on
the overall CDC program logic model.

2.

List objectives that are Specific, Measurable, Achievable, Relevant, and Time-phased (SMART) during the first 12-month budget period. The
applicant should also develop a long-term work plan of overarching goals that will be accomplished over the entire cooperative agreement
project cycle.

3.

Describe possible barriers to or facilitators for reaching each objective.4.
Provide a timeline that identifies key activities and assigns approximate dates for inception and completion.5.
Describe the multi-sector collaboration that will be formed to assist in carrying out the proposed activities.6.
Describe staff and administrative roles and functions to support implementation of the award, including evaluation functions.7.
Explain administration and assessment processes to ensure successful implementation and quality assurance.8.
Explain how lessons learned will be translated and disseminated (e.g., through publications, presentations).9.

e. CDC Monitoring and Accountability Approach 
Monitoring activities include routine and ongoing communication between CDC and awardees, site visits, and awardee reporting (including work
plans, performance, and financial reporting). Consistent with applicable grants regulations and policies, CDC expects the following to be included in
post-award monitoring for grants and cooperative agreements:

Tracking awardee progress in achieving the desired outcomes.
Ensuring the adequacy of awardee systems that underlie and generate data reports.
Creating an environment that fosters integrity in program performance and results.

Monitoring may also include the following activities:
Ensuring that work plans are feasible based on the budget and consistent with the
intent of the award.
Ensuring that awardees are performing at a sufficient level to achieve outcomes within stated timeframes.
Working with awardees on adjusting the work plan based on achievement of outcomes, evaluation results and changing budgets.
Monitoring performance measures (both programmatic and financial) to assure satisfactory performance levels.

Other activities deemed necessary to monitor the award, if applicable.
These activities may include monitoring and reporting activities that assist grants management staff (e.g., grants management officers and
specialists, and project officers) in the identification, notification, and management of high-risk grantees.

Applicant’s budget must include travel for two to four staff to a two-day kickoff meeting at CDC’s National Center for Injury Prevention and
Control in Atlanta, GA at the beginning of the first-year of the project. All awardees will attend this meeting. For the second, third, and fourth years
of the project period, the budget should include annual reverse site visits for two program staff to visit Atlanta and meet with CDC staff.

f. CDC Program Support to Awardees (THIS SECTION APPLIES ONLY TO COOPERATIVE AGREEMENTS) 

CDC will provide substantial involvement beyond regular performance and financial monitoring during the project period. Substantial involvement
means that applicants can expect federal programmatic partnership in carrying out the effort under the award. CDC will work in partnership with
awardees to ensure the success of the cooperative agreement by:

Providing cross-site and awardee-specific surveillance technical assistance such as   providing tools to identify  drug poisonings using
ICD-9-CM, ICD-10, text searches and ICD-10-CM, if implemented during the award period;
Providing technical assistance to revise annual work plans;
Assisting in advancing program activities to achieve project outcomes;
Providing scientific subject matter expertise and resources;
Collaborating with awardees to develop evaluation  plans that align with CDC evaluation activities;
Providing technical assistance on awardee’s evaluation and performance measurement plan;
Providing technical assistance to define and operationalize performance measures;
Facilitating the sharing of information among grantees;
Participating in relevant meetings, committees, conference calls, and working groups related to the cooperative agreement requirements to
achieve outcomes;
Coordinating communication and program linkages with other CDC programs and Federal agencies, such as Centers for Medicare and
Medicaid Services (CMS), Food and Drug Administration (FDA), the National Institutes of Health (NIH), the Substance Abuse and Mental
Health Services Administration (SAMHSA), and the HHS Office of the National Coordinator for Health Information Technology (ONC).
Translating and disseminating lessons learned through publications, meetings, surveillance measures and other means on promising and best
practices to expand the evidence base.

B. Award Information 

1. Funding Instrument Type: Cooperative Agreement 
  CDC's substantial involvement in this program appears in the CDC Program Support to Awardees

Section.
  27 of 42

http://www.grants.gov


2. Award Mechanism: U17 

3. Fiscal Year: 2015 
Estimated Total Funding: $55,600,000 

4. Approximate Total Fiscal Year Funding: $13,900,000 
5. Approximate Project Period Funding: $55,600,000 
6. Total Project Period Length: 4 year(s) 
7. Expected Number of Awards: 16 

8. Approximate Average Award: $875,000 Per Budget Period 

9. Award Ceiling: $1,000,000 Per Budget Period 

10. Award Floor: $750,000 Per Budget Period 

11. Estimated Award Date: 09/15/2015 
Throughout the project period, CDC will continue the award based on the availability of funds, the evidence of satisfactory progress by the
awardee (as documented in required reports), and the determination that continued funding is in the best interest of the federal government. The
total number of years for which federal support has been approved (project period) will be shown in the “Notice of Award.” This information
does not constitute a commitment by the federal government to fund the entire period. The total project period comprises the initial competitive
segment and any subsequent non-competitive continuation award(s).

12. Budget Period Length: 12 month(s) 

13. Direct Assistance 
Direct Assistance (DA) is not available through this FOA. 

C. Eligibility Information 

1. Eligible Applicants 
Eligibility Category: State governments 

 
2. Additional Information on Eligibility 

Current Boost States: States funded under the Boost FOA (CDC-RFA-CE14-1404) are eligible to apply for this program. If a state currently
receiving support under Prevention Boost receives funding under this FOA, it will no longer receive funding under Boost and will instead
receive funding exclusively under this program. Prevention Boost states that do not apply or are not awarded funds under this program will
continue their work under Boost.
Because this funding requires activity to enhance state PDMPs, states where a PDMP is not authorized are not eligible to apply for this funding.
Applicants must provide a Letter of Support (LOS) from:

A state-level law enforcement authority in their state. The LOS must show that the law enforcement authority supports the application
and agrees to regular meetings to support and coordinate activities.
The state substance abuse services authority in their state. The LOS must show that the substance abuse authority supports the application
and agrees to regular meetings to support and coordinate activities.
The PDMP authority in their state showing the PDMP authority supports the application, agrees to quarterly meetings to support and
coordinate activities, and how the PDMP authority will facilitate proposed activities for enhancing and maximizing the state’s PDMP.

Applicants implementing insurer/health system interventions under Priority Strategy #2 must provide a LOS from the state authority managing
the entity where the work is focused.  For example, if a proposal is for creating an opioid management program for the state Medicaid program,
show an LOS from the Medicaid authority. If improving an element of the Workers’ Compensation program, provide a LOS from the Workers’
Compensation authority. If the applicant is integrating and/or disseminating evidence-based opioid prescribing guidelines in partnership with a
particular health system or insurance program, the applicant should include a LOS from that system or program. The LOS must demonstrate the
authority’s support, agreement to quarterly meetings, and explanation of how the state authority will facilitate the proposed activities.
If the priority strategy of policy evaluation is chosen, applicants must provide a LOS from agencies that maintain access to relevant data
the state will be using for evaluation. The LOS must indicate the agency’s support and agreement to share data for evaluation purposes.

The award ceiling for this FOA is $1,000,000. CDC will consider any application requesting an award higher than this amount as non-
responsive and it will receive no further review. If a pre-application is required, then specify here and include it in the special eligibility
requirements section.  (http:// www.hhs.gov/ asfr/ ogapa/ aboutog/ hhsgps107.pdf)

3. Justification for Less than Maximum Competition 

Competition is limited to state health departments (SHDs) or their bona fide agents. SHDs are critical to the success of this FOA for several
reasons:  (1) the surveillance and evaluation capacity unique to SHDs; (2) the authority and connections of SHDs to other stakeholders at the
state level; (3) the necessity of state-level perspective for applicable lessons learned to inform other SHDs; and (4) the connection and likely
collaboration with other injury awardees.
SHDs have the unique epidemiologic and surveillance capacity to identify crucial trends and patterns driving the epidemic. Identifying such
patterns is critical for all the interventions funded under this program. Further, evaluation is a required and integral piece of this FOA and SHDs
are unique in their evaluation capacity and expertise at the state level, especially with regard to the impact of the kind of health-related
interventions at the core of this FOA.
  28 of 42

http://www.hhs.gov/asfr/ogapa/aboutog/hhsgps107.pdf


SHDs also have deep collaborative relationships with, or direct authority over, all of the critical state-level stakeholders needed to advance the
FOA's focus areas--including PDMPs, state boards of medical licensure, state boards of pharmacy, and state health insurance programs like
Medicaid or Workers Compensation. No other entity or body within the state government has the necessary connections and collaborative
relationships necessary to fulfill the requirements of this FOA.
Another purpose of this FOA is to create a reproducible model for state action on prescription drug overdose. Because this FOA will only fund
a small number of states, it is critical that the lessons learned from this project are applicable to other state efforts. Every state has a SHD that
can serve as the hub of prevention efforts, further supporting the necessity of awarding grants solely to SHDs as under this FOA.
Failure to limit eligibility to SHDs would undercut the purposes of this funding. Non-SHD awardees would lack the surveillance and evaluation
expertise needed to fulfill the funding's objective. Such awardees would also lack the connections and collaborations with the state-level
organizations like PDMPs and state Medicaid programs necessary to advance the Priority Strategies. This lack of capacity, expertise, and
connection would make it extremely unlikely awardees could fulfill the requirements of the funding or achieve the expected outcomes of the
project. The utility of lessons learned from the funding—one of the key purposes of the program—would be seriously undermined, as it would
be unlikely to be applicable to state health departments, who are in critical need of demonstrated effective approaches to prescription drug
overdose prevention.

4. Cost Sharing or Matching 
Cost Sharing / Matching
Requirement: 

No 

Cost sharing or matching funds are not required for this program. Although no statutory matching requirement for this FOA exists, leveraging
other resources and related ongoing efforts to promote sustainability is strongly encouraged.
Consistent with the cited authority for this announcement and applicable grants regulations, sources for cost sharing or matching may include
complementary foundation funding, other U.S. government funding sources including programs supported by HHS or other agencies (e.g.,
Department of Agriculture, Department of Education, Department of Housing and Urban Development, Department of Transportation,
Environmental Protection Agency, U.S. Park Service) and other funding sources. Applicants should coordinate with multiple sectors such as
public health, transportation, education, health care delivery, and agriculture.

5. Maintenance of Effort 

Maintenance of effort is not required for this program.

D. Required Registrations 

Additional materials that may be helpful to applicants: http://www.cdc.gov/od/pgo/funding/docs/Financial ReferenceGuide.pdf.

1. Required Registrations 
An organization must be registered at the three following locations before it can submit an application for funding at www.grants.gov.    

a. Data Universal Numbering System: All applicant organizations must obtain a Data Universal Numbering System (DUNS) number. A
DUNS number is a unique nine-digit identification number provided by Dun & Bradstreet (D&B). It will be used as the Universal Identifier
when applying for federal awards or cooperative agreements.
The applicant organization may request a DUNS number by telephone at 1-866-705-5711 (toll free) or Internet at http://
fedgov.dnb.com/webform/displayHomePage.do. The DUNS number will be provided at no charge.If funds are awarded to an applicant
organization that includes sub-awardees, those sub-awardees must provide their DUNS numbers before accepting any funds.
b. System for Award Management (SAM): The SAM is the primary registrant database for the federal government and the repository into
which an entity must submit information required to conduct business as an awardee. All applicant organizations must register with SAM,
and will be assigned a SAM number. All information relevant to the SAM number must be current at all times during which the applicant has
an application under consideration for funding by CDC. If an award is made, the SAM information must be maintained until a final financial
report is submitted or the final payment is received, whichever is later. The SAM registration process usually requires not more than five
business days, and registration must be renewed annually. Additional information about registration procedures may be found at 
www.SAM.gov.
c. Grants.gov: The first step in submitting an application online is registering your organization through www.grants.gov, the official HHS
E-grant website. Registration information is located at the "Get Registered" option at www.grants.gov.
All applicant organizations must register with www.grants.gov. The one-time registration process usually takes not more than five days to
complete. Applicants must start the registration process as early as possible.

2. Request Application Package 
Applicants may access the application package at www.grants.gov.

3. Application Package 
Applicants must download the SF-424, Application for Federal Assistance, package associated with this funding opportunity at www.grants.gov.
If Internet access is not available, or if the online forms cannot be accessed, applicants may call the CDC PGO staff at 770-488-2700 or e-mail
PGO PGOTIM@cdc.gov for assistance. Persons with hearing loss may access CDC telecommunications at TTY 1-888-232-6348. 

4. Submission Dates and Times 
If the application is not submitted by the deadline published in the FOA, it will not be processed. PGO personnel will notify the applicant that their
application did not meet the deadline. The applicant must receive pre-approval to submit a paper application (see Other Submission Requirements
section for additional details). If the applicant is authorized to submit a paper application, it must be received by the deadline provided by PGO.

a. Letter of Intent Deadline (must be emailed or postmarked by) 

  29 of 42

http://www.cdc.gov/od/pgo/funding/docs/FinancialReferenceGuide.pdf
http://www.grants.gov
http://fedgov.dnb.com/webform/displayHomePage.do
http://fedgov.dnb.com/webform/displayHomePage.do
https://www.SAM.gov
http://www.Grants.gov
http://www.grants.gov
http://www.grants.gov
http://www.grants.gov
http://www.grants.gov
http://www.grants.gov
https://foa.grantsolutions.gov/announcementmodule/PGOTIM@cdc.gov%20


Due Date for Letter of Intent: 03/16/2015

b. Application Deadline 
Due Date for Applications: 05/08/2015, 11:59 p.m. U.S. Eastern Standard Time, at www.grants.gov. If Grants.gov is inoperable and cannot receive
applications, and circumstances preclude advance notification of an extension, then applications must be submitted by the first business day on
which grants.gov operations resume. 
 
Date for Informational Conference Call:  03/11/2015 

Informational conference call for potential applicants: Wednesday March 11, 2015 at 1:00PM ET
Conference call number: (855) 644-0229  Conference ID: 9654605
The purpose of Amendment  1 to this FOA is to provide additional clarifying information based on questions received from potential applicants
during the Pre-Application Informational Conference Call held on March 11, 2015.  A summary of the questions and answers can be found in
Section H. Other Information beginning on page 39 of the amended FOA.

5. CDC Assurances and Certifications 
All applicants are required to sign and submit “Assurances and Certifications” documents indicated at
http://www.cdc.gov/grants/interestedinapplying/applicationprocess.html. 

Complete the applicable assurances and certifications on an annual basis, name the file “Assurances and Certifications” and upload it as a
PDF file at  www.grants.gov
Complete the applicable assurances and certifications and submit them directly to CDC on an annual basis at http://wwwn.cdc.
gov/grantassurances/(S(mj444mxct51lnrv1hljjjmaa))/ Homepage.aspx
Assurances and certifications submitted directly to CDC will be kept on file for one year and will apply to all applications submitted to CDC
by the applicant within one year of the submission date.

6. Content and Form of Application Submission 
Applicants are required to include all of the following documents with their application package at www.grants.gov.

7. Letter of Intent 

An LOI is requested but optional. The content of the LOI can be very simple — all CDC is looking for is a letter from the applicant stating the
intention to apply. 
LOI must be sent via U.S. express mail, delivery service, fax, or email to:
Eric S. Gross
CDC, National Center for Injury Prevention and Control
Address: 4770 Buford Hwy. NE
Mailstop F-62
Atlanta, GA 30341
euw9@cdc.gov
Phone: 770.488.4398
Fax: 770.488.3551

8. Table of Contents 
(No page limit and not included in Project Narrative limit): The applicant must provide, as a separate attachment, the “Table of Contents” for the
entire submission package.
Provide a detailed table of contents for the entire submission package that includes all of the documents in the application and headings in the
"Project Narrative" section. Name the file "Table of Contents" and upload it as a PDF file under "Other Attachment Forms" at www.grants.gov.

9. Project Abstract Summary 
(Maximum 1 page)
A project abstract is included on the mandatory documents list and must be submitted at www.grants.gov. The project abstract must be a
self-contained, brief summary of the proposed project including the purpose and outcomes. This summary must not include any proprietary or
confidential information. Applicants must enter the summary in the "Project Abstract Summary" text box at www.grants.gov.

10. Project Narrative 
(Maximum of 20 pages, single spaced, Calibri 12 point, 1-inch margins, number all pages. Content beyond 20 pages will not be considered. The
20 page limit includes the work plan. For a multi-component FOA, maximum page limit is 25.)

The Project Narrative must include all of the bolded headings shown in this section. The Project Narrative must be succinct, self-explanatory, and
in the order outlined in this section. It must address outcomes and activities to be conducted over the entire project period as identified in the CDC
Project Description section. Applicants must submit a Project Narrative with the application forms. Applicants must name this file “Project
Narrative” and upload it at  www.grants.gov.

a. Background 
Applicants must provide a description of relevant background information that includes the context of the problem (See CDC Background).

b. Approach 

i. Purpose 
Applicants must describe in 2-3 sentences specifically how their application will address the problem as described in the CDC Background
section.

  30 of 42

http://www.grants.gov
http://www.cdc.gov/grants/interestedinapplying/applicationprocess.html
http://www.grants.gov/
http://wwwn.cdc.gov/grantassurances/(S(mj444mxct51lnrv1hljjjmaa))/Homepage.aspx
http://wwwn.cdc.gov/grantassurances/(S(mj444mxct51lnrv1hljjjmaa))/Homepage.aspx
http://www.grants.gov
mailto:euw9@cdc.gov
http://www.grants.gov
http://www.grants.gov
http://www.grants.gov
http://www.grants.gov


ii. Outcomes 
Applicants must clearly identify the outcomes they expect to achieve by the end of the project period. Outcomes are the results that the program
intends to achieve. All outcomes must indicate the intended direction of change (e.g., increase, decrease, maintain). (See the logic model in the
Approach section of the CDC Project Description.)

iii. Strategies and Activities 
Applicants must provide a clear and concise description of the strategies and activities they will use to achieve the project period outcomes.
Applicants must select existing evidence-based strategies that meet their needs, or describe in the Applicant Evaluation and Performance
Measurement Plan, how these strategies will be evaluated over the course of the project period. (See CDC Project Description: Strategies and
Activities section.)

1. Collaborations 
Applicants must describe how they will collaborate with programs and organizations either internal or external to CDC.

Applicants must file letters of support, as appropriate, name the file “Letters of Support”, and upload it as a PDF file at www.grants.gov.
The required letters of support are described in the “Collaborations” section below. If applicants are submitting additional optional materials (e.g.,
MOUs, MOAs) that demonstrate collaborations in support of the proposed activities, the file should be named “Other Documentation of
Collaborations”, and upload it as a PDF file at  www.grants.gov.

2. Target Populations 
Applicants must describe the specific target population(s) in their jurisdiction and explain how such a target will achieve the goals of the award
and/or alleviate health disparities. Refer back to the CDC Project Description section – Approach: Target Population.

c. Applicant Evaluation and Performance Measurement Plan 
Applicants must provide an overall evaluation and performance measurement plan that is consistent with the CDC Evaluation and Performance
Measurement Strategy section of the CDC Project Description of this FOA. Data collected must be used for ongoing monitoring of the award to
evaluate its effectiveness, and for continuous program improvement.
The plan must:

Affirm the ability to collect the performance measures and respond to the evaluation questions specified in the CDC strategy. (For guidance
regarding the Paperwork Reduction Act, please visit http://www.hhs.gov/ocio/policy/collection/infocollectfaq.html)
Describe how key program partners will participate in the evaluation and performance measurement planning processes.
Describe how evaluation findings will be used for continuous program quality improvement.

Where the applicant chooses to, or is expected to, take on specific evaluation studies:
Describe the type of evaluation(s) (i.e., process, outcome, or both) to be conducted.
Describe key evaluation questions to be addressed by these evaluations.
Describe other information relevant to the evaluation (e.g., measures, data sources)

Timely collection and sharing of aggregate morbidity and mortality data with CDC is important to quality evaluation. Applicants should expect to
share with CDC yearly counts of drug overdose morbidity and/or mortality data aggregated at the state level within a year of injury or death.
Provision of evidence of such a data sharing capacity is strongly encouraged.
 

Awardees will be required to submit a more detailed evaluation and performance measurement plan within the first 6 months of the project, as
outlined in the reporting section of the FOA.

d. Organizational Capacity of Applicants to Implement the Approach 
Applicant must address the organizational capacity requirements as described in the CDC Project Description.

Please include appropriate CVs, resumes, and organizational charts that will demonstrate organizational capacity. Name this file “CVs/Resumes”
or “Organizational Charts” and upload it at www.grants.gov.

11. Work Plan 
(Included in the Project Narrative’s 20 page limit)
Applicants must prepare a work plan consistent with the CDC Project Description Work Plan section. The work plan integrates and delineates
more specifically how the awardee plans to carry out achieving the project period outcomes, strategies and activities, evaluation and performance
measurement. 
Applicants must name this file "Work Plan" and upload it as a PDF file at www.grants.gov.

12. Budget Narrative 
Applicants must submit an itemized budget narrative, which may be scored as part of the Organizational Capacity of Awardees to Execute the
Approach. When developing the budget narrative, applicants must consider whether the proposed budget is reasonable and consistent with the
purpose, outcomes, and program strategy outlined in the project narrative. The budget must include:

Salaries and wages
Fringe benefits
Consultant costs
Equipment
Supplies
Travel

  31 of 42

http://www.grants.gov
http://www.grants.gov
http://www.hhs.gov/ocio/policy/collection/infocollectfaq.html
http://www.grants.gov
http://www.grants.gov


Other categories
Contractual costs
Total Direct costs
Total Indirect costs

Indirect costs will not be reimbursed under grants to foreign organizations, international organizations, and foreign components of grants to
domestic organizations (does not affect indirect cost reimbursement to the domestic entity for domestic activities). The CDC will not reimburse
indirect costs unless the recipient has an indirect cost rate covering the applicable activities and period.

For guidance on completing a detailed budget, see Budget Preparation Guidelines
at:http://www.cdc.gov/grants/interestedinapplying/applicationresources.html .

If applicable and consistent with the cited statutory authority for this announcement, applicant entities may use funds for activities as they relate
to the intent of this FOA to meet national standards or seek health department accreditation through the Public Health Accreditation Board
(see:  http://www.phaboard.org). Applicant entities to whom this provision applies include state, local, territorial governments (including the
District of Columbia, the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, the Virgin Islands, the Commonwealth of the Northern Marianna Islands, American
Samoa, Guam, the Federated States of Micronesia, the Republic of the Marshall Islands, and the Republic of Palau), or their bona fide agents,
political subdivisions of states (in consultation with states), federally recognized or state-recognized American Indian or Alaska Native tribal
governments, and American Indian or Alaska Native tribally designated organizations. Activities include those that enable a public health
organization to deliver public health services such as activities that ensure a capable and qualified workforce, up-to-date information systems, and
the capability to assess and respond to public health needs. Use of these funds must focus on achieving a minimum of one national standard that
supports the intent of the FOA. Proposed activities must be included in the budget narrative and must indicate which standards will be addressed.

Applicants must name this file “Budget Narrative” and upload it as a PDF file at www.grants.gov. If requesting indirect costs in the budget, a
copy of the indirect cost-rate agreement is required. If the indirect costs are requested, include a copy of the current negotiated federal indirect
cost rate agreement or a cost allocation plan approval letter for those Grantees under such a plan. Applicants must name this file “Indirect Cost
Rate” and upload it at www.grants.gov.

Applicants submitting activities under Priority Strategy #4 (developing and implementing a Rapid Response Project) cannot use more than 10%
of their award to advance that project. Year 1 of activities under Priority Strategy #4 will be dedicated to developing a plan for identifying,
selecting, and implementing the Rapid Response Project(s). Years 2-4 of the project period will be dedicated to the implementation of the Rapid
Response Project.
Applicant’s budget must include travel for two to four staff to a two-day kickoff meeting at CDC’s National Center for Injury Prevention and
Control in Atlanta, GA at the beginning of the first-year of the project. All awardees will attend this meeting. For the second, third, and fourth
years of the project period, the budget should include annual reverse site visits for two program staff to visit Atlanta and meet with CDC staff.

13. Tobacco and Nutrition Policies 
Awardees are encouraged to implement tobacco and nutrition policies.
Unless otherwise explicitly permitted under the terms of a specific CDC award, no funds associated with this FOA may be used to implement the
optional policies, and no applicants will be evaluated or scored on whether they choose to implement these optional policies.
CDC supports implementing evidence-based programs and policies to reduce tobacco use and secondhand smoke exposure, and to promote
healthy nutrition. CDC encourages all awardees to implement the following optional recommended evidence-based tobacco and nutrition policies
within their own organizations. The tobacco policies build upon the current federal commitment to reduce exposure to secondhand smoke,
specifically The Pro-Children Act, 20 U.S.C. 7181-7184, that prohibits smoking in certain facilities that receive federal funds in which education,
library, day care, health care,or early childhood development services are provided to children.

Tobacco Policies:
Tobacco-free indoors: Use of any tobacco products (including smokeless tobacco) or electronic cigarettes is not allowed in any indoor
facilities under the control of the awardee.

1.

Tobacco-free indoors and in adjacent outdoor areas: Use of any tobacco products or electronic cigarettes is not allowed in any indoor
facilities, within 50 feet of doorways and air intake ducts, and in courtyards under the control of the awardee.

2.

Tobacco-free campus: Use of any tobacco products or electronic cigarettes is not allowed in any indoor facilities or anywhere on grounds or
in outdoor space under the control of the awardee.

3.

Nutrition Policies:
Healthy food-service guidelines must, at a minimum, align with HHS and General Services Administration Health and Sustainability
Guidelines for Federal Concessions and Vending Operations. These guidelines apply to cafeterias, snack bars, and vending machines in any
facility under the control of the awardee and in accordance with contractual obligations for these services (see:  http://www.gsa.gov/
graphics/pbs/Guidelines_for_  Federal_ Concessions_and_Vending _  Operations.pdf).

1.

Resources that provide guidance for healthy eating and tobacco-free workplaces are:2.
http://www.cdc.gov/ nccdphp/dnpao/hwi/ toolkits/ tobacco/index.htm
http://www. thecommunityguide.org/ tobacco/index.html
http:// www.cdc.gov /obesity /strategies /food-serv-guide.html

14. Health Insurance Marketplaces 

  32 of 42

http://www.cdc.gov/grants/interestedinapplying/applicationresources.html
http://www.phaboard.org
http://www.grants.gov
http://www.grants.gov
http://www.gsa.gov/graphics/pbs/Guidelines_for_Federal_Concessions_and_Vending_Operations.pdf
http://www.gsa.gov/graphics/pbs/Guidelines_for_Federal_Concessions_and_Vending_Operations.pdf
http://www.cdc.gov/nccdphp/dnpao/hwi/toolkits/tobacco/index.htm
http://www.thecommunityguide.org/tobacco/index.html
http://www.cdc.gov/obesity/strategies/food-serv-guide.html


14. Health Insurance Marketplaces 
A healthier country is one in which Americans are able to access the care they need to prevent the onset of disease and manage disease when it is
present. The Affordable Care Act, the health care law of 2010, creates new Health Insurance Marketplaces, also known as Exchanges, to offer
millions of Americans affordable health insurance coverage. In addition, the law helps make prevention affordable and accessible for Americans
by requiring health plans to cover certain recommended preventive services without cost sharing. Outreach efforts will help families and
communities understand these new options and provide eligible individuals the assistance they need to secure and retain coverage as smoothly as
possible. For more information on the Marketplaces and the health care law, visit:  www.HealthCare.gov.

15. Intergovernmental Review 

The application is subject to Intergovernmental Review of Federal Programs, as governed by Executive Order 12372, which established a system
for state and local intergovernmental review of proposed federal assistance applications. Applicants should inform their state single point of
contact (SPOC) as early as possible that they are applying prospectively for federal assistance and request instructions on the state's process. The
current SPOC list is available at: http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/grants_spoc/. 
16. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Employee Whistleblower Protections 
Pilot Program for Enhancement of Employee Whistleblower Protections: All applicants will be subject to a term and condition that applies the
terms of 48 CFR section 3.908 to the award and requires that grantees inform their employees in writing (in the predominant native language of
the workforce) of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712.

17. Funding Restrictions 
Restrictions that must be considered while planning the programs and writing the budget are:

Awardees may not use funds for research.
Awardees may not use funds for clinical care.
Awardees may use funds only for reasonable program purposes, including personnel, travel, supplies, and services.
Generally, awardees may not use funds to purchase furniture or equipment. Any such proposed spending must be clearly identified in the
budget.
Reimbursement of pre-award costs is not allowed.
Other than for normal and recognized executive-legislative relationships, no funds may be used for:

publicity or propaganda purposes, for the preparation, distribution, or use of any material designed to support or defeat the enactment
of legislation before any legislative body
the salary or expenses of any grant or contract recipient, or agent acting for such recipient, related to any activity designed to
influence the enactment of legislation, appropriations, regulation, administrative action, or Executive order proposed or pending
before any legislative body

See http:// www.cdc.gov /grants /additional requirements /index.htm l#ar12 for detailed guidance on this prohibition and http:// intranet.
cdc. gov /od /adp /docs /Implementationof Anti- Lobbying Provisions- June2012.pdf.

The direct and primary recipient in a cooperative agreement program must perform a substantial role in carrying out project outcomes and
not merely serve as a conduit for an award to another party or provider who is ineligible. 

_________

18. Other Submission Requirements 
a. Electronic Submission: Applications must be submitted electronically at www.grants.gov. The application package can be downloaded at 
www.grants.gov. Applicants can complete the application package off-line and submit the application by uploading it at www.grants.gov. All
application attachments must be submitted using a PDF file format. Directions for creating PDF files can be found at www.grants.gov. File
formats other than PDF may not be readable by PGO Technical Information Management Section (TIMS) staff.
Applications must be submitted electronically by using the forms and instructions posted for this funding opportunity at www.grants.gov.
If Internet access is not available or if the forms cannot be accessed online, applicants may contact the PGO TIMS staff at 770- 488-2700 or
by e-mail at pgotim@cdc.gov, Monday through Friday, 7:30 a.m.–4:30 p.m., except federal holidays. Electronic applications will be
considered successful if they are available to PGO TIMS staff for processing from www.grants.gov on the deadline date.
b. Tracking Number: Applications submitted through www.grants.gov are time/date stamped electronically and assigned a tracking number.
The applicant’s Authorized Organization Representative (AOR) will be sent an e-mail notice of receipt when www.grants.gov receives the
application. The tracking number documents that the application has been submitted and initiates the required electronic validation process
before the application is made available to CDC.
c. Validation Process: Application submission is not concluded until the validation process is completed successfully. After the application
package is submitted, the applicant will receive a “submission receipt” e-mail generated by  www.grants.gov. A second e-mail message to
applicants will then be generated by www.grants.gov that will either validate or reject the submitted application package. This validation
process may take as long as two business days. Applicants are strongly encouraged to check the status of their application to ensure that
submission of their package has been completed and no submission errors have occurred. Applicants also are strongly encouraged to allocate
ample time for filing to guarantee that their application can be submitted and validated by the deadline published in the FOA. Non-validated
applications will not be accepted after the published application deadline date.
If you do not receive a “validation” e-mail within two business days of application submission, please contact www.grants.gov. For
instructions on how to track your application, refer to the e-mail message generated at the time of application submission or the Applicant
User Guide, Version 1.1, page 102.
http:// www.grants.gov /documents /19/18243 /Grantsgov ApplicantUserGuide .pdf /ce754626 -c2aa-44bc- b701 -30a75bf428c8
d. Technical Difficulties: If technical difficulties are encountered at www.grants.gov, applicants should contact Customer Service at 
www.grants.gov. The www.grants.gov Contact Center is available 24 hours a day, 7 days a week, except federal holidays. The Contact Center

  33 of 42

http://www.HealthCare.gov
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/grants_spoc/
http://www.cdc.gov/grants/additionalrequirements/index.html#ar12
http://intranet.cdc.gov/od/adp/docs/ImplementationofAnti-LobbyingProvisions-June2012.pdf
http://intranet.cdc.gov/od/adp/docs/ImplementationofAnti-LobbyingProvisions-June2012.pdf
http://www.Grants.gov
http://www.Grants.gov
http://www.Grants.gov
http://www.Grants.gov
http://www.Grants.gov
http://www.Grants.gov
http://www.Grants.gov
http://www.Grants.gov
http://www.Grants.gov
http://www.Grants.gov
http://www.Grants.gov
http://www.grants.gov/documents/19/18243/GrantsgovApplicantUserGuide.pdf/ce754626-c2aa-44bc-b701-30a75bf428c8
http://www.Grants.gov
http://www.Grants.gov
mailto:support@www.grants.gov


is available by phone at 1-800-518-4726 or by e-mail at  support@www.grants.gov. Application submissions sent by e-mail or fax, or on
CDs or thumb drives will not be accepted. Please note that www.grants.gov is managed by HHS.
e. Paper Submission: If technical difficulties are encountered at www.grants.gov, applicants should call the www.grants.gov Contact Center
at 1-800-518-4726 or e-mail them at support@www.grants.gov for assistance. After consulting with the Contact Center, if the technical
difficulties remain unresolved and electronic submission is not possible, applicants may e-mail or call CDC GMO/GMS, before the deadline,
and request permission to submit a paper application. Such requests are handled on a case-by-case basis.
An applicant’s request for permission to submit a paper application must:

Include the www.grants.gov case number assigned to the inquiry1.
Describe the difficulties that prevent electronic submission and the efforts taken with the www.grants.gov Contact Center to
submit electronically;  and

2.

Be postmarked at least three calendar days before the application deadline. Paper applications submitted without prior approval
will not be considered. If a paper application is authorized, PGO will advise the applicant of specific instructions for submitting
the application (e.g., original and two hard copies of the application by U.S. mail or express delivery service).

3.

E. Review and Selection Process 

1. Review and Selection Process: Applications will be reviewed in three phases. 

a. Phase I Review 
All applications will be reviewed initially for completeness by CDC PGO staff and will be reviewed jointly for eligibility by the CDC NCIPC
and PGO. Incomplete applications and applications that do not meet the eligibility criteria will not advance to Phase II review. Applicants will
be notified that their applications did not meet eligibility or published submission requirements. 

b. Phase II Review 
A review panel will evaluate complete, eligible applications in accordance with the criteria below.

i. Approach
ii. Evaluation and Performance Measurement 
iii. Applicant’s Organizational Capacity to Implement the Approach

Approach Maximum Points: 35 

Purpose, Outcomes, Strategies and Activities, and Target Populations  (10 points):1.
Background: Applicants must provide a description of relevant background information that includes the context of the problem,
particularly in the applicant’s state.
Purpose: Applicants must describe in 2-3 sentences specifically how their application will address the problem as described in the
Background section of this FOA.
Outcomes: Applicants must clearly identify the outcomes they expect to achieve by the end of the project period. Outcomes are
the results that the program intends to achieve. All outcomes must indicate the intended direction of change (e.g., increase,
decrease, maintain).
Strategies and Activities: Applicants must provide a clear and concise description of the strategies and activities they will use to
achieve the project period outcomes.
Target Populations: Applicants must describe how the interventions to be improved or evaluated target high-risk groups of
clinicians and patients to achieve the greatest health impact, as described in the "Target Populations" section of this FOA

Work Plan (15 points): Applicants will be scored on their preparation of a work plan consistent with this FOA's "Work Plan" section. It
must include a detailed first-year work plan and a high-level plan for subsequent years. This is the applicant's opportunity to clearly
show what it will do with the funding.  After reading the work plan, reviewers should be able to understand how the applicant plans to
carry out achieving the project period outcomes, strategies, and activities.

2.

Collaborations (10 points): Applicants will be scored on the extent to which they demonstrate strong, multi-sector collaborations to
support their work, including:

3.

Inclusion of the Letters of Support (LOS) required under the "Collaboration" section of this FOA. Applicants should carefully
read that section to ensure they have all required LOS.  Failure to include a required letter of support will be deemed
non-responsive.
Inclusion of any other recommended MOAs/MOUs/LOSs that demonstrate strategic partnerships and collaborations with
organizations that have a role in achieving the FOA outcomes and proposed activities.
Demonstration of collaborations with other CDC programs, including Core VIPP states, Core VIPP regional networks, and Injury
Control Research Centers, as applicable. Applicants should also demonstrate a commitment to collaborate with the CDC
evaluation team on evaluation questions, methods, data sharing, and data analysis.

Evaluation and Performance Management Maximum Points: 25 

  34 of 42

http://www.Grants.gov
mailto:support@www.grants.gov
http://www.grants.gov
http://www.grants.gov
mailto:support@www.grants.gov
http://www.grants.gov
http://www.grants.gov


Applicants will be scored on the extent to which their evaluation and performance measurement plan addresses:
Inclusion of clearly proposed measures of effectiveness (10 points): Measures should be consistent with the components and objectives
in the work plan and are designed to measure the intended performance outcomes and relate to the FOA’s performance goals.

1.

Timely collection and sharing of aggregate morbidity and mortality data with CDC (5 points). Specifically, the 5 points under this
criterion will be scored based on the applicant’s inclusion of the following elements:

2.

Applicant can share with CDC required yearly rates and counts of drug overdose morbidity (e.g., emergency department visits
related to drug overdoses) or mortality indicator data (e.g., drug overdose deaths) listed in the CDC Evaluation and Performance
Measurement Strategy aggregated at the state level within a year of the calendar year in which the injury occurred  (e.g., report the
number and rate of drug overdose emergency department visits in 2015 by 12/31/2016) or death occurred (e.g., report the number
and rate of drug overdose deaths in 2015 by 12/31/2016) (3 points).
Applicant can share with CDC either morbidity (e.g., emergency department visits related to drug overdoses) or mortality data
(e.g., drug overdose deaths) aggregated at the state level at least every six months (e.g., share information on the rate and count of
drug overdose deaths occurring between 1/1/2016 to 6/30/2016 by 12/31/2016 and share information on drug overdose deaths
occurring between 7/1/2016 and 12/31/2016 by 6/30/2017) (2 points) 

Development of a state- or jurisdiction-specific evaluation plan (8 points). Applicants will be scored on their inclusion of a clearly
proposed evaluation plan that is consistent with the work plan and the CDC evaluation performance strategy, and that is feasible and
likely to demonstrate grantee performance outcomes, including successes and needed improvements.

3.

Participation as requested by CDC in a cross-site national evaluation (2 points). Applicants will be scored on their documented ability
and willingness to participate in a cross-site national evaluation.

4.

Applicants Organizational Capacity to Implement the Approach Maximum Points: 40 

Applicants will be scored according to the following elements:
Prior knowledge and experience working with the strategies selected (10 points).1.
Proven ability to collect data at a population level and use data to demonstrate impact (10 points).2.
Experience with planning, implementing, and evaluating programs state-level and/or statewide (10 points). Applicants should have
existing staff with expertise in evaluation, policy and program implementation, surveillance, program and performance management,
management of travel and program requirements, and the full capability to manage the required award. Applicants should identify a
qualified evaluator who will conduct evaluation activities within the state and collaborate with the CDC evaluation team or provide
plans to fill that position within six months of the award.

3.

Burden (10 points): Applicants will be scored according to age-adjusted drug overdose death rate in their state. CDC will calculate the
points assigned to applicants under this section using 2013 National Vital Statistics System drug overdose mortality by state - applicants
do not need to provide any documentation or materials in support of this criterion. Applicants among the states with the 10 highest
age-adjusted drug overdose death rates will receive 10 points. Applicants among the states with the 11th—19th highest age-adjusted
drug overdose death rates will receive points according to the following table: 

Ranking, age-adjusted drug overdose death rate Points under this criterion

11th 9

12th 8

13th 7

14th 6

15th 5

16th 4

17th 3

18th 2

19th 1

20th and lower 0

 

4.

Budget and Budget Narrative (reviewed, but not scored): Presentation of a reasonable budget that is consistent with the stated objectives
and planned program activities.
Not more than thirty days after the Phase II review is completed, applicants will be notified electronically if their application does not
meet eligibility or published submission requirements.

5.

Not more than thirty days after the Phase II review is completed, applicants will be notified electronically if their application does not meet
eligibility or published submission requirements.

c. Phase III Review 

Applications will be funded in order by score and rank determined by the review panel.

2. Announcement and Anticipated Award Dates 

  35 of 42



Successful applicants will anticipate notice of funding by August 15, 2015 with a start date of September 15, 2015.

F. Award Administration Information 

1. Award Notices 
Awardees will receive an electronic copy of the Notice of Award (NOA) from CDC PGO. The NOA shall be the only binding, authorizing
document between the awardee and CDC. The NOA will be signed by an authorized GMO and emailed to the Awardee Business Officer listed
in application and the Program Director.
Any applicant awarded funds in response to this FOA will be subject to the DUNS, SAM Registration, and Federal Funding Accountability And
Transparency Act Of 2006 (FFATA) requirements.
Unsuccessful applicants will receive notification of these results by e-mail with delivery receipt or by U.S. mail.

2. Administrative and National Policy Requirements 
Awardees must comply with the administrative and public policy requirements outlined in 45 C.F.R. Part 74 or Part 92 and the HHS Grants
Policy Statement, as appropriate.
Brief descriptions of relevant provisions are available at http://www.cdc.gov/grants/additionalrequirements/index.html
The HHS Grants Policy Statement is available at http://www.hhs.gov/asfr/ogapa/aboutog/hhsgps107.pdf.  
*Note that 2 CFR 200 will supersede the administrative requirements (A-110 & A-102), cost principles (A-21, A-87 & A-122) and audit
requirements (A-50, A-89 & A-133). 

This FOA is for a cooperative agreement. Under the cooperative agreement mechanism, the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention’s (CDC)
purpose is to support the awardee’s activities. Applicants are advised that any activities involving information collection (i.e., surveys,
questionnaires, etc.) from 10 or more individuals funded by a cooperative agreement will be subject to PRA determination and may or may not be
subject to approval by the Office of Management and Budget (OMB) under the Paperwork Reduction Act (PRA).   PRA applicability will depend
on level of CDC involvement with the development, collection and management of information/data.

For more information on the C.F.R. visit http://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/ECFR?page=browse.

3. Reporting 
Reporting provides continuous program monitoring and identifies successes and challenges that awardees encounter throughout the project
period. Also, reporting is a requirement for awardees who want to apply for yearly continuation of funding. Reporting helps CDC and awardees
because it:

Helps target support to awardees;
Provides CDC with periodic data to monitor awardee progress toward meeting the FOA outcomes and overall performance;
Allows CDC to track performance measures and evaluation findings for continuous quality and program improvement throughout the
project period and to determine applicability of evidence-based approaches to different populations, settings, and contexts; and
Enables CDC to assess the overall effectiveness and influence of the FOA.

The table below summarizes required and optional reports. All required reports must be sent electronically to GMS listed in the “Agency
Contacts” section of the FOA copying the CDC Project Officer.

Report When? Required?

Awardee Evaluation and
Performance Measurement Plan

6 months into award Yes

Annual Performance Report (APR) 120 days before end of budget period.
Serves as yearly continuation
application.

Yes

Data on Performance Measures CDC program determines. Only
if program wants more frequent
performance measure reporting than
annually in APR.

No

Federal Financial Reporting Forms 90 days after end of calendar quarter
in which budget period ends

Yes

Final Performance and Financial
Report

90 days after end of project period. Yes
 
 
 

CDC will require awardees to update and report their performance and evaluation measures 60 days at the end of each funding year.
Awardees are expected to use CDC provided annual performance report templates for reporting progress and evaluation results.

  36 of 42

http://www.cdc.gov/grants/additionalrequirements/index.html
http://www.hhs.gov/asfr/ogapa/aboutog/hhsgps107.pdf
http://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/ECFR?page=browse


a. Awardee Evaluation and Performance Measurement Plan (required) 
With support from CDC, awardees must elaborate on their initial applicant evaluation and performance measurement plan. This plan must be no
more than 20 pages; awardees must submit the plan 6 months into the award.

This plan should provide additional detail on the following:
The frequency that evaluation and performance data are to be collected.
How data will be reported.
How evaluation findings will be used for continuous quality and program improvement.
How evaluation and performance measurement will yield findings to demonstrate the value of the FOA (e.g., improved public health
outcomes, effectiveness of FOA, cost-effectiveness or cost benefit).
Dissemination channels and audiences.
Other information requested as determined by the CDC program.

b. Annual Performance Report (APR) (required) 
The awardee must submit the APR via www.grants.gov 120 days before the end of the budget period. This report must not exceed 45 pages
excluding administrative reporting. Attachments are not allowed, but weblinks are allowed.
This report must include the following:

Performance Measures: Awardees must report on performance measures for each budget period and update measures, if needed.
Evaluation Results: Awardees must report evaluation results for the work completed to date (including findings from process or outcome
evaluations).
Work Plan: Awardees must update work plan each budget period to reflect any changes in project period outcomes, activities, timeline, etc.
Successes

Awardees must report progress on completing activities and progress towards achieving the project period outcomes described in the
logic model and work plan.
Awardees must describe any additional successes (e.g. identified through evaluation results or lessons learned) achieved in the past
year.
Awardees must describe success stories.

Challenges
Awardees must describe any challenges that hindered or might hinder their ability to complete the work plan activities and achieve
the project period outcomes.
Awardees must describe any additional challenges (e.g., identified through evaluation results or lessons learned) encountered in the
past year.

CDC Program Support to Awardees
Awardees must describe how CDC could help them overcome challenges to complete activities in the work plan and achieving
project period outcomes.

Administrative Reporting (No page limit)
SF-424A Budget Information-Non-Construction Programs.
Budget Narrative – Must use the format outlined in "Content and Form of Application Submission, Budget Narrative" section.
Indirect Cost Rate Agreement.

For year 2 and beyond of the award awardees may request that as much as 75% of their estimated unobligated funds be carried over into the next
budget period. 
The awardee must submit the Annual Performance Report via www.grants.gov 120 days before the end of the budget period.

c. Performance Measure Reporting (optional) 
CDC programs may require more frequent reporting of performance measures than annually in the APR. If this is the case, CDC programs must
specify reporting frequency, data fields, and format for awardees at the beginning of the award period.

CDC will require awardees to update and report their performance and evaluation measures 60 days after the end of each funding year.
Awardees are expected to use CDC provided annual performance report templates for reporting progress and evaluation results.

d. Federal Financial Reporting (FFR) (required) 
The annual FFR form (SF-425) is required and must be submitted through eRA Commons 90 days after the end of the calendar quarter in which
the budget period ends. The report must include only those funds authorized and disbursed during the timeframe covered by the report. The final
FFR must indicate the exact balance of unobligated funds, and may not reflect any unliquidated obligations. There must be no discrepancies
between the final FFR expenditure data and the Payment Management System’s (PMS) cash transaction data. Failure to submit the required
information by the due date may adversely affect the future funding of the project. If the information cannot be provided by the due date,
awardees are required to submit a letter of explanation to PGO and include the date by which the Grants Officer will receive information.

  37 of 42

http://www.grants.gov
http://www.grants.gov


e. Final Performance and Financial Report (required) 
This report is due 90 days after the end of the project period. CDC programs must indicate that this report should not exceed 40 pages. This report
covers the entire project period and can include information previously reported in APRs. At a minimum, this report must include the following:

Performance Measures – Awardees must report final performance data for all process and outcome performance measures.
Evaluation Results – Awardees must report final evaluation results for the project period for any evaluations conducted.
Impact/Results/Success Stories – Awardees must use their performance measure results and their evaluation findings to describe the effects
or results of the work completed over the project period, and can include some success stories.
Additional forms as described in the Notice of Award (e.g., Equipment Inventory Report, Final Invention Statement).

____

4. Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act of 2006 (FFATA) 
The FFATA and Public Law 109-282, which amends the FFATA, require full disclosure of all entities and organizations that receive federal
funds including awards, contracts, loans, other assistance, and payments. This information must be submitted through the single, publicly
accessible website,  www.USASpending.gov.
 
Compliance with these mandates is primarily the responsibility of the federal agency. However, two elements of these mandates require
information to be collected and reported by applicants: 1) information on executive compensation when not already reported through SAM; and
2) similar information on all sub-awards, subcontracts, or consortiums for greater than $25,000. For the full text of these requirements,
see: http://www.gpo.gov /fdsys/browse/ collection.action?collectionCode= BILLS.

G. Agency Contacts 

CDC encourages inquiries concerning this FOA.

Program Office Contact 
For programmatic technical assistance, contact:

Eric Gross, Project Officer
Department of Health and Human Services
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention
4770 Buford Hwy NE
MS F-62
Atlanta, GA 30341
Telephone: 770.488.4398
Email: euw9@cdc.gov
 
Grants Staff Contact 
For financial, awards management, or budget assistance, contact:

Shicann Phillips, Grants Management Specialist
Department of Health and Human Services
CDC Procurement and Grants Office
2920 Brandywine Road 
MS E-01
Atlanta, GA 30341
Telephone: 770.488.2809 
Email: ibq7@cdc.gov
 
For assistance with submission difficulties related to www.grants.gov, contact the Contact Center by phone at 1-800-518-4726. 
Hours of Operation: 24 hours a day, 7 days a week, except on federal holidays.  

For all other submission questions, contact: 
Technical Information Management Section 
Department of Health and Human Services 
CDC Procurement and Grants Office 
2920 Brandywine Road, MS E-14 
Atlanta, GA 30341 
Telephone: 770-488-2700 
E-mail: pgotim@cdc.gov  

CDC Telecommunications for persons with hearing loss is available at: TTY 1-888-232-6348. 

H. Other Information 

Following is a list of acceptable attachments applicants can upload as PDF files as part of their application at www.grants.gov. Applicants may

  38 of 42

http://www.USASpending.gov
http://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/browse/collection.action?collectionCode=BILLS
mailto:euw9@cdc.gov
mailto:ibq7@cdc.gov
http://www.grants.gov
https://foa.grantsolutions.gov/announcementmodule/pgotim@cdc.gov
http://www.grants.gov


Following is a list of acceptable attachments applicants can upload as PDF files as part of their application at www.grants.gov. Applicants may
not attach documents other than those listed; if other documents are attached, applications will not be reviewed.

Project Abstract
Project Narrative
Budget Narrative
CDC Assurances and Certifications
Table of Contents for Entire Submission

Optional attachments, as determined by CDC programs
Resumes/CVs
Position descriptions
Letters of Support
Organizational Charts
Non-profit organization IRS status forms, if applicable
Indirect Cost Rate , if applicable
Memorandum of Agreement (MOA)
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU)
Bona Fide Agent status documentation, if applicable

CDC Injury Center: http://www.cdc.gov/Injury/
CDC Injury Center/PDO: http://www.cdc.gov/homeandrecreationalsafety/overdose/index.html
Amendment 1:
Questions and answers from potential applicants during the Pre-Application Informational Conference Call held on March 11, 2015.
Q:  Regarding the required letter of support from the state substance abuse authority, if the responsibilities for state substance abuse services are
shared by two different agencies, should the state obtain a letter of support from both agencies?
A:  If one agency is not designated as the “authority”, then the applicant should obtain letters of support from both agencies.
Q:  If the PDMP authority is housed under the state law enforcement authority will just one letter of support be needed?
A:  Yes, the one letter of support will count as both the required PDMP and law enforcement letters of support.
FOA Reference:  Page 28
Q:  The Project Narrative section gives conflicting information regarding the page limit. It states a maximum page limit of 20 including the work
plan.  It also states a maximum page limit of 25 for a multi-component FOA.  What is the page limit for this FOA?
A:  This is not a multi-component FOA and the maximum page limit, including the work plan, is 20.  The FOA includes standard language that
cannot be revised or removed.
FOA Reference:  Page 30
Q:  The Evaluation and Performance Measurement Plan is listed in c. under items to be included in the Project Narrative on page 31, however, in
the Applicant Evaluation and Performance Management Plan on page 25 it states that the plan should be no more than 25 pages.  Is this separate
from the Project Narrative page limit?
A:  Yes, the Evaluation and Performance Measurement Plan is a separate document and not included in the Project Narrative page limit.  It should
be uploaded to grants.gov as an attachment.
Q:  In the Reporting section under Awardee Evaluation and Performance Measurement Plan it states that the plan must be no more than 20 pages
in conflict with the 25 page limit stated on page 25.
A:  That is an error.  The plan should be no more than 25 pages.
Q:  The Evaluation and Performance Measurement plan is not listed as one of the acceptable attachments on page 39 but is required to be
submitted with the application.
A:  That is an error.  The plan should be uploaded to grants.gov as an attachment.
Q:  The Dissemination section of the Applicant Evaluation and Performance Measurement Plan on page 25 states that awardees will be required
to submit a more detailed Evaluation and Performance Measurement Plan within the first six months.  Will this be the same plan that is submitted
with the application?
A:  Yes, CDC will work with awardees to revise their plans.
Q:  Can a community intervention strategy incorporate naloxone distribution (not for purchase)?
A:  Yes, distribution can be a part of a community intervention activity.  Note that the purchase of naloxone is outside the scope of this FOA and
is not allowed.
Q:  Regarding the calculation of burden on page 35 does the age-adjusted drug overdose death rate include all intents?
A:  Yes
Q:  Are there limitations on contracting personnel?  Some states have limitations on hiring FTE’s and plan to contract through a university for
some positions.
A:  Although the FOA does not specify a limited percent of the budget that may be used for contracting personnel, the FOA includes the
following funding restriction on page 33 stating that “The direct and primary recipient in a cooperative agreement program must perform a
substantial role in carrying out project outcomes and not merely serve as a conduit for an award to another party or provider who is ineligible.”
Q: When downloading the application from grants.gov it indicates that the application due date is April 28, 2015.  The FOA states May 8, 2015. 
What is the correct date?
A: The application deadline is May 8, 2015.
Q:  Is a “take back” program an allowable strategy for this funding?
A:  No.  As stated on page 11 of the FOA “Program funds cannot be used for purchasing naloxone, implementing or expanding drug “take back”
programs, or directly funding or expanding substance abuse treatment programs.  Such activities are outside the scope of this FOA.”
Q:  Regarding the third strategy “evaluating existing policies designed to reduce prescription drug overdose morbidity and mortality” is it
  39 of 42

http://www.grants.gov
http://www.cdc.gov/Injury/
http://www.cdc.gov/homeandrecreationalsafety/overdose/index.html


acceptable to evaluate a “take back” policy. 
A:  Yes
Q:  Will the budget be scored as part of the objective review process?
A:  The budget will be reviewed but not be scored as stated on page 35 under Budget and Budget Narrative.  Applicants should ignore the part of
the first sentence under the Budget Narrative section on page 31 stating “…which may be scored…” as the FOA includes standard language that
cannot be revised or removed.
Q: Are states required to have access to emergency department data?
A: No, states without emergency department data can substitute hospitalization or other morbidity data.

I. Glossary 

Activities: The actual events or actions that take place as a part of the program.

Administrative and National Policy Requirements, Additional Requirements (ARs): Administrative requirements found in 45 CFR Part 74
and Part 92 and other requirements mandated by statute or CDC policy. All ARs are listed in the Template for CDC programs. CDC programs
must indicate which ARs are relevant to the FOA; awardees must comply with the ARs listed in the FOA. To view brief descriptions of relevant
provisions, see  http://www.cdc.gov/grants/additionalrequirements/index.html
. Note that 2 CFR 200 will supersede the administrative requirements (A-110 & A-102), cost principles (A-21, A-87 & A-122) and audit
requirements (A-50, A-89 & A-133).

Award: Financial assistance that provides support or stimulation to accomplish a public purpose. Awards include grants and other agreements
(e.g., cooperative agreements) in the form of money, or property in lieu of money, by the federal government to an eligible applicant.

Budget Period or Budget Year: The duration of each individual funding period within the project period.Traditionally, budget periods are 12
months or 1 year.

Carryover: Unobligated federal funds remaining at the end of any budget period that, with the approval of the GMO or under an automatic
authority, may be carried over to another budget period to cover allowable costs of that budget period either as an offset or additional
authorization. Obligated but liquidated funds are not considered carryover.

Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA): A government-wide compendium published by the General Services Administration
(available on-line in searchable format as well as in printable format as a .pdf file) that describes domestic assistance programs administered by
the Federal Government.

CFDA Number: A unique number assigned to each program and FOA throughout its lifecycle that enables data and funding tracking and
transparency.

CDC Assurances and Certifications: Standard government-wide grant application forms.

Competing Continuation Award: A financial assistance mechanism that adds funds to a grant and adds one or more budget periods to the
previously established project period (i.e., extends the “life” of the award).

Continuous Quality Improvement: A system that seeks to improve the provision of services with an emphasis on future results.

Contracts: An award instrument used to acquire (by purchase, lease, or barter) property or services for the direct benefit or use of the Federal
Government.

Cooperative Agreement: A financial assistance award with the same kind of interagency relationship as a grant except that it provides for
substantial involvement by the federal agency funding the award. Substantial involvement means that the recipient can expect federal
programmatic collaboration or participation in carrying out the effort under the award.

Cost Sharing or Matching: Refers to program costs not borne by the Federal Government but by the awardees. It may include the value of
allowable third-party, in-kind contributions, as well as expenditures by the awardee.

Direct Assistance: A financial assistance mechanism, which must be specifically authorized by statute, whereby goods or services are provided to
recipients in lieu of cash. DA generally involves the assignment of federal personnel or the provision of equipment or supplies, such as vaccines.
DA is primarily used to support payroll and travel expenses of CDC employees assigned to state, tribal, local, and territorial (STLT) health
agencies that are recipients of grants and cooperative agreements. Most legislative authorities that provide financial assistance to STLT health
agencies allow for the use of DA.  http:// www.cdc.gov /grants /additionalrequirements /index.html.

DUNS: The Dun and Bradstreet (D&B) Data Universal Numbering System (DUNS) number is a nine-digit number assigned by Dun and
Bradstreet Information Services. When applying for Federal awards or cooperative agreements, all applicant organizations must obtain a DUNS
number as the Universal Identifier. DUNS number assignment is free. If requested by telephone, a DUNS number will be provided immediately
at no charge. If requested via the Internet, obtaining a DUNS number may take one to two days at no charge. If an organization does not know its
DUNS number or needs to register for one, visit Dun & Bradstreet at   http://fedgov.dnb.com/ webform/displayHomePage.do.
  40 of 42

http://www.cdc.gov/grants/additionalrequirements/index.html
http://www.cdc.gov/grants/additionalrequirements/index.html
http://fedgov.dnb.com/webform/displayHomePage.do


Evaluation (program evaluation): The systematic collection of information about the activities, characteristics, and outcomes of programs
(which may include interventions, policies, and specific projects) to make judgments about that program, improve program effectiveness, and/or
inform decisions about future program development.

Evaluation Plan: A written document describing the overall approach that will be used to guide an evaluation, including why the evaluation is
being conducted, how the findings will likely be used, and the design and data collection sources and methods. The plan specifies what will be
done, how it will be done, who will do it, and when it will be done. The FOA evaluation plan is used to describe how the awardee and/or CDC
will determine whether activities are implemented appropriately and outcomes are achieved.

Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act of 2006 (FFATA): Requires that information about federal awards, including awards,
contracts, loans, and other assistance and payments, be available to the public on a single website at www.USAspending.gov.

Fiscal Year: The year for which budget dollars are allocated annually. The federal fiscal year starts October 1 and ends September 30.

Grant: A legal instrument used by the federal government to transfer anything of value to a recipient for public support or stimulation authorized
by statute. Financial assistance may be money or property. The definition does not include a federal procurement subject to the Federal
Acquisition Regulation; technical assistance (which provides services instead of money); or assistance in the form of revenue sharing, loans, loan
guarantees, interest subsidies, insurance, or direct payments of any kind to a person or persons. The main difference between a grant and a
cooperative agreement is that in a grant there is no anticipated substantial programmatic involvement by the federal government under the award.

Grants.gov: A "storefront" web portal for electronic data collection (forms and reports) for federal grant-making agencies at www.grants.gov.

Grants Management Officer (GMO): The individual designated to serve as the HHS official responsible for the business management aspects
of a particular grant(s) or cooperative agreement(s). The GMO serves as the counterpart to the business officer of the recipient organization. In
this capacity, the GMO is responsible for all business management matters associated with the review, negotiation, award, and administration of
grants and interprets grants administration policies and provisions. The GMO works closely with the program or project officer who is responsible
for the scientific, technical, and programmatic aspects of the grant.

Grants Management Specialist (GMS): A federal staff member who oversees the business and other non-programmatic aspects of one or more
grants and/or cooperative agreements. These activities include, but are not limited to, evaluating grant applications for administrative content and
compliance with regulations and guidelines, negotiating grants, providing consultation and technical assistance to recipients, post-award
administration and closing out grants.

Health Disparities: Differences in health outcomes and their determinants among segments of the population as defined by social, demographic,
environmental, or geographic category.

Healthy People 2020: National health objectives aimed at improving the health of all Americans by encouraging collaboration across sectors,
guiding people toward making informed health decisions, and measuring the effects of prevention activities.

Inclusion: Both the meaningful involvement of a community’s members in all stages of the program process and the maximum involvement of
the target population that the intervention will benefit. Inclusion ensures that the views, perspectives, and needs of affected communities, care
providers, and key partners are considered.

Indirect Costs: Costs that are incurred for common or joint objectives and not readily and specifically identifiable with a particular sponsored
project, program, or activity; nevertheless, these costs are necessary to the operations of the organization. For example, the costs of operating and
maintaining facilities, depreciation, and administrative salaries generally are considered indirect costs.

Intergovernmental Review: Executive Order 12372 governs applications subject to Intergovernmental Review of Federal Programs. This order
sets up a system for state and local governmental review of proposed federal assistance applications. Contact the state single point of contact
(SPOC) to alert the SPOC to prospective applications and to receive instructions on the State’s process. Visit the following web address to get the
current SPOC list:  http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/ grants_spoc/.

Letter of Intent (LOI): A preliminary, non-binding indication of an organization’s intent to submit an application.

Lobbying: Direct lobbying includes any attempt to influence legislation, appropriations, regulations, administrative actions, executive orders
(legislation or other orders), or other similar deliberations at any level of government through communication that directly expresses a view on
proposed or pending legislation or other orders, and which is directed to staff members or other employees of a legislative body, government
officials, or employees who participate in formulating legislation or other orders. Grass roots lobbying includes efforts directed at inducing or
encouraging members of the public to contact their elected representatives at the federal, state, or local levels to urge support of, or opposition to,
proposed or pending legislative proposals.

Logic Model: A visual representation showing the sequence of related events connecting the activities of a program with the programs’ desired
outcomes and results.

  41 of 42

http://fedgov.dnb.com/webform/displayHomePage.do
http://www.USAspending.gov
http://www.grants.gov
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/grants_spoc/


Maintenance of Effort: A requirement contained in authorizing legislation, or applicable regulations that a recipient must agree to contribute and
maintain a specified level of financial effort from its own resources or other non-government sources to be eligible to receive federal grant funds.
This requirement is typically given in terms of meeting a previous base-year dollar amount.

Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) or Memorandum of Agreement (MOA): Document that describes a bilateral or multilateral
agreement between parties expressing a convergence of will between the parties, indicating an intended common line of action. It is often used in
cases where the parties either do not imply a legal commitment or cannot create a legally enforceable agreement.

Nonprofit Organization: Any corporation, trust, association, cooperative, or other organization that is operated primarily for scientific,
educational, service, charitable, or similar purposes in the public interest; is not organized for profit; and uses net proceeds to maintain, improve,
or expand the operations of the organization. Nonprofit organizations include institutions of higher educations, hospitals, and tribal organizations
(that is, Indian entities other than federally recognized Indian tribal governments).

Notice of Award (NoA): The official document, signed (or the electronic equivalent of signature) by a Grants Management Officer that: (1)
notifies the recipient of the award of a grant; (2) contains or references all the terms and conditions of the grant and Federal funding limits and
obligations; and (3) provides the documentary basis for recording the obligation of Federal funds in the HHS accounting system. 

Objective Review: A process that involves the thorough and consistent examination of applications based on an unbiased evaluation of scientific
or technical merit or other relevant aspects of the proposal. The review is intended to provide advice to the persons responsible for making award
decisions.

Outcome: The results of program operations or activites; the effects triggered by the program. For example, increased knowledge, changed
attitudes or beliefs, reduced tobacco use, reduced morbidity and mortality.

Performance Measurement: The ongoing monitoring and reporting of program accomplishments, particularly progress toward pre-established
goals, typically conducted by program or agency management. Performance measurement may address the type or level of program activities
conducted (process), the direct products and services delivered by a program (outputs), or the results of those products and services (outcomes). A
“program” may be any activity, project, function, or policy that has an identifiable purpose or set of objectives.

Plain Writing Act of 2010: Requires federal agencies to communicate with the public in plain language to make information more accessible and
understandable by intended users, especially people with limited health literacy skills or limited English proficiency. The Plain Writing Act is
available at  www.plainlanguage.gov.

Program Strategies: Strategies are groupings of related activities, usually expressed as general headers (e.g., Partnerships, Assessment, Policy)
or as brief statements (e.g., Form partnerships, Conduct assessments, Formulate policies).  

Program Official: Person responsible for developing the FOA; can be either a project officer, program manager, branch chief, division leader,
policy official, center leader, or similar staff member.

Project Period Outcome: An outcome that will occur by the end of the FOA’s funding period.

Public Health Accreditation Board (PHAB): A nonprofit organization that works to promote and protect the health of the public by advancing
the quality and performance of public health departments in the U.S. through national public health department
accreditation  http://www.phaboard.org.

Statute: An act of the legislature; a particular law enacted and established by the will of the legislative department of government, expressed with
the requisite formalities. In foreign or civil law any particular municipal law or usage, though resting for its authority on judicial decisions, or the
practice of nations.

Statutory Authority: Authority provided by legal statute that establishes a federal financial assistance program or award.

System for Award Management (SAM): The primary vendor database for the U.S. federal government. SAM validates applicant information
and electronically shares secure and encrypted data with federal agencies' finance offices to facilitate paperless payments through Electronic
Funds Transfer (EFT). SAM stores organizational information, allowing  www.grants.gov to verify identity and pre-fill organizational
information on grant applications.

Technical Assistance: Advice, assistance, or training pertaining to program development, implementation, maintenance, or evaluation that is
provided by the funding agency.

Work Plan: The summary of project period outcomes, strategies and activities, personnel and/or partners who will complete the activities, and the
timeline for completion. The work plan will outline the details of all necessary activities that will be supported through the approved budget.

  42 of 42

http://www.plainlanguage.gov
http://www.phaboard.org/
http://www.grants.gov


The Arizona Prescription Drug  

Reduction Initiative 

 
A Multi-Systemic Approach for Targeting Rx Drug  

Misuse and Abuse 

 

Prepared by: 

  

Shana Malone 

Arizona Criminal Justice Commission  

Statistical Analysis Center 

 



The “Silent” Epidemic 

• In November 2011, the CDC reported that deaths from Rx Pain 
Relievers have reached epidemic proportions 

• Rx Pain Reliever deaths are greater than heroin and cocaine combined 

• Rx Pain Reliever deaths have surpassed motor vehicle deaths 

• ~40 deaths per day and ~15,000 per year (2008) – a 3 fold increase since 1999 

• Half a million ED visits per year for misuse and abuse (2009) 

 

 

• There was a 4 fold increase in the quantity of Rx Pain Relievers sold 
in the U.S. in the last decade 

 Enough Rx Pain Relievers were prescribed in 2011 to medicate every Arizona adult 
around-the-clock for more than two weeks. 

 





What Is The Problem? 

• ~ 524 million Class II-IV pills were 
prescribed in Arizona in 2011 
 
•Pain Relievers had the highest % of 
scripts, pills and average number of 
pills per day. Accounting for 58.2% of 
all pills prescribed 
 
•Hydrocodone and Oxycodone 
accounted for 82.1% of all pain 
relievers prescribed in Arizona 
 
•Why it matters = probability and 
access! 
 

 

Oxycodone 
26.5% 

Hydrocodone 
21.3% 

Other Rx Pain 
Relievers 

10.4% 

Benzodiazepine 
22.8% 

All Other Rx 
Drugs 
14.3% 

Percentage of Pills by Drug Type in Arizona 
(2011) 



Who Is It Affecting? 
 

ARIZONA ADULTS 
In 2010, ~50% of adults reported Rx drug misuse in the past 12 months and 13% reported misuse in the 
past 30 days 

•  47% of Rx abusers reported misusing Pain Relievers, 32% Sedatives and 3.3% Stimulants 

 

0

20

40

60

80

100

18 - 28 29 - 39 40 - 49 50 - 59 60 - 69 70 and
older

10 
14 14 14 

19 
11 

39 30 
35 

31 24 

22 

51 
56 

51 
55 57 

67 

Used Prescription Drugs without Dr. ConsentSometime
in Your Lifetime but Not in 30 Days

Used Prescription Drugs without Dr. Consent in Past 12
Months but Not in 30 Days

Used Prescription Drugs without Dr. Consent in Past 30
Days



Who Is It Affecting? 

ARIZONA YOUTH 

• In 2012, 7.9% of AZ youth reported current  Rx drug misuse  (the most commonly used substance after 
alcohol, tobacco and marijuana) 

  

– Though a moderate decrease occurred between 2010 and 2012, Arizona remains the 6th highest 
state in the country for Rx drug misuse among individuals 12+ years 

 

– While rates of Rx type use were comparable to national levels  

 for Sedatives and Stimulants, Arizona youth in all grades reported  

 higher rates of Pain Reliever misuse 

 

– The majority of youth (92.7%) reported obtaining  

 them from everyday sources (e.g. friends and family/home) 

 
 

 

Everyday 
Sources 

  

92.7% 

Other, 

22.8% 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

P
er

ce
n

t 
(%

) 
O

b
ta

in
ed

 

Sources of Rx Drugs for Arizona Youth 
(2010) 



What Is It Costing Us? 

• Mortality & Morbidity 
– Opioid-related cases in the ED have 

consistently increased 
• A 34.5% increase between 2008-2010 
 

– 490 deaths involved Rx narcotic drugs in 
AZ in 2010 (A 53.5% increase between ‘06-’10) 

• Opioid Analgesics accounted for 64.3%  
• 11% were youth & young adults ages of 15-24 

years 

 
– Health insurance and AHCCCS costs 

• 52.5% of opioid-related AZ ED cases in 2010 were 
paid for by AHCCCS/Medicaid 

• CDC estimates Rx Pain Relievers cost health 
insurers up to $72.5 billion annually 

 

• Increase in Crime 
 

 

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

Opioid
Analgesics

Methadone Synthetic
Narcotics

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

D
e

at
h

s 

Arizona Rx Narcotic Related Deaths 

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010



What Is Amplifying The Problem? 
i.e., What Can We Change? 

• Social acceptance and the perception of “safety” by parents, youth, health 
consumers and some medical professionals 

• Lack of proper disposal and storage 
• Lack of understanding about risks 
• Lack of resilience skills 

 
• Only 21% of AZ prescribers are using the PDMP 
 
• Imbalanced dose: diagnosis correspondence (e.g., Oxycodone 30mg for wisdom teeth removal) 

 
• Lack of education and inconsistent prescribing guidelines for Rx narcotics 

 
• Unrealistic expectations of the Health Consumer for zero pain and immediate 

gratification 
 

 

 



FINDING A SOLUTION 

A Multi-Systemic Approach:  

Law Enforcement, Medical/Treatment, and Prevention 



History and Foundation 

• Early in 2011, ONDCP published the Rx Drug Abuse prevention plan 

 

• AZ HIDTA took the lead and held a Rx Drug Summit in October, 
2011 

• Focus was in 3 domains:  law enforcement, medical/treatment, prevention 
» Following the ONDCP recommendations, the summit sessions lead to recommendations for education, 

tracking and monitoring (PDMP), proper Rx disposal and  law enforcement initiatives 

 

• The Arizona Substance Abuse Partnership (ASAP) made Rx drug 
abuse their strategic area of focus in January 2012 



The Rx Drug Misuse and Abuse Initiative 

• Using the ONDCP and the AZ Rx Summit recommendations, ACJC 
and GOCYF hosted a Rx Drug Expert Panel in February, 2012 

 
• The panel and attendees involved local stakeholders from law enforcement, 

medical/treatment, and prevention/education 

 

• A set of strategies was developed from recommendations made by the expert 

panel and attendees and three pilot counties were chosen for a pilot project 

implementation 

 

• The pilot project will serve as a feasibility study to demonstrate the feasibility and 

efficacy (where measurable) of the strategies for an eventual statewide initiative 

 

 



Selection of the Pilot Counties 

• 3 pilot counties (Yavapai, Pinal and Graham/Greenlee) 
were chosen based on the following criteria: 

• Evidence of severe Rx drug problem among youth and adults 
demonstrated across multiple data sources 

 

• Willingness to use data-driven-decision-making to target and tailor 
implementation to specific geographic areas and demographic 
populations within the county 

 

• Capacity for implementation:  coalitions and working groups consisting of 
members from the 3 domains of law enforcement, medical/tx, prevention 



The Strategies 

1. Reduce Illicit Acquisition and Diversion of Rx Drugs 

 

2. Educate Prescribers and Pharmacists about “Rx Drug Best 

Practices” and emphasize responsible prescribing 

 

3. Enhance Rx Drug Practice and Policies in Law 

Enforcement 

 

4. Increase Public Awareness about the Risks of Rx Drug 

Misuse 

 

5. Build Resilience in Children and Adults 
 



Strategy #1:  Reduce Acquisition 

• Proper Disposal 
• Permanent drop boxes 

• Take-back events 

• Community education and awareness 
 

• Proper Storage 
• Community education and awareness 

 

• Increase the use of the PDMP 
• More law enforcement, prescribers and dispensers signed up and using the 

PDMP 

• A data feedback system for prescribers to self-monitor prescribing practices 



PDMP Prescriber Report Card 



Strategy #2: Educate Prescribers and 
Pharmacists about “Rx Best Practices”  

• Develop and Implement a research-based “Best Practice” 
curriculum for prescribers and pharmacists 

• A dosage piece identifying when, where, and how much to prescribe; 
standards for refills; prescriber – pharmacist communication protocols 

 

• A patient education piece that helps prescribers and pharmacists improve the 
prescription drug literacy of their patients (e.g., side effects, risks, alternatives, 
proper storage and disposal, etc.) 

 

• Recognition system for responsible prescribers and dispensers 
 

 



Strategy #3: Enhance Rx Drug Practice and 
Policies in Law Enforcement   

• Education and training for law enforcement officers 
• Prevalence of Rx drug abuse and diversion crimes 

• Pill recognition, use of poison control, how to read scripts and bottles, Rx street 
sales/trafficking and related crime 

 

• Improve coding structure of data management systems 
for tracking Rx drug offenses 

• Add a code to arrest information that flags an Rx drug-related crime 

 

 



Strategy #4: Increase Public Awareness about 
the Risks of Rx Drug Misuse   

• Mass media blasts to create a sense of urgency about 
the Rx drug misuse and abuse problem in Arizona 

 

• Rx 360 Adult curriculum to educate parents and other 
adults about the risks of Rx drug misuse 

 

• Rx 360 Youth curriculum to educate youth about the 
risks of Rx drug misuse 

 



Strategy #5: Build Resilience 

• Rx 360 Adult curriculum to train parents and adults how 
to teach youth strategies that increase their resilience to 
Rx drug abuse 

• Workplace Initiatives and Community Forums 

 

• Rx 360 Youth curriculum to teach youth strategies that 
increase their resilience to Rx drug abuse 

• Schools 

• Youth Serving Organizations 

• 6-8th grade curriculum; 9-12th grade curriculum 



Evaluating the Impact of our Efforts 

• Feasibility Study / Pilot Project 
• Telling the story of the implementation  

• Learning communities 

 

• Measuring Efficacy 
• Impact on the number of pills and scripts dispensed 

• Impact on Rx drug misuse 

• Impact on Rx drug crimes 

• Impact on Rx drug-related ED visits 

• Impact on Rx drug-related deaths 



Progress Highlights 

• Yavapai and Pinal Counties are collecting ~200-300 lbs per month in their drop boxes 
 

• PDMP prescriber sign-up has increased 25%, 31% & 4%, respectively in Yavapai, Pinal and 
Graham/Greenlee Counties 

 

• Yavapai Regional and Verde Valley Regional have implemented the ED Guidelines and are reporting 
marked decreases in drug-seeking patients 

 

• Report cards disseminated to over 1,000 prescribers in Yavapai, Pinal and Graham/Greenlee 
Counties – feedback has been very positive 

 

• 2 trainings in Yavapai and Pinal Counties have trained 94 medical professionals and pharmacists on 
Best Practice Guidelines 

 

• 4 Law Enforcement trainings in Yavapai, Pinal and Graham/Greenlee Counties have trained 201 
officers 

 

• Rx Drug Crimes Flagging System in place in Yavapai County 
 

• Several media spots have been implemented in Yavapai, Pinal and Graham/Greenlee Counties 
educating the public about the risks of Rx drug misuse and abuse as well as proper storage and 
disposal; estimated reach is 244,631 people 

 

• Yavapai, Pinal and Graham/Greenlee Counties have reached 6,730 youth and 463 adults with the 
Rx 360 curriculum 
 



http://www.azcjc.gov/acjc.web/rx/default.aspx 
 

http://www.azcjc.gov/acjc.web/rx/default.aspx


Thank you so much! 
 

For additional information, please contact: 
• Karen Ziegler (initiative co-chair):  kziegler@azcjc.gov 

• Rich Rosky (initiative co-chair):  southwest_meth@yahoo.com 

• Tammy Paz-Combs (ASAP contact):  tcombs@az.gov 

• Jeanne Blackburn (state-level strategies): Jblackburn@az.gov 

• Phil Stevenson (evaluation): pstevenson@azcjc.gov 

• Shana Malone (county-level strategies): smalone@azcjc.gov 

• Dean Wright (PDMP specifics):  DWright@azphamcy.gov 

• Shelly Mowrey (prevention):  shelly.mowrey@drugfreeaz.org 

• Tomi St. Mars (prescriber education):  Tomi.St.Mars@azdhs.gov 
 
 

 

mailto:kziegler@azcjc.gov
mailto:southwest_meth@yahoo.com
mailto:tcombs@az.gov
mailto:Jblackburn@az.gov
mailto:pstevenson@azcjc.gov
mailto:smalone@azcjc.gov
mailto:DWright@azphamcy.gov
mailto:shelly.mowrey@drugfreeaz.org
mailto:Tomi.St.Mars@azdhs.gov


ARIZONA GUIDELINES FOR DISPENSING 
CONTROLLED SUBSTANCES 

Arizona Pharmacy Association 



Pharmacist Guidelines 

• Developed by Arizona Pharmacist Forum: 
• Local Retail Pharmacies 
• Corporate Pharmacies 
• Midwestern University 
• University of Arizona 
• County and State Health Officials 
• Insurance Companies 
• The National Meth and Pharmaceutical Initiative 
• Local Substance Abuse Community Coalitions 

 
• Consensus document endorsed by AzPA, State Board of 

Pharmacy, ACJC, HIDTA 
 

• Intended to help reduce inappropriate use of controlled 
substances 

 

• Pharmacist MUST use their clinical judgment 
 



Guideline #1 

• Pharmacists should check the Arizona Prescription Drug 
Monitoring Program before dispensing controlled 
substances, and specifically in the following circumstances: 

• All Schedule II or Schedule III drugs for: 
• Every new or unknown patient 

• All weekend and late day prescriptions 

• Prescriptions written far from the location of the Pharmacy or the patient’s residence 

• Any time suspicious behavior is noted 

• Controlled substances in high doses or high quantities 
 

• Any prescription considered an outlier to what is normally prescribed 
 

• Any prescription for Oxycodone 15mg or 30mg 
 

• Regular patients at least once per year 
 

• Document in the patient’s file to indicate that the PDMP was checked 
 

• All pharmacists, including “floaters” receive education on the PDMP 

 



SIGNS OF CHEMICAL DEPENDENCY AND DOCTOR SHOPPING 

  

RED FLAG INDICATORS 

Pupils – pinpoint or extremely dilated Refuses or is reluctant to present identification 

Droopy eyelids Out-of-town patient or claims to be from out-of-town 

Constant runny nose and rubbing of nose Cash-paying patients or use insurance at times/pay cash at times 

Complexion either pale or flushed Very assertive 

Excessive itching and scratching Any telephone requests for narcotics 

Sweating Presents at times when prescriber cannot be reached 

Tremors Inordinate interest in the layout of the pharmacy 

Rigid movements and muscle cramps Appears to be in a hurry 

Fearful and agitated (in withdrawal) Tries to take control of the discussion 

Emotionally volatile (in withdrawal) Well versed in clinical terminology 

Lethargic and disinterested (using drug) Reports allergy to codeine, NSAIDs, or local anesthetics 

Giddy and overly friend (using drug) Very manipulative - they tell a very good story 

Evasive answers Inappropriate interpersonal space or seductiveness 



Guideline #2 
• Pharmacists should use clinical judgment for when to 

communicate with Prescribers, but should specifically 
contact Prescribers in the following circumstances: 

• Pharmacist suspects a forged, altered or counterfeited prescription 
 

• Patient is repeatedly requesting early refills of controlled substances 
 

• Patient is specifically requesting early refills of Opioids, 
Benzodiazepines or Carisoprodol 

 

• Patient presents with a high quantity from the Emergency Department 
 

• Any time suspicious behavior is noted 
 

• Establish face-to-face contact with the Emergency Department Director, 
if you receive high traffic from ED patients 

 

• Call the phone number for the prescriber listed in their computer vs. 
the phone number on the prescription 



Guideline #3 

• Pharmacists should use clinical judgment for when to 
communicate with other Pharmacies, but should 
specifically contact other Pharmacies in the following 
circumstances: 

• If you receive a prescription that has been denied by another dispenser 
 

• If you deny a patient a prescription, it is recommended that you call 
other local Pharmacies (within a 5 mile radius) to alert them 

 

• It is important to note that cross-communication between 
pharmacies is NOT a violation of HIPPA 



Guideline #4 

• Pharmacists should require a government issued 
identification for all new or unknown patients before 
dispensing any controlled substance 

• If you suspect a fake ID is involved, conduct the following steps: 
• Squeeze the ID to make sure the weight and rigidity matches AZ IDs 
 

• Look for squared edges (most IDs have rounded edges) 
 

• Using the pads of your fingers, lightly feel for bumps, ridges and 
irregularities on the front and back surfaces of the ID 

 

• Check for font or coloration differences (e.g., different font style, improper 
bolding, lack of shading, spelling errors, or the wrong font size) 

 

• Check the front and back for words like secure, valid, genuine or credibility 
status (these are common false “security measures” placed on fake IDs) 

 

• Request another form of ID (e.g., a credit card), as people who present fake 
IDs are often reluctant to produce another form of ID 

 

• If you confirm a fake ID, do not dispense the prescription 



Guideline #5 
• Pharmacists should not fill a prescription if they believe it 

is forged, altered, or counterfeited 
• Call the prescriber to verify first 

 
 

• Be familiar with the characteristics of forged prescriptions 
 

 

• Fill our an Rx Alert form for all fraudulent prescriptions: FaxNet One no 
longer exists, we are working on a replacement. The new Rx Alert form 
will be available on our web site soon. 

• If you deny a prescription, notify other local pharmacists 
 

• If you discover a pattern, contact the authorities - can be anonymous 
 

• Be familiar with the law and your legal and ethical responsibilities 
– It is unlawful to knowingly dispense controlled substances for anything other than a “legitimate 

medical purpose.”   

– There is no legal obligation to dispense a prescription, especially one of doubtful, questionable, 
or suspicious origin.   

• A fraudulent prescription is private property – return if requested 
 

• No legal requirement to contact the police but advisable that you do 



Guideline #6 
• Pharmacists should educate their patients about proper 

storage and proper disposal during the patient consultation 
prior to dispensing controlled substances  

• Especially if there are youth in the home 
 

• Never leave any controlled substance out “in the open” 
 

• Never flush prescriptions down the toilet or throw as-is in the trash 
 

• Information on take-back events and permanent drop box locations or 
instruct your patients to use the DEA disposal guidelines and FDA tips:   

– Take out of original container and mix with undesirable substance (e.g., coffee grounds or kitty 
litter); then put in a sealable bag, empty can, or other container to prevent leakage 

– Scratch out all identifying information on the prescription label to protect their identity and 
personal health information 

 

• Never share medication with friends, family or others 



Prevention in the Home 

Addressing the Growing Concern of 
Youth Rx Drug Misuse 



Yavapai county has the 3rd highest rate of youth Rx 
drug misuse in Arizona 

 
Yavapai County teens use Rx pain relievers at double 

the national average!  
 

Nearly 1 out of 6  
12 to 17 year olds has used a Rx pain reliever without a 

Dr.’s prescription 
 

How big is the problem? 

Arizona Youth Survey, 2012 



Key Factors Driving Teen 
Medicine Abuse 

 
• Misperception that abusing medicine is  

not dangerous (safer than “street drugs”) 
 
• Parents are less familiar with “pills” – they often 

have no frame of reference since abusing these 
types of drugs didn’t exist in their youth 
 

• Ease of access via medicine cabinets at home or 
friend’s house, own or other person’s 
prescriptions 



What Can Parents Do? 

• Educate yourself about medications kids are abusing 
 
• Communicate: Talk with your kids / kids in your life 

about the risks 
• Let your kids know you disapprove of any drug/alcohol  use – kids 

who believe their parents will be upset if they try drugs are 43% 
less likely to do so 

 

• Safeguard medications at home (and ask friends to do 
the same) 

 
• Dispose of medications properly 



How To Spot Rx Misuse & Abuse 

• Here are 5 changes to watch for… 

1. Missing Pills 

2. Slurred speech but no odor of alcohol 

3. Deteriorating relationships with family 

4. Less openness and honesty 

5. Abrupt change in friends, groups, behavior 

• Be aware of special vulnerabilities 



What to Do When You Spot  
Drug/Alcohol Use 

5 ways to take action 

1. Focus - You can do this 

 Don’t panic, but act right away 

2. Start talking 

 Let your child know you are concerned - communicate your 
disapproval 

3. Set limits – set rules and consequences 

4. Monitor – Look for evidence, make lists, keep track  

5. Get outside/professional help – you don’t have to do this alone 





QUESTIONS? 

Arizona State Board of Pharmacy 

Web page: www.azpharmacy.gov 

 

Dean Wright, CSPMP Director 

Arizona State Board of Pharmacy 

1616 W. Adams, Suite 120 

P.O. Box 18520 

Phoenix, AZ 85005 

602-771-2744 

Fax: 602-771-2748 

dwright@azpharmacy.gov 

 



 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D). 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).   

 

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 

Agreement (IGA) Review 
 

 

  A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that  

 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 

procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 

submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 

procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 

proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 

the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 

unit. 

 

 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 

they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 

contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 

requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 

does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 

objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 

agency through its elected body.    



 

 Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 

executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 

the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 

requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 

executed. 

  

 Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 

properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 

applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 

extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 

agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 

by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 

wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 

in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 

action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 

directed to the County Attorney’s Office. 

 

 Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 

“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 

approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 

person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 

the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 

of payment.”  

 

 The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 

responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 

obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  

This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 

the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 

actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 

does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 

will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 

the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance. 

 

 Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 

Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 

the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 

IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 

IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 

review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 

review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 

greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 

agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 

Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.   

 



   

ARF-3424     Regular Agenda Item      4. E.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 11/17/2015  

Submitted For: Eric Mariscal, Director 
Submitted By: Cate Gore, Elections Assistant, Elections Department
Department: Elections Department
Fiscal Year: 2015-2016 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

2015-2016 Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Selection of a vendor to purchase the necessary equipment to operate the vote centers
and voting precincts as established by the Board of Supervisors

Background Information
On September 1, 2015, Elections Systems & Software provided the Board of
Supervisors with a presentation of its product line to include electronic scanning units
and accessible voting devices because the voting equipment currently utilized by the
County is old and outdated and there is a need to purchase new equipment.  On
September 15, 2015, Unisyn Voting Solutions and Robis Elections, Inc. were both
provided the same opportunity to present their product lines to the Board. 

On October 6, 2015, the Board of Supervisors established 5 vote centers at specific
locations within Gila County while maintaining 11 existing voting precincts, and
authorized the Elections Director to issue a Request for Proposals from the 3
companies that earlier provided a presentation to the Board in order to eventually
purchase new voting equipment.

For many years now, voting at the traditional polling sites has been on the decline. 
This is not only true in Gila County, but in Arizona and across the nation.  Voters are
taking advantage of the "Early Voting" by mail in greater and greater numbers.  Since
2006, the number of people voting at the traditional polling places in Gila County
versus the number of people voting via early ballot has changed substantially.  The
Board of Supervisors approved the establishment of vote centers to bring about
efficiency of resources and a quality voting experience for the citizens of Gila County. 
In order for vote centers to perform at peak efficiency it is necessary to replace Gila
County's aging voting equipment, which has a life expectancy of operation of ten
years.  Gila County's current equipment, the Accu Vote Optical Scanner and TSX
accessible voting units were purchased in 2004 and 2006, placing both systems at the
terminus point of their useful service.

Evaluation



If vote centers are equipped properly with electronic poll books and ballot on demand
printers, where printers make economic sense, voters will be able to vote in any vote
center in the entire County without regard to an assigned precinct.  Cost savings over
time include a reduction in the total number of poll workers required, the cost to rent
polling place facilities, and the cost of printing excess ballots. (See Attachment A) 
Printing and two-years' worth of storage of ballots for 101% + of the voting population
is a tremendous waste of taxpayer resources when, historically, there has been a 45%
to 65% voter turnout.  There will be significant public communication to allow voters
the opportunity to test the equipment and discuss the vote center concept.  In seeking
a replacement for Gila County's voting equipment, three vendors and their election
systems have been reviewed.  The vendors are: 1) Election Systems & Software, 2)
Robis Inc. Elections, and 3) Unisyn Voting Solutions.  All three vendors have provided
official price quotes as requested by the Gila County Elections Department. (See
Attachment B) 

For the last several years the Elections Department has set aside capital improvement
funds to purchase new equipment. These capital improvement savings and the
remaining HAVA (Help America Vote Act) funds total $277,000. Based upon the
submitted quotes, staff estimates the cost to purchase the equipment needed to
operate the vote centers and precincts to be approximately $395,000. At the time of
the contract approval by the Board of Supervisors (at a future meeting), staff will
recommend the authorization of the use of General Fund Contingency Funds in the
amount of $118,000 in order to purchase the equipment needed to operate the vote
centers. (See Attachment C)

Conclusion
The Gila County Elections Department and the Gila County Recorder's Office have
reviewed the voting equipment that has been demonstrated by Election Systems &
Software, Robis Elections Inc., and Unisyn Voting Solutions Inc.  Of the vendors that
have been reviewed, there is only one company that has a complete voting system that
will allow Gila County to pursue the transition from precinct based voting to vote
centers.  For vote centers to work, the electronic poll book, ballot on demand printers
and accessible voting units are essential.  Only Election Systems & Software has all of
the components necessary to ensure the effective and seamless operation of vote
centers on Election Day.  It is the recommendation of the Gila County Elections
Director and the Gila County Recorder that the Board of Supervisors select Election
Systems & Software as the vendor to purchase the equipment that will be necessary to
equip the vote centers, Recorder's Office and the Elections Department.  In addition to
the $277,000 already set aside, additional funding in the approximate amount of
$118,000 will be required for this purchase.

Recommendation
The Gila County Elections Director and the Gila County Recorder recommend that the
Gila County Board of Supervisors select the firm of Election Systems & Software to
negotiate the purchase of the necessary equipment for a not to exceed amount of
$395,000 with the understanding that approximately $118,000 of General Fund
Contingency Funds will be required to complete the transaction.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to select the firm of Election Systems & Software for



Information/Discussion/Action to select the firm of Election Systems & Software for
the future purchase of voting equipment to be utilized at vote centers, precinct polling
sites, Gila County Recorder's Office, and Gila County Elections Department, and
further to instruct staff to negotiate the purchase for a not to exceed amount of
$395,000.  (Eric Mariscal)

Attachments
Attachment A - Vote Centers Cost Saving Sheet
Attachment B - Price Quotes
Attachment C - Additional Funding Requests





























































   
ARF-3436     Regular Agenda Item      4. F.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 11/17/2015  
Submitted For: Steve Sanders, Director 
Submitted By: Patti Dremler, Administrative Clerk Specialist, Public

Works Division
Department: Public Works Division

Information
Request/Subject
Gila County Public Works received an application and petition to begin
the process to abandon a portion of Elaine Way adjacent to Lot 9
Christopher Creek Haven Plat Five, Official Map No. 448, Gila County
Records.

Background Information
The Christopher Creek Haven Plat Five was recorded in April 1971. Elaine
Way is a dedicated public road forty six (46) feet in width.

Evaluation
A portion of the home, stairs, upper deck, and a building encroach into
the right-of-way of Elaine Way. Abandoning the portion of Elaine Way
burdened by the encroachments will not affect the traveling public that
use Elaine Way.

Conclusion
It is in the best interest of all involved to begin the process to abandon the
portion of Elaine Way being encroached upon.

Recommendation
It is the recommendation of the Public Works Division Director that the
Board begin the process to abandon a portion Elaine Way.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to accept a Citizens' Petition in order to
begin the process to abandon a portion of Elaine Way, which is adjacent
to Lot 9 Christopher Creek Haven Plat Five, an area of Payson.  (Steve
Sanders)



Attachments
Petition
Plat Map
Record of Survey









   
ARF-3412     Regular Agenda Item      4. G.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 11/17/2015  
Submitted For: Steve Sanders, Director 
Submitted By: Shannon Boyer, Executive Administrative Asst., Public

Works Division
Department: Public Works Division

Information
Request/Subject
Gila County Public Works received an application and petition to begin
the process to abandon a portion of W. Cocopah Lane adjacent to Lot 14
Geronimo Estates Unit One, Official Map No. 241, Gila County Records.

Background Information
Geronimo Estates Unit One was recorded in April 1960.  Cocopah Lane
was known as Arrowhead Drive on the Geronimo Estates Unit One Plat. It
is a dedicated public road which is 40 feet in width.

Evaluation
A portion of the carport encroaches into the right-of-way of W. Cocopah
Lane. Abandoning the portion of W. Cocopah Lane burdened by the
encroachment will not affect the traveling public that uses W. Cocopah
Lane.

Conclusion
It is in the best interest of all involved to begin the process to abandon the
portion of W. Cocopah Lane being encroached upon.

Recommendation
It is the recommendation of the Public Works Division Director that the
Board begin the process to abandon a portion W. Cocopah Lane.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to accept a Citizens' Petition in order to
begin the process to abandon a portion of W. Cocopah Lane, which is
adjacent to Lot 14 Geronimo Estates Unit One, an area of Payson.  (Steve
Sanders)



Attachments
Citizens' Petition Re W. Cocopah Lane
Map Showing W. Cocopah Lane







   

ARF-3288     Regular Agenda Item      4. H.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 11/17/2015  

Submitted For: Jeff Hessenius, Finance Director 
Submitted By: Jeannie Sgroi, Contracts Administrator, Finance Division
Department: Finance Division
Fiscal Year: 2015-2016 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

July 1, 2015 to
June 30, 2016

Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Request for Approval of Contract No. 041515-7 for Legal Services with Steven E. Burk,
Attorney.

Background Information
Each year the Superior Court in Gila County retains various attorneys to provide
professional legal services, such as representation for indigent citizens in the
categories of felony and misdemeanor criminal actions, delinquency, dependency, and
mental health cases, as well as mediation services. 

At the June 23, 2015, Board of Supervisors' meeting, the Board approved the
contracts for all of the attorneys with the exception of Timothy Nelson, John
Perlman, Barry Standifird and Steven E. Burk.  Timothy Nelson's, John Perlman's, and
Barry Standifird's contracts were approved at the July 7, 2015, Board of Supervisors'
meeting.  Steven E. Burk's contract was not received by staff until July 22, 2015.

Evaluation
The professional services contract for Steven E. Burk, an attorney utilized annually by
the Superior Court in Gila County, expired on June 30, 2015.  A new contract has
been developed with a contract term commencing on July 1, 2015, and expiring on
June 30, 2016, with options to renew for two additional one-year periods.

Conclusion
Court staff wishes to execute the new contract with Steven E. Burk to replace the
contract that expired on June 30, 2015.

Recommendation
The Finance Division Director and the Court Administrator for the Superior Court in
Gila County recommend the Board of Supervisors' approval of the attached
Professional Services Contract with Steven E. Burk.



Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve Professional Services Contract No.
041515-7 in order to retain the services of Steven E. Burk, Attorney, for the period of
July 1, 2015, through June 30, 2016; who assists the Superior Court in Gila County
as a public defender on an annual basis.  (Kendall Rhyne and Jeff Hessenius)

Attachments
Professional Services Contract No. 041515-7-Steven E. Burk
Approved As To Form























 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office “approval as to form” of contract or agreement. 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the contract or agreement attached to this 

agenda item and has determined that it is in its proper form and  is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to the public agency requesting the County 

Attorney’s Office review.   

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office 
“Approval as to Form” Review 

 
 
  The Gila County Attorney’s Office is often called upon to review contracts and 
other agreements between public entities represented by the County Attorney and 
private vendors, contractors, and individuals.   
 
 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews these contracts 
to see that they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means 
that the contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific 
legislative requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public 
agency.  It does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports 
the policy objectives contained in the contract.  That approval is solely the province 
of the public agency through its elected body.    
 
 The public agency or department submitting the contract for review has the 
responsibility to read and understand the contract in order to completely understand 
its obligations under the contract if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s 
board.  This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the contract 
as to form, the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the 
capacity to actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County 
Attorney’s Office does not monitor contract compliance.  Hence the public entity or 



submitting department will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A 
thorough knowledge of the provisions of the contract will be necessary to monitor 
compliance. 

 
 Before signing a contract “approved as to form,” the County Attorney’s Office 
will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about the contract.  It is 
the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the contract for 
review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the contract 
to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the contract for review.  
Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office review of 
the contract because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of greatest 
concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the agency does 
have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County Attorney’s Office to 
meaningfully review the agreement.   

 



   

ARF-3462     Regular Agenda Item      4. I.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 11/17/2015  

Submitted By: Don McDaniel
Jr., County
Manager, County
Manager

Department: County Manager
Fiscal Year: 2015-2016 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

2015-2016 Fiscal
Year

Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Pinal-Gila Council for Senior Citizens Request for Funds

Background Information
The Pinal-Gila Council for Senior Citizens (PGCSC) was incorporated in 1974 and is a
non-profit organization designated as the Area Agency on Aging for Region V, which
encompasses Pinal and Gila counties. PGCSC’s mission is to assist seniors and
persons with disabilities in Region V achieve and maintain self-sufficiency with dignity,
and offer choices of appropriate care by providing a wide range of community and
home based services. PGCSC also represents the interests of the elderly and acts to
advocate for change in public and private attitudes, policies, and regulations.

Gila County has contributed to PGCSC since 1979. PGCSC receives Gila County funds
in the amount of $21,500 annually. These funds are for the purpose of providing
County support to administration and program services for our seniors and persons
with disabilities population in the Gila County area.

Program Services and Allocations: 

Miami Senior Center/Town of Miami - Home Delivered Meals $ 3,000
Globe Senior Center/City of Globe - Home Delivered Meals $ 3,000
Payson Multipurpose Center - Home Delivered Meals $ 3,000
Hayden Senior Center/Town of Hayden - Home Delivered Meals $ 3,000
Catholic Community Services and PGCSC In-Home Case Management
Service

$ 9,000

Administration $ 500
Total $21,500



Evaluation
PGCSC provides a wide variety of services for seniors, persons with disabilities and
caregivers. These services are offered directly or through a network of provider
agencies. PGCSC services include, but not limited to the following:

Aging, Disability and Caregiver Support Resources
Information, Referral and Assistance
Grandparents Raising Grandchildren Programs
Behavior Health – Substance Abuse and Suicide Prevention
Case Management
Home Care (Housekeeping, Personal and Respite Care)
Benefits, Entitlements and Advocacy (Health Care Insurance and Benefits Counseling,
Ombudsman (Nursing Home Advocacy)
Legal Services and Legal Help Line
Mature Work Force Development (Senior Employment and Training Programs)
Multipurpose Senior Centers (Social, Nutritional and Wellness Support)
Home Delivered Meals
Mobility Management – Transportation Provider Coordination and Senior Rides Transit
Program Training
Volunteer Services

Conclusion
It is the intent of the County pursuant to A.R.S. §11-254 to provide $21,500 in an
Economic Development Grant to Pinal-Gila Council for Senior Citizens to enhance the
economic welfare of the inhabitants of the County.

The PGCSC is a non-profit organization which enjoys and maintains federal exempt
status and the County has determined that the purpose of this funding request is
public and that the expenditure of these funds will assist in improving or enhancing
the economic welfare of the inhabitants of the County.

Recommendation
Staff recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve the Agreement-Economic
Development Grant between Gila County and Pinal-Gila Council for Senior Citizens
Area Agency on Aging Region V in an amount not to exceed $21,500.

PGCSC agrees to provide to the County an annual report.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve an Agreement-Economic Development
Grant (Agreement No. 103015-1) between Gila County and Pinal-Gila Council for
Senior Citizens Area Agency on Aging whereby the County will disburse up to $21,500;
and, further, the Board determines this is for the benefit of the public and will improve
or enhance the economic welfare of the inhabitants of Gila County.  (Don McDaniel)

Attachments
Pinal-Gila Council for Senior Citizens Agreement No. 103015-1
Pinal-Gila Council for Senior Citizens Request for Funds-2015



Approval as to Form











 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D). 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).   

 

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 

Agreement (IGA) Review 
 

 

  A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that  

 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 

procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 

submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 

procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 

proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 

the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 

unit. 

 

 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 

they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 

contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 

requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 

does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 

objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 

agency through its elected body.    



 

 Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 

executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 

the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 

requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 

executed. 

  

 Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 

properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 

applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 

extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 

agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 

by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 

wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 

in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 

action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 

directed to the County Attorney’s Office. 

 

 Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 

“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 

approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 

person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 

the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 

of payment.”  

 

 The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 

responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 

obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  

This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 

the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 

actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 

does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 

will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 

the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance. 

 

 Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 

Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 

the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 

IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 

IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 

review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 

review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 

greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 

agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 

Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.   

 



   
ARF-3448     Regular Agenda Item      4. J.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 11/17/2015  
Submitted For: Don McDaniel Jr., County Manager 
Submitted By: Jacque Griffin, Asst. County Manager/Librarian, Asst

County Manager/Library District
Department: Asst County Manager/Library District

Information
Request/Subject
Resolution No. 15-11-02 for County Supervisors Association
(CSA) Legislative Priorities for 2016.

Background Information
Following the recent County Supervisors Association (CSA) Legislative
Summit, CSA staff has begun to set up meetings with many legislators
and their executive staff to introduce, educate and advocate the fiscal and
legislative priorities that were agreed upon at the CSA Legislative Summit
for the coming session. The message they will be delivering was adopted
by the CSA Board of Directors at the summit and focuses on restoring
counties to fiscal health. The overall message includes:
  

The county’s lack of capacity to absorb additional cost shifts.
The county’s support for the policies listed in the resolution.
The county’s dire concern with the state’s growing propensity to
shift state agency costs to counties.

Evaluation
CSA staff has asked that each county adopt and send the attached
resolution to remind our legislators of the concerns and priorities. They
are also recommending that Supervisors arrange visits with their
legislative delegations.

Conclusion
Adopting this resolution and sending to the appropriate legislators serves
to inform so that they may advocate the county legislative priorities at the
state level.

Recommendation



Staff recommends adopting this resolution regarding the 2016 legislative
priorities.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution 15-11-02 regarding
the 2016 legislative priorities and to authorize the Chairman's signature
on letters to be mailed to state legislators requesting consideration and
support of legislative priorities which are outlined in the resolution.  (Don
McDaniel)

Attachments
Resolution 15-11-02
Sample Letter to Legislators



Resolution 15-11-02  Page 1 of 2 

 

 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-11-02 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF GILA 

COUNTY REGARDING 2016 LEGISLATIVE PRIORITIES 

                      

WHEREAS, actions by state government since 2009 have impacted Gila County by 

approximately $5.1 million, and 

 

WHEREAS, these actions have resulted in over $2.0 million in diverted road maintenance 

funds, $1.7 million in lost revenue, and $1.4 million in program shifts, including increasing the 

county share of justices of the peace salaries, and requiring counties to fund state agencies, and 

 

WHEREAS, these cost shifts caused significant financial distress for Gila County, which is 

already reeling from the negative financial impacts of the economic downturn and slow recovery, 

and 

 

WHEREAS, the current structure of the Public Safety Personnel Retirement System (PSPRS) is 

unsustainable and is placing growing pressure on Gila County taxpayers, and  

 

WHEREAS, the shifting of state agency costs to counties is both an inappropriate use of county 

taxpayer dollars and an ineffective governance model, forcing county taxpayers to subsidize a 

state run agency with no county managerial oversight, and  

 

WHEREAS, Gila County has neither the financial capacity to pay for additional state costs, nor 

the statutory ability to control costs of state administered programs the county is required to 

fund, and  

 

WHEREAS, Gila County also faces significant risk from the uncertain funding status of federal 

programs, including the Payment in Lieu of Taxes and Secure Rural Schools programs, and  

 

WHEREAS, Gila County’s financial condition continues to be suppressed by declining Net 

Assessed Value in five out of the last six years and declining sales tax revenue in the first eight 

months of 2015 likely caused by state changes to sales tax statutes, and 

 

WHEREAS, it is critical to Gila County that the state works to eliminate these cost shifts and 

revenue reductions in the FY 2017 budget, with the goal of reestablishing a sustainable financial 

model for the county. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors of Gila County that 

the Arizona State Legislature is hereby implored to: 



Resolution 15-11-02  Page 2 of 2 

 

 

 Engage with stakeholders to create a viable, long-term funding and benefit structure in 

PSPRS that addresses the needs of public safety professionals while protecting the 

interests of taxpayers; and 

 Eliminate mandated county payments to state agencies, including the Arizona 

Department of Juvenile Corrections, the Arizona Department of Revenue, and the 

Arizona State Hospital; and 

 Engage with counties and other stakeholders to find a mutually beneficial solution that 

protects both the state and local governments from uncapped liabilities associated with 

the 1 Percent Constitutional Property Tax Cap while allowing for budget flexibility to 

respond to constituent needs; and 

 Eliminate the local government HURF transfers in the state budget, identify and enact 

revenue enhancements for the existing HURF distribution system, and pursue policies 

that improve efficient utilization of transportation resources; and 

 Eliminate, fully fund, or require the political parties to pay for the costs associated with 

the Presidential Preference Election; and 

 Restore, in statute, the county share of lottery funds to provide a stable source of revenue 

for county operations; and 

 Continue to include authority for counties to access restricted funds through flexibility 

language to allow counties the ability to most efficiently manage taxpayer funds; 

 

Thereby providing Gila County and all Arizona counties with the financial stability necessary to 

continue providing mandated state services to local residents. 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 17
th

 day of November 2015. 

 

Attest:      GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 

____________________________  ________________________________________ 

Marian Sheppard, Clerk   Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 

 

     

Approved as to form: 

 

____________________________ 

Jefferson R. Dalton 

Deputy Gila County Attorney 

Civil Bureau Chief 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

November 17, 2015 
 
 

Honorable 
District _ Representative or Senator 
House of Representatives or Arizona State Senate, Capitol Complex 
1700 West Washington, Room ____ 
Phoenix, Arizona  85007-2890 
 
Dear Representative or Senator _____: 
 
Thank you for your leadership and hard work on behalf of your constituents in Gila County.  As you 
prepare for the 2016 legislative session, we respectfully request your consideration and support of 
fiscal priorities in the FY16/17 state budget which we have outlined in our Resolution No. 2015-XX 
attached hereto.  
 
The fiscal priorities outlined in the Resolution each have merit and are the result of consensus 
reached by the boards of supervisors of all 15 Arizona counties.  But, three issues of particular 
importance to Gila County are: 

 Diversion from the counties to the state of Highway User Revenue Funds which impacts 

road maintenance and, thereby, commerce; and, 

 The uncapped liabilities associated with the 1% Constitutional Property Tax Cap; and, 

 The unsustainable structure of the current Public Safety Personnel Retirement System. 

Addressing these items represents good public policy across Arizona, but would have particularly 
meaningful impact on county services. 
        
We would welcome the opportunity, at your convenience, to discuss these and other matters that 
may be of mutual interest during the 2016 legislation session.  In the meantime, do not hesitate to 
contact us if there is anything we can do to assist in your efforts to represent the residents of Gila 
County and Arizona. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Michael A. Pastor, Chairman/District II Supervisor 
Gila County Board of Supervisors 

Tommie C. Martin, District I 

610 E. Hwy 260, Payson, 85547 

(928) 474-2029 

tmartin@gilacountyaz.gov 

 

Michael A. Pastor, District II 

(928) 402-8753 

mpastor@gilacountyaz.gov  
 

John D. Marcanti, District III 

(928) 402-8726 

jmarcanti@gilacountyaz.gov  
 
 
 

 

Don E. McDaniel, Jr. 

County Manager 

(928) 402-4344 

dmcdaniel@gilacountyaz.gov 

 

 

Marian Sheppard 

Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 

(928) 402-8757 

msheppard@gilacountyaz.gov 

  
 
 

 

GILA COUNTY 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

1400 E. Ash Street 

Globe, Arizona 85501 
 

mailto:tmartin
mailto:mpastor@gilacountyaz.gov
mailto:jmarcanti@gilacountyaz.gov


   

ARF-3457     Consent Agenda Item      5. A.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 11/17/2015  

Submitted For: Steve Sanders, Director 
Submitted By: Kelly Jones, Administrative Clerk Specialist, Public Works Division
Department: Public Works Division Division: Fairground Facilities

Information
Request/Subject
Application for a waiver of Fairgrounds' Exhibit Hall rental fees and security fees for the Gila County
Gem & Mineral Society's annual Gem & Mineral Show on January 15-17, 2016.

Background Information
The Gila County Gem & Mineral Society, Inc. (Society) is a 501(c)(4) tax exempt organization that puts on
an annual Gem & Mineral Show at the Gila County Fairgrounds.  The Society's annual Gem & Mineral
Show has been a part of Gila County's history for over 57 years.  During the 2015 Gem & Mineral Show,
free admission was provided to all students and student groups along with any chaperones
(approximately 350 persons).

Evaluation
The Society is requesting that the Board of Supervisors waive the fees that are charged for the use of the
Exhibit Hall at the County Fairgrounds for its annual show to be held on January 15-17, 2016.  In
addition, the Society is requesting that the security fees for this event also be waived.

Conclusion
The Board of Supervisors may consider waiving fees associated with the use of the Fairgrounds' facilties,
arenas, corrals, etc.  The amount charged by the County for the security fees directly pays the wages of
the Gila County Sheriff's deputies who work overtime to provide security for the special event.

Recommendation
The Public Works Division Director recommends that the Board of Supervisors waive the rental fees for
the use of the Fairgrounds' Exhibit Hall for the Society's annual Gem & Mineral Show to be held on
January 15-17, 2016, due to the Society's status as a 501(c)(4) tax exempt organization; however, the
Director recommends that the Board not waive the security fees because it will cost the County.

Suggested Motion
Approval of an application submitted by the Gila County Gem & Mineral Society, Inc. (Society) to waive
the rental fees for the use of the Exhibit Hall at the Fairgrounds for the Society's annual Gem & Mineral
Show to be held on January 15-17, 2016, and not waive the security fees.

Attachments

GC Gem Show Waiver App
FG Use Application
GC Gem & Mineral 2014 Application
GC Gem & Mineral 501(c) (4) 
GC Gem & Mineral Letter





























   

ARF-3458     Consent Agenda Item      5. B.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 11/17/2015  

Submitted For: Steve Sanders, Director 
Submitted By: Kelly Jones, Administrative Clerk Specialist, Public Works Division
Department: Public Works Division Division: Fairground Facilities

Information
Request/Subject
Application for a waiver of Fairgrounds' Exhibit Hall rental fees and security fees for Gila County Cattle
Growers Association's (GCCGA) Holiday Dinner-Dance and Salute to Ranching on December 5, 2015.

Background Information
GCCGA is a 501(c)(5) nonprofit agricultural organization dedicated to the preservation and promotion of
the cattle industry throughout Gila County, the state and the nation.  Their annual cattle sale has been
a tradition in Gila County and in May 2015, the sale generated an estimated economic impact of 15
million dollars.  The funds raised by this event will be used in GCCGA's continuing efforts on local, state
and national levels to protect the rural lifestyle and economy of Gila County.

Evaluation
GCCGA is requesting that the Board of Supervisors waive the fees that are charged for the use of the
Exhibit Hall at the County  Fairgrounds for its fund-raising event to be held on December 5, 2015.  In
addition, GCCGA is requesting that the security fees for this event also be waived.

Conclusion
The Board of Supervisors may consider waiving fees associated with the use of the Fairgrounds'
facilities, arenas, corrals, etc.  The amount charged by the County for the security fees directly pays the
wages of the Gila County Sheriff's deputies who work overtime to provide security for the special event.

Recommendation
The Public Works Division Director recommends that the Board of Supervisors waive the rental fees for
the use of the Fairgrounds' Exhibit Hall for GCCGA's Dinner-Dance and Salute to Ranching to be held
on December 5, 2015, due to GCCGA's status as a 501(c)(5) nonprofit agricultural organization;
however, the Director recommends that the Board not waive the security fees.

Suggested Motion
Approval of an application submitted by the Gila County Cattle Growers Association (GCCGA) to waive
the rental fees for the use of the Exhibit Hall at the Fairgrounds for GCCGA's Holiday Dinner-Dance and
Salute to Ranching to be held on December 5, 2015, and not waive the security fees.

Attachments

GCCGA Waiver App
GCCGA FG Use App 2015
GCCGA 501(c)(5) Documentation
GCCGA Liquor License 2015
GCCGA Waiver Request Letter

























   
ARF-3450     Consent Agenda Item      5. C.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 11/17/2015  
Submitted For: Eric Mariscal, Director 
Submitted By: Cate Gore, Elections Assistant, Elections Department
Department: Elections Department

Information
Request/Subject
Pleasant Valley Fire District Board Appointment.

Background Information
A.R.S. 48-803 (B) provides that if a vacancy occurs on the district board
other than from expiration of a term, the remaining board members shall
fill the vacancy by the appointment of an interim member.

Evaluation
Pleasant Valley Fire District governing board member Tom Sexton
tendered his resignation notice effective June 15, 2015.  On September
16, 2015, the Pleasant Valley Fire District Board of Directors appointed
Stan Marshall to fulfill Mr. Sexton's unexpired term of office which ends
December 31, 2018.

Conclusion
On September 16, 2015, the Pleasant Valley Fire District Board of
Directors unanimously voted to appoint Stan Marshall to fulfill Tom
Sexton's unexpired term of office which ends on December 31, 2018.

Recommendation
The Gila County Elections Department recommends that the Board of
Supervisors acknowledge Tom Sexton's resignation from the Pleasant
Valley Fire District Board of Directors and the appointment of Stan
Marshall to fulfill Mr. Sexton's term of office beginning September 16,
2015, and ending December 31, 2018.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of Tom Sexton's resignation from the Pleasant Valley



Acknowledgment of Tom Sexton's resignation from the Pleasant Valley
Fire District Board of Directors and the appointment of Stan Marshall to
fulfill Mr. Sexton's unexpired term effective September 16, 2015, through
December 31, 2018.

Attachments
Oath of Office for Stan Marshall
9-16-15 Meeting Minutes
9-16-15 Meeting Agenda
Tom Sexton's Resignation Letter
ARS 48-803



















   

ARF-3432     Consent Agenda Item      5. D.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 11/17/2015  

Submitted For: Samantha Jerome, Nutrition Manager 
Submitted By: Paula Horn, Deputy Director of Health, Health & Emergency Services

Division
Department: Health & Emergency Services Division
Fiscal Year: 2015-2016 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

10-01-15
through
09-30-18

Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Amendment No. 2 to an Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No. ADHS14-053062)
with Arizona Department of Health Services (ADHS) to extend funding for nutrition
services an additional year; October 1, 2015, to September 30, 2016.

Background Information
On October 1, 2013, the Board of Supervisors approved an Intergovernmental
Agreement (Contract No. ADHS14-053062) with ADHS.  This Intergovernmental
Agreement replaced a previous Intergovernmental Agreement that was in place for
many years between Gila County and ADHS whereby ADHS provided the Gila County
Health Department funding for its various nutrition programs that include the Women,
Infant and Child (WIC) Program, Breastfeeding Peer Counseling (BFPC) Program, and
Farmers Market Nutrition Program (FMNP).

On October 28, 2014, Amendment No. 1 was approved by the Board of Supervisors to
extend the nutrition services from October 1, 2014, to September 30, 2015.

Amendment No. 2 will extend the nutrition services from October 1, 2015, to
September 30, 2016.

Evaluation
The new funding sheet is established in Amendment No. 2.  ADHS will provide the
following funding amounts to the Gila County Health Department: 1) WIC - $277,125,
2) BFPC -  $40,500, and, 3) FMNP -  at $1.25 per WIC participant on an as-needed
basis.  This funding will allow the Gila County Health Department to continue
providing nutrition services to qualified families.

Conclusion
This funding will allow the Gila County Health Department to continue providing



This funding will allow the Gila County Health Department to continue providing
nutrition services to qualified families.

Recommendation
It is the recommendation of the Health and Emergency Services Division Director that
the Board of Supervisors approve Amendment No. 2 to Contract No. ADHS14-053062
with ADHS in the total amount of $317,625 annually to extend nutrition services in
Gila County from October 1, 2015, through September 30, 2016.

Suggested Motion
Approval of Amendment No. 2 to an Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No.
ADHS14-053062) between the Gila County Health and Emergency Services Division
and the Arizona Department of Health Services which amends the price sheets for the
Women, Infants and Children Program and the Breastfeeding Peer Counseling Program
for the contract period of October 1, 2015, through September 30, 2016.

Attachments
Amendment 2
Amendment 1
IGA Contract No. ADHS14-053062
Approval As To Form



















































































 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D). 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).   

 

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 

Agreement (IGA) Review 
 

 

  A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that  

 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 

procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 

submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 

procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 

proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 

the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 

unit. 

 

 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 

they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 

contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 

requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 

does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 

objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 

agency through its elected body.    



 

 Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 

executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 

the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 

requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 

executed. 

  

 Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 

properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 

applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 

extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 

agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 

by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 

wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 

in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 

action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 

directed to the County Attorney’s Office. 

 

 Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 

“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 

approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 

person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 

the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 

of payment.”  

 

 The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 

responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 

obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  

This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 

the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 

actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 

does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 

will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 

the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance. 

 

 Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 

Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 

the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 

IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 

IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 

review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 

review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 

greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 

agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 

Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.   

 



   

ARF-3433     Consent Agenda Item      5. E.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 11/17/2015  

Submitted For: Samantha Jerome, Nutrition Manager 
Submitted By: Paula Horn, Deputy Director of Health, Health & Emergency Services

Division
Department: Health & Emergency Services Division
Fiscal Year: 2016 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

10/01/15 to
09/30/16

Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
To approve amendment No. 4 to an Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No.
ADHS12-010890) with the Arizona Department of Health Services (AZDHS) for a
revised price sheet to continue to provide Commodity Supplemental Foods Program
(CSFP) and Senior Farmers' Market Nutrition Program (SFMNP) services to residents of
Gila County. There is no change to the amount of funding AZDHS will provide Gila
County for these services; this amendment is to extend the contract for an additional
12 months.

Background Information
The Board of Supervisors originally adopted this Intergovernmental Agreement
on October 18, 2011, accepting funding from AZDHS for the CSFP and the SFMNP
programs. Currently, the CSFP provides approximately 200 low-income individuals,
mostly seniors, with a box of commodities each month that provides vital nutrients
that participants might not otherwise receive; and, Farmers' Markets are now featured
events during the summer in Payson and Globe.

The Board of Supervisors approved Amendment No. 1 on February 7, 2012, extending
the services and the price sheet.

The Board of Supervisors approved Amendment No. 2 on October 22, 2013, extending
the services and the price sheet.

The Board of Supervisors approved Amendment No. 3 on October 28, 2014, extending
the services and the price sheet.

Evaluation
This Amendment will replace the price sheet section of the existing Intergovernmental
Agreement; and, CSFP funding will remain the same at $5,448. In addition, the
SFMNP will remain fee for service at the same rate of $1.25 for each voucher issued. 



Conclusion
This Amendment to the Intergovernmental Agreement contract provides funding of
$5,488 for the continuation of the CSFP from October 1, 2015, to September 30, 2016
and level funding for the SFMNP. 

Recommendation
The Health & Emergency Services Division Director recommends that the Board of
Supervisors approve Amendment No. 4 to the Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract
No. ADHS12-010890) between the Arizona Department of Health Services and Gila
County Health & Emergency Services Division to continue CSFP and SFMNP services
to the residents of Gila County.

Suggested Motion
Approval of Amendment No. 4 to an Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No.
ADHS12-010890) between the Health and Emergency Services Division and the
Arizona Department of Health Services which amends the price sheet for the
Commodity Supplemental Foods Program and the Senior Farmers' Market Nutrition
Program for the contract period of October 1, 2015, through September 30, 2016.

Attachments
Amendment #4
Amendment #3
Amendment #2
Amendment #1
CFSP IGA Contract No. ADHS12-010890
Approved As To Form





























































 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D). 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).   

 

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 

Agreement (IGA) Review 
 

 

  A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that  

 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 

procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 

submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 

procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 

proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 

the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 

unit. 

 

 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 

they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 

contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 

requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 

does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 

objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 

agency through its elected body.    



 

 Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 

executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 

the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 

requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 

executed. 

  

 Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 

properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 

applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 

extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 

agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 

by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 

wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 

in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 

action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 

directed to the County Attorney’s Office. 

 

 Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 

“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 

approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 

person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 

the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 

of payment.”  

 

 The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 

responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 

obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  

This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 

the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 

actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 

does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 

will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 

the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance. 

 

 Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 

Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 

the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 

IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 

IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 

review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 

review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 

greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 

agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 

Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.   

 



   
ARF-3439     Consent Agenda Item      5. F.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 11/17/2015  

Submitted For: Malissa Buzan, Director 
Submitted By: Leitha Griffin, Administrative Assistant, Community Services Division
Department: Community Services Division Division: Administration
Fiscal Year: 2014-2015 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

10/1/2014-6/30/2016 Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Amendment No. 1 to the 2014-2015 Independent Contractor Agreement, Contract No. 01142015.

Background Information
The Gila County Board of Supervisors approved the Independent Contractor Agreement 2015 Utility Assistance
Program Contract No. 1142015 on February 17, 2015. 

Evaluation
The purpose of this amendment is to  allocate additional Southwest Gas Energy Share (SWG EShare) funds in the
amount of $3,568.50 for Direct Services and $396.50 for Program Delivery in order to provide additional assistance
for eligible households.  
It will also extend the current 2014-2015 contract to June 30, 2016. 

Conclusion
By the Board of Supervisors approving this amendment, the Community Action Program (CAP) will receive additional
funding to provide utility assistance to eligible households. It will also extend the current 2014-2015 contract to
June 30, 2016.

Recommendation
The Gila County Community Services Division Director recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve this
amendment. 

Suggested Motion
Approval of Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 01142015 between the Arizona Community Action Association and
Gila County Community Services Division which provides a total of $3,965 of additional Southwest Gas Energy
Share funds and extends the contract date to June 30, 2016.

Attachments

Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 01142015
Contract No. 01142015



 

 

 

 

Amendment No. One (1) to the 2014-2015 

Independent Contractor Agreement 

 

The Independent Contract Agreement dated October 1, 2014, between Arizona Community 

Action Association (ACAA) and Gila County Community Services (hereinafter “Contractor”) 

to conduct application intake and eligibility determination for utility bill assistance and deposits 

is hereby amended as follows: 

 

Purpose of the Amendment: 

1. To allocate additional Southwest Gas Energy Share (referred to as SWG EShare) funds in 

the amount of $3,568.50 for Direct Services and $396.50 for Program Delivery  in order 

to provide additional assistance to eligible households.   

2. To extend the current 2014-2015 contract to June 30, 2016.  

3. Include A.R.S. § 38-511. 

4. Include A.R.S. § 41-4401. 

  

Amendment to: 

Section I.  Services and Programs – 1.2 Fund Sources: 

SWG Energy Share Program: Provide an additional $3,568.50 in Direct Service and 

$396.50 in Program Delivery . The total amount of additional SWG EShare funding is 

$3,965.00.  

Section 16. Cancellation: 

This Agreement may be canceled pursuant to the provisions of A.R.S. § 38-511.   

Section 17. Immigration Law Compliance Warranty: 

As required by A.R.S. § 41-4401, each party hereby warrants its compliance with all 

federal immigration laws and regulations that relate to its employees and A.R.S. § 23-

214(A).  Each party further warrants that after hiring an employee, it verifies the 

employment eligibility of the employee through the e-verify  program.  If either party 

uses any subcontractors in performance of the Agreement, subcontractors shall warrant 

their compliance with all federal immigration laws and regulations that relate to its 

employees and A.R.S. § 23-214(A), and subcontractors shall further warrant that after 

hiring an employee, such subcontractor verifies the employment eligibility of the 



employee through the e-verify  program.  A breach of this warranty shall be deemed a 

material breach of the Agreement subject to penalties up to and including termination of 

this Agreement.  A party shall not be deemed in material breach if it and its 

subcontractors establish compliance with the employment verification provisions of 

Sections 274A and 274B of the federal Immigration and Nationality Act and the e-verify  

requirements contained in A.R.S. § 23-214(A).  Each party retains the legal right to 

inspect the papers of the other party and its subcontractors engaged in performance of this 

Agreement to ensure that the other party and its subcontractors are complying with the 

warranty.   Any inspection will be conducted after reasonable notice and at reasonable 

times.   If state law is amended, the parties may modify this paragraph consistent with 

state law. 

 

Whole Agreement: 

Unless otherwise noted herein, all other provisions of the original Agreement will remain in 

place for the duration of the original Agreement. 

 

 

[Signature page follows]  

  



 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have executed this Agreement, effective as of the Effective 

Date. 

 

CONTRACTOR 

Gila County Board of Supervisors 

 

 

By:_______________________________________ 

Name:______________________ 

Title:_______________________________________ 

Date:___________________  

Approved as to Form: 

By:_______________________________________ 

Name:_______________________ 

Title:_______________________________________ 

Date:___________________ 

Address: 

5515 S. Apache Avenue, Suite 200 

Globe, Arizona  85501 

  

Arizona Community Action Association, 

an Arizona nonprofit corporation 

By:  

Name: Cynthia Zwick  

Title: Executive Director  

Date:  

 

Address: 

2700 North 3
rd

 Street, Suite 3040 

Phoenix, Arizona 85004 

Fax No.:  602-604-0644 

E-mail:  czwick@azcaa.org 

 

 

mailto:czwick@azcaa.org




























   
ARF-3440     Consent Agenda Item      5. G.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 11/17/2015  

Submitted For: Malissa Buzan, Director 
Submitted By: Leitha Griffin, Administrative Assistant, Community Services Division
Department: Community Services Division Division: Administration
Fiscal Year: 2015 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

2013-2015 Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Arizona Department of Housing Owner Occupied Housing Rehabilitation Contract No. 309-13 Closeout Report.

Background Information
On October 16, 2012, the Board of Supervisors approved Funding Agreement Arizona Department of Housing
(ADOH) Owner Occupied Housing Rehabilitation (OOHR) Contract No. 309-13.

On March 17, 2015, the Board of Supervisors approved Amendment No. 1 to Funding Agreement ADOH OOHR
Contract No. 309-13. 

Evaluation
Funding received from ADOH OOHR Contract No. 309-13 enabled the Gila County Community Services Division,
Housing Services to rehabilitate ten homes belonging to low income residents of Gila County.  The closeout reports
reflects that the amount expended on these homes was $388,400.58.

By the Gila County Board of Supervisors signing ADOH OOHR Contract No. 309-13 Closeout Report, it will enable
Gila County Community Services Division, Housing Services to finalize the contractual obligations to the Arizona
Department of Housing for said grant. 

Conclusion
By the Board of Supervisors signing ADOH OOHR Contract No. 309-13 Closeout Report, all contractual requirements
will be met regarding the finalization of said contract. 

Recommendation
The Gila County Community Services Division Director recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve Contract
No. 309-13 Closeout Report. 

Suggested Motion
Approval of a HOME Program Close-Out Report for Arizona Department of Housing Owner Occupied Housing
Rehabilitation Contract No. 309-13 which will successfully end the contract and ensure that Gila County Housing
Services has met all requirements of said contract.

Attachments

HOME Program Close-Out Report 
Amendment 1 to Contract No. 309-13
Contract No. 309-13













































































































   
ARF-3417     Consent Agenda Item      5. H.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 11/17/2015  

Submitted For: Malissa Buzan, Director 
Submitted By: Leitha Griffin, Administrative Assistant, Community Services Division
Department: Community Services Division Division: Administration
Fiscal Year: 2015/2016 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2016 Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) between the Arizona Community Action Association (ACAA) and Gila County
Community Services 

Background Information
The Department of Economic Security (DES) issued funds to the ACAA to be used for a one time distribution to all
ACAA partners for the cost incurred in the operation of the CAP60 case management software for the fiscal year
2015/2016.

Evaluation
The purpose of this MOA is to establish terms and conditions under which ACAA agrees to provide a one time
payment of $7,539 to Gila County Community Services for CAP60 case management software.  By receiving this
payment, Gila County Community Services agrees to deliver the Case Management (CMT) Monthly, Low Income
Home Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP) Annual, and the Results Oriented Management and Accountability
(ROMA)  reports.

Conclusion
By the Board of Supervisors approving this MOA, it will ensure ACAA in providing payment to Gila County
Community Services which will enable them to utilize the CAP60 case management software. 

Recommendation
The Gila County Community Services Division Director recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve this
MOA between the Arizona Community Action Association and Gila County Community Services.

Suggested Motion
Approval of a Memorandum of Agreement between Arizona Community Action Association and Gila County
Community Services to receive a one-time lump sum of $7,539 to cover the costs incurred by Gila County
Community Services in the operation of the CAP60 case management software.

Attachments

MOA between ACAA and Gila County Community Services







   
ARF-3463     Consent Agenda Item      5. I.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 11/17/2015  

Submitted For: Malissa Buzan 
Submitted By: Leitha Griffin, Administrative Assistant, Community Services Division
Department: Community Services Division Division: Administration
Fiscal Year: 2015-2016 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

July 1, 2015 - June 30, 2016 Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Replacement

Information
Request/Subject
Amendment No. 6 to Weatherization Low-Income Assistance Agreement Contract No. SW-ESA-2182-02 with the
State of Arizona Governor's Office of Energy Policy.

Background Information
On July 17, 2012, the Board of Supervisors approved a Weatherization Low-Income Assistance Agreement Contract
No. SW-ESA-12-2182-02Y2.

On April 2, 2013, the Board of Supervisors approved Amendment No. 1 to Contract  No. SW-ESA-12-2182-02Y2.

On August 6, 2013, the Board of Supervisors approved Amendment No. 2 to Contract No.  SW-ESA-12-2182-02Y3. 
On this Amendment, the last 3 digits of this contract changed to "2Y3."

On February 4, 2014, the Board of Supervisors approved Amendment No. 3 to Contract No.  SW-ESA-12-2182-02Y3.

On July 15,2014, the Board of Supervisors approved Amendment No. 4 to Contract No. SW-ESA-12-2182-02Y4.  On
this Amendment, the last 3 digits of this contract changed to "2Y4."

On April 7, 2015, the Board of Supervisors approved Amendment No. 5 to Contract No. SW-ESA-12-2182-02.

Evaluation
Amendment No.6 to Contract No. SW-ESA-12-2182-02 amends the following:

Secton XXII- Amendment or modification, all references in the Agreement to Office of Energy Policy (OEP) are
amended to refer to Office of Grants and Federal Resources (GFR).

Section II-Terms of Contract, which provides a new contract award amount for a period of twelve months. The
contract renewal period shall be effective July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2016.

Section IV-Contract Budget, will amend the contract to provide up to $27,150 as a reimbursement ceiling for FY16.

Section V-Scope of Work; D. Report Submittal Requirements, which provides an updated list of all forms that are
required for submittal.  E. Submittal Address, which has amended the mailing address to where the forms must be
directed.

Section XIV-Client File Requirements; D. Rental Properties, prior written approval is required by GFR for all rental
properties of five or more units. Written permission to perform itemized services must be obtained from the owner of
the rental unit or the owner's authorized agent.

Section XLVII - Notices, All notices, demands, and communications provided shall be delivered, or sent by certified
mail, and return receipt requested. This also amends the addresses as to where the written notices are directed.
Notification of change shall be delivered to the GFR and Contractor within ten (10) days of any change that may
affect this provision.

Conclusion
Amendment No. 6 will provide changes to the Weatherization Low-Income Assistance Agreement, which will allow
Gila County Housing Services to continue to provide weatherization services to eligible citizens residing in Gila
County that meet program income eligibility.



Recommendation
The Gila County Community Services Division Director recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve this
Amendment.

Suggested Motion
Approval of Amendment No. 6 to a Weatherization Low-Income Assistance Agreement (Contract No.
SW-ESA-12-2182-02) between the State of Arizona, Governor's Office of Energy Policy and the Gila County
Community Services Division to provide up to $27,150 as a reimbursement ceiling for the contract period of July 1,
2015, through June 30, 2016, and for other minor contract revisions.

Attachments

Amendment No. 6 Contract No. SW-ESA-12-2182-02
Amendment No. 5 Contract No. SW-ESA-12-2182-02Y4
Amendment No. 4 Contract No. SW-ESA-12-2182-02Y4
Amendment No. 3 Contract No. SW-ESA-12-2182-02Y3
Amendment No. 2 Contract No. SW-ESA-12-2182-02Y3
Amendment No. 1 Contract No. SW-ESA-12-2182-02Y2
OEP Contract No. SW-ESA-12-2182-02Y2
Approved as to Form









































































































































 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D). 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).   

 

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 

Agreement (IGA) Review 
 

 

  A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that  

 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 

procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 

submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 

procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 

proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 

the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 

unit. 

 

 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 

they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 

contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 

requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 

does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 

objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 

agency through its elected body.    



 

 Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 

executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 

the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 

requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 

executed. 

  

 Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 

properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 

applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 

extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 

agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 

by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 

wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 

in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 

action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 

directed to the County Attorney’s Office. 

 

 Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 

“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 

approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 

person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 

the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 

of payment.”  

 

 The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 

responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 

obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  

This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 

the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 

actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 

does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 

will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 

the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance. 

 

 Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 

Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 

the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 

IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 

IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 

review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 

review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 

greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 

agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 

Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.   

 



   
ARF-3454     Consent Agenda Item      5. J.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 11/17/2015  

Submitted For: Malissa Buzan 
Submitted By: Leitha Griffin, Administrative Assistant, Community Services Division
Department: Community Services Division Division: Administration
Fiscal Year: 2015-2016 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

July 1, 2015 - June 30, 2016 Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Amendment No. 3 to a Weatherization Low-Income Assistance Agreement Contract No. EW-ESA-14-4181-02.

Background Information
On November 5, 2013, the Board of Supervisors approved Weatherization Low-Income Assistance Agreement
Contract No. EW-ESA-14-4181-02Y3.

On Amendment No. 1, the last three numbers are 02Y2, which after consulting with Michael Frary from the State of
Arizona, Governor's Office of Energy Policy, these numbers are for internal purposes.  The contract number stays the
same and those numbers are just administrative codes for their use.  The e-mail from Mr. Frary explaining this is
attached. 

On June 2, 2014, the Board of Supervisors approved Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. EW-ESA-14-4181-02Y2.

On December 16, 2014, the Board of Supervisors approved Amendment No. 2 to Contract No.
EW-ESA-14-4181-02Y2.

Evaluation
Amendment No.3 to Contract No. EW-ESA-14-4181-02 amends the following:

Section XXVIII - Amendments, All reference in the Agreement to Office of Energy Policy (OEP) are amended to refer to
Office of Grants and Federal Resources (GFR).
Section II - Term of Agreement/Effective Date
Section III - Description of Services; D. Program Specific Requirements
Section III - Description of Services, Client File Requirement, Number 4, Rental Properties
Section IV - Reporting Requirements, Programmatic, F. Submittal Address
Section V - Manner of Financing
Section XI, Single Audit
Section LII - Notices

The following U. S. DOE Flow Down Language is being added:
Section LIII - Statement of Federal Stewardship
Section LIV - National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) Requirements
Section LV - Use of Program Income - Addition
Section LVI - Real Property
Section LVII - Recipient Lighting Efficiency Certification
Section LVIII - Reporting Subawards and Executive Compensation
Section LIX - Conference Spending
Section LX - NonDisclosure and Confidentiality Agreements Assurances

Conclusion
Amendment No. 3 will provide changes to the Weatherization Low-Income Assistance Agreement Contract No.
EW-ESA-14-4181-02, which will allow Gila County Housing Services to provide weatherization services to eligible
citizens residing in Gila County who meet program income eligibility.

Recommendation
The Community Services Division Director recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve this amendment.

Suggested Motion



Approval of Amendment No. 3 to a Weatherization Low-Income Assistance Agreement (Contract No.
EW-ESA-14-4181-02) between the State of Arizona, Governor's Office of Energy Policy and the Gila County
Community Services Division to provide up to $30,547 as a reimbursement ceiling for the contract period of July 1,
2015, through June 30, 2016, and for other minor contract revisions.

Attachments

Amendment No. 3 Contract No. EW-ESA-14-4181-02
Amendment No. 2 Contract No. EW-ESA-14-4181-02
Amendment No. 1 Contract No. EW-ESA-14-4181-02Y2
Michael Frary E-Mail Contract EW-ESA-4181-02Y3 to 02Y2
Contract No. EW-ESA-14-4181-02Y3
Approved as to Form





























































































































































 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D). 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).   

 

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 

Agreement (IGA) Review 
 

 

  A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that  

 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 

procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 

submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 

procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 

proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 

the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 

unit. 

 

 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 

they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 

contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 

requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 

does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 

objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 

agency through its elected body.    



 

 Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 

executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 

the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 

requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 

executed. 

  

 Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 

properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 

applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 

extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 

agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 

by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 

wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 

in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 

action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 

directed to the County Attorney’s Office. 

 

 Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 

“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 

approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 

person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 

the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 

of payment.”  

 

 The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 

responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 

obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  

This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 

the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 

actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 

does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 

will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 

the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance. 

 

 Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 

Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 

the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 

IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 

IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 

review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 

review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 

greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 

agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 

Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.   

 



   
ARF-3455     Consent Agenda Item      5. K.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 11/17/2015  

Submitted For: Malissa Buzan 
Submitted By: Leitha Griffin, Administrative Assistant, Community Services Division
Department: Community Services Division Division: Administration
Fiscal Year: 2015-2016 Budgeted?: No

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

July 1, 2015 - June 30, 2016 Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Amendment No. 5 for  Weatherization Low-Income Assistance Agreement No. LW-ESA-12-2182-02Y4.

Background Information
On July 17, 2012, the Board of Supervisors approved the Weatherization Low-Income Assistance Agreement OEP
Contract No. LW-ESA-12-2182-02Y2.

On December 4, 2012, the Board of Supervisors approved Amendment No. 1 to a Weatherization Low -Income
Assistance Agreement OEP Contract No. LW-ESA-12-2182-02Y2.

On July 16, 2013, the Board of Supervisors approved Amendment No. 2 to Weatherization Low-Income Assistance
Agreement OEP Contract No. LW-ESA-12-2182-02Y3.  On this amendment, the last two digits of the contract
number change to "Y3."

On January 7, 2014, the Board of Supervisors approved Amendment No. 3 to Weatherization Low-Income Assistance
Agreement OEP Contract No. LW-ESA-12-2182-02Y3.

On Amendment No. 4, the last 2 digits of the contract number have been changed to "Y4."

On June 24, 2014, the Board of Supervisors approved Amendment No. 4 to Weatherization Low-Income assistance
agreement OEP Contract No. LW-ESA-12-2182-02Y4.

Evaluation
This amendment provides a new contract award amount for the fifth year of operations for a period of twelve
months.  The contract renewal period shall be effective July 1, 2015, through June 30, 2016.

Amendment No. 5 also amends this contract to provide up to $89,826 as a reimbursement ceiling for FY16, inclusive
of administrative and program funds.

Except as specifically stated herein, all other terms and conditions of this Weatherization Low-Income Assistance
Agreement remain unchanged.

Conclusion
By the Board of Supervisors approving this amendment, the Gila County Weatherization Program will receive
funding to provide weatherization services to eligible citizens residing in Gila County.

Recommendation
The Gila County Community Services Division Director recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve this
amendment.

Suggested Motion
Approval of Amendment No. 5 to a Weatherization Low-Income Assistance Agreement (Contract No.
LW-ESA-12-2182-02Y4) between the State of Arizona, Governor's Office of Energy Policy and the Gila County
Community Services Division to provide up to $89,826 as a reimbursement ceiling for the contract period of July 1,
2015, through June 30, 2016, and for other minor contract revisions.



Attachments

Amendment No. 5 to LW-ESA-12-2182-02Y4
Amendment No. 4 to LW-ESA-12-2182-02Y4
Amendment No. 3 to LW-ESA-12-2182-02Y3
Amendment No. 2 to LW-ESA-12-2182-02Y3
Amendment No. 1 to LW-ESA-12-2182-02Y2 OEP
Contract LW-ESA-12-2182-OEP
Approval as to Form







































































































































cbejaran
Typewritten Text

cbejaran
Typewritten Text
Gila County Office of Community Services

cbejaran
Typewritten Text
$108,719.65

cbejaran
Typewritten Text
State of Arizona, Governor's Office of Energy Policy

cbejaran
Typewritten Text
81.042

cbejaran
Typewritten Text
Globe	

cbejaran
Typewritten Text
AZ

cbejaran
Typewritten Text
1

cbejaran
Typewritten Text
02407139

cbejaran
Typewritten Text
X

cbejaran
Typewritten Text
X

cbejaran
Typewritten Text
Weatherization Low-Income Home Energy Assistance Program



 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D). 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).   

 

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 

Agreement (IGA) Review 
 

 

  A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that  

 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 

procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 

submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 

procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 

proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 

the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 

unit. 

 

 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 

they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 

contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 

requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 

does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 

objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 

agency through its elected body.    



 

 Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 

executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 

the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 

requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 

executed. 

  

 Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 

properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 

applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 

extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 

agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 

by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 

wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 

in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 

action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 

directed to the County Attorney’s Office. 

 

 Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 

“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 

approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 

person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 

the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 

of payment.”  

 

 The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 

responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 

obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  

This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 

the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 

actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 

does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 

will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 

the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance. 

 

 Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 

Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 

the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 

IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 

IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 

review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 

review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 

greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 

agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 

Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.   

 



   
ARF-3452     Consent Agenda Item      5. L.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 11/17/2015  

Submitted For: Malissa Buzan, Director 
Submitted By: Leitha Griffin, Administrative Assistant, Community Services Division
Department: Community Services Division Division: Administration
Fiscal Year: 2015-2016 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

10/1/2015-6/30/2016 Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Rental Housing Bridge Subsidy Program Agreement  - Close-Out Version between Health Choice Integrated Care,
LLC and Gila County dba Gila County Public Housing Authority. 

Background Information
This Agreement reflects a new pilot program through a partnership between the Arizona Department of Health
Services, Division of Behavioral Health Services (ADHS/DBHS) and the Arizona Department of Housing (ADOH) to
expand the supply of Permanent Supportive Housing (PSH) in Arizona for individuals with serious mental illness
enrolled in the public behavioral health system.  PSH is a best practice housing approach that provides permanent
housing (typically rental apartments integrated in the community) linked with voluntary and flexible
community-based services.  The PSH model is based on a philosophy that supports consumer choice and
empowerment, rights and responsibilities of tenancy, and appropriate flexible, accessible, and available services
that meet each consumer's changing needs.

This pilot initiative is a tenant-based rental assistance program with basic policies similar to the federal Section 8
Housing Choice Voucher (HCV) program.  This initiative will provide ADHS/DBHS consumers with more housing
choices and the flexibility to select a unit and neighborhood that meets their specific needs and preferences. This
program is designed as a "bridge subsidy" to help consumers eventually access HUD Section 8 Housing Choice
Vouchers.  To this end, the Bridge Subsidy Program will mirror to the extent possible HUD's Section 8 HCV
Program.  The ADHS/DBHS consumers will receive the rental assistance until they are able to access a Section 8
Housing Choice Voucher, or no more than a five-year period. 

Evaluation
It is important for the Board of Supervisors to approve the Rental Housing Bridge Subsidy Program Agreement -
Close-Out Version, which allocates funds in an amount not to exceed $27,090 for FY2016.  These monies will
provide for administration and management of housing assistance funds and the provision of housing assistance
services for adults with serious mental illnesses in conformance with HUD standards, ADHS/DBHS and Arizona law.

Conclusion
By the Board of Supervisors approving the Rental Housing Bridge Subsidy Program Agreement - Close-Out Version
between Health Choice Integrated Care and Gila County dba Gila County Public Housing Authority, assistance will
be provided to eligible citizens of Gila County with housing assistance services.  The target population of this
contract is defined as ADHS/DBHS consumers who are adults with serious mental illness that are currently
homeless or residing in a residential treatment program.

Recommendation
The Gila County Community Services Division Director recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve this
Agreement. 

Suggested Motion
Approval of the Rental Housing Bridge Subsidy Program Agreement  - Close-out Version between Health Choice
Integrated Care, LLC and Gila County dba Gila County Public Housing Authority, which will allocate funds in the
amount of $27,090 to be used to help Gila County residents who meet the program qualifications for the period of
October 1, 2015, through June 30, 2016.

Attachments



Rental Housing Bridge Subsidy Program Agreement - Close-Out Version



































   
ARF-3473     Consent Agenda Item      5. M.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 11/17/2015  
Submitted For: Michael O'Driscoll, Director 
Submitted By: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board, Clerk of the Board

of Supervisors
Department: Health & Emergency Services Division

Information
Request/Subject
Gila County Board of Health Appointments

Background Information
A.R.S. §36-183 states that each county board of supervisors shall appoint
a board of health comprised of 5 members in a county having 3
supervisorial districts.  One member must be a licensed physician, one
member must be a member of the county board of supervisors, and 3
additional members must each represent a supervisorial district and live
within that district.  The terms of office for all members except Chairman
Pastor expired in 2014.  It has been extremely difficult to find anyone to
serve on this board, especially a licensed physician.  The term of office for
all members is four years, except the BOS Chairman of which that term
coincides with the Supervisor's elected term of office.

Evaluation
Michael O'Driscoll, Health and Emergency Services Division Director, has
spoken with a licensed physician and 3 other people who are willing to
serve on this board.

Conclusion
The Board of Supervisors is required by statute to appoint individuals to
serve on a county board of health.  The following individuals are being
presented to the Board of Supervisors for its consideration to appoint
them to the Gila County Board of Health for four years, except this initial
term will actually begin November 17, 2015, upon Board approval -
approximately one month over four years:

Lance Porter, M.D. - represented as a licensed physician on the board.
Linda Scoville - represented as a citizen on the board and also
representing Supervisorial District 1.



Denise Hansen - represented as a citizen on the board and also
representing Supervisorial District 2.
Rick Heron - represented as a citizen on the board and also representing
Supervisorial District 3.

Recommendation
The Health and Emergency Services Division Director recommends that
the Board of Supervisors appoint Dr. Porter, Ms. Scoville, Ms. Hansen and
Mr. Heron to the Gila County Board of Health.

Suggested Motion
Approval to appoint the following individuals to the Gila County Board of
Health for a term of office beginning November 17, 2015, through
December 31, 2019:  Lance Porter, M.D., Linda Scoville, Denise Hansen
and Rick Heron.

Attachments
Gila County Board of Health-Proposed Membership



 

 

GILA COUNTY BOARD OF HEALTH 

(Proposed to BOS on 11-17-15) 

 

Name of Member & 
Appointment Info.1 

Appointment 
Designation2 

Appointment Type3 &  
BOS Approval Date 

Time Served Prior 
 to Current 

Appointment 

Term of Incumbent (End 
date must match end 

date of Term of Office) 

Term of Office 
(Only change when new 

term cycle begins 

Lance Porter (Licensed 
Physician) 

B A (11/17/15) - 11/17/15-12/31/19 11/17/15-12/31/19 

Michael Pastor (BOS 
Chairman) 

B C (01/17/14) 4 years 01/01/13-12/31/16 01/01/13-12/31/16 

Linda Scoville (Citizen) A (Supv. District 1) A (11/17/15) - 11/17/15-12/31/19 11/17/15-12/31/19 

Denise Hansen (Citizen) A (Supv. District 2) A (11/17/15) - 11/17/15-12/31/19 11/17/15-12/31/19 

Rick Heron (Citizen) A (Supv. District 3) A (11/17/15) - 11/17/15-12/31/19 11/17/15-12/31/19 

 
1
  Appointment Information: 

A. Date of creation:  Re-created on June 9, 2010 
B. Regulated per A.R.S. §36-183 and §36-184 
C. Per A.R.S. §36-183  - The Board of Supervisors appoints 5 members consisting of a member of the Board of Supervisors; a physician licensed pursuant to title 32, chapter 13 or 17 and 

three citizens selected for their interest in public health, each citizen member to be a resident of a different supervisorial district.  The director of a county health department shall serve, 
without vote, as an ex officio member of the board.  Citizen members appointed pursuant to this section shall not be county health department employees. 

D. Terms of Office – Per A.R.S. §36-183 - The member selected from the board of supervisors shall serve during that member’s term of office.  The term of office of the physician member 
and of the citizen members shall be four years. 

E. Per A.R.S. §36-184 – The director of the local health department shall serve as secretary of the board.  The board shall hold an annual meeting in July each year at which officers shall be 
elected for the ensuing year.  Monthly and special meetings may be held on the call of the president, the director or any two members.   
 

2
  Appointment Designation: 

A.     Statutory District Appointment:  Member must reside within the supervisorial district boundary from which he/she is appointed. 
         B.     Supervisory Appointment:  Member unrestricted by district. 

C. Joint Appointment:  Membership is comprised of appointments from different jurisdictions.  Appointments made by other entities are acknowledged by the Board of Supervisors. 
D. County at Large:  Members are unrestricted by district and can be recommended by appointment by any supervisorial district or by the committee. 
E. Alternate Members:  As defined by individual committee criteria. 

 
3
  Appointment Type 

A. New Appointment 
B. Existing vacancy created by (provide name) 
C. Reappointment (include number of years/months served prior to most recent appointment in right-hand column) 

 

 



   
ARF-3419     Consent Agenda Item      5. N.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 11/17/2015  
Reporting
Period:

Globe Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for
September 2015

Submitted For: Ruben Mancha, Globe Regional Constable 
Submitted By: Kimberly Rust, Constable Clerk, Constable - Globe

Regional

Information
Subject
Globe Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for September 2015

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the September 2015 monthly activity report
submitted by the Globe Regional Constable's Office.

Attachments
September 2015 











































   
ARF-3423     Consent Agenda Item      5. O.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 11/17/2015  
Reporting
Period:

September 2015

Submitted For: Colt White, Payson Regional Constable 
Submitted By: Michelle Keegan, Constable Clerk, Constable - Payson

Regional

Information
Subject
Payson Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for September 2015.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the September 2015 monthly activity report
submitted by the Payson Regional Constable's Office.

Attachments
Payson Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for September
2015























































   
ARF-3437     Consent Agenda Item      5. P.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 11/17/2015  
Reporting
Period:

September 2015

Submitted For: Dorothy Little, Justice of the Peace-Payson Region 
Submitted By: Dorothy Little, Justice of the Peace-Payson Region,

Justice Court-Payson Regional

Information
Subject
Payson Regional Justice of the Peace's Office monthly report for
September 2015.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the September 2015 monthly activity report
submitted by the Payson Regional Justice of the Peace's Office.

Attachments
September 2015 Monthly Report













   
ARF-3429     Consent Agenda Item      5. Q.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 11/17/2015  
Reporting
Period:

September 2015

Submitted For: Anita Escobedo, Clerk of the Superior Court 
Submitted By: Vicki Aguilar, Chief Deputy Clerk of the Superior Court,

Clerk of the Superior Court

Information
Subject
Clerk of the Superior Court's Office Monthly Report for September 2015.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the September 2015 monthly activity report
submitted by the Clerk of the Superior Court's Office.

Attachments
Clerk's Report for September 2015



















   
ARF-3441     Consent Agenda Item      5. R.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 11/17/2015  
Reporting
Period:

August 2015

Submitted For: Sadie Bingham, Recorder 
Submitted By: Kaycee Stratton, Chief Deputy Recorder, Recorder's Office

Information
Subject
Recorder's Office Monthly Report for August 2015.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the August 2015 monthly activity report submitted by
the Recorder's Office.

Attachments
Monthly Report August 2015 























   
ARF-3443     Consent Agenda Item      5. S.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 11/17/2015  
Reporting
Period:

September 2015

Submitted For: Sadie Bingham, Recorder 
Submitted By: Kaycee Stratton, Chief Deputy Recorder, Recorder's Office

Information
Subject
Recorder's Office Monthly Report for September 2015.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the September 2015 monthly activity report
submitted by the Recorder's Office.

Attachments
Recorder's Office September 2015 Monthly Report





























   
ARF-3451     Consent Agenda Item      5. T.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 11/17/2015  
Reporting
Period:

October 20, 2015 and October 27, 2015

Submitted For: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board 
Submitted By: Laurie Kline, Deputy Clerk, Clerk of the Board of

Supervisors

Information
Subject
October 20, 2015, and October 27, 2015, Board of Supervisors' meeting
minutes.

Suggested Motion
Approval of the October 20, 2015, and October 27, 2015, Board of
Supervisors' meeting minutes.

Attachments
10-27-15 BOS Meeting Minutes
10-20-15 BOS Meeting Minutes



Page 1 of 4 
 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MINUTES 
GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 

 
Date:  October 27, 2015 
 
MICHAEL A. PASTOR                                              MARIAN E. SHEPPARD 
Chairman        Clerk of the Board 
 
TOMMIE C. MARTIN  By: Laurie J. Kline 
Vice-Chairman                                                              Deputy Clerk 
 
JOHN D. MARCANTI                                                 Gila County Courthouse 
Member         Globe, Arizona                          
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
PRESENT:  Michael A. Pastor, Chairman; Tommie C. Martin, Vice-Chairman 
(via ITV); John D. Marcanti, Member; Don E. McDaniel, Jr., County Manager; 
Michael Scannell, Deputy County Manager; Jacque Griffin, Assistant County 
Manager, Librarian; Jefferson R. Dalton, Deputy County Attorney and Civil 
Bureau Chief; Marian E. Sheppard, Clerk of the Board; and Laurie J. Kline, 
Deputy Clerk.  
 
Item 1 – CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The Gila County Board of Supervisors met in a work session at 10:00 a.m. this 
date in the Board of Supervisors’ hearing room.  Steve Sanders led the Pledge 
of Allegiance. 
 
Item 2 – PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 
A.  Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Ordinance No. 2015-05 
amending the Zoning Map for Unincorporated Areas of Gila County for the 
rezoning of Assessor's tax parcel number 205-08-005 (1451 E. Highway 
188, Globe, AZ) from a C3 (Commercial Three District) and R1-D8 
(Residence One District with a minimum 8,000 square foot lot size) 
zoning to R1-D8 zoning.   
 
Bob Gould, Community Development Division Director (via ITV), advised that 
this application is a request to rezone parcel number 205-08-005 as R1-D8 
(Residence One District with a minimum 8,000 square foot lot size) because it 
is currently a multi-zoned property; 400 feet of the subject property beginning 
at Highway 188 is zoned as Commercial Three District (C3) and the last 14 feet 
of the property is zoned R1-D8.   
 
Mr. Gould stated that the current zoning was applied in 1980.  At that time, 
the County issued some permits on single-family residentially zoned properties, 



Page 2 of 4 
 

which should not have been zoned for commercial development.  To correct 
that error, the Board of Supervisors then rezoned a strip of land that affected 
many properties along Highway 188 by designating the first 400 feet of each 
parcel as C3; thereby, creating many multi-zoned properties.  Also at that time, 
County staff requested that the Board of Supervisors only apply the C3 and 
R1-D8 multi-zoning on two affected properties; however, the Board proceeded 
to apply the multi-zoning to all of the properties along that area of Highway 
188.  He stated that the current zoning creates many problems at such time as 
a residential property owner tries to sell their property.  Mr. Gould stated that 
he has encountered this problem many times throughout the years.  Potential 
buyers are not able to obtain financing due to the commercial zoning being on 
the same parcel as the residential property.  The end result is that the seller is 
not able to sell the property unless the potential buyer pays cash for it.  In 
2003, the County’s Comprehensive Master Plan was adopted and at that time 
the County designated the subject parcel as single family residential.  This 
home was permitted in 1948; 11 years before the County adopted its Planning 
and Zoning Ordinance.  The Gila County Planning and Zoning Commission has 
reviewed this application, held a public hearing, and unanimously voted to 
recommend that the Board of Supervisors approve the zoning change.   
 
Community Development Division staff recommended that the Board of 
Supervisors adopt Ordinance No. 2015-05 as it would correct the error in the 
zoning of parcel number 205-08-005.  Vice-Chairman Martin was in favor of 
this action and stated that if the property owner has asked for the change and 
the Planning and Zoning Commission has recommended it, she believes it to be 
a “done deal.”  Supervisor Marcanti agreed with her and stated that this Board 
action would clear up some related problems, and he commented that the 
Planning and Zoning Commission is doing a “fantastic job.”  Chairman Pastor 
inquired if there have been any negative comments received from the public 
regarding this issue.  Mr. Gould replied that there have been no written 
objections to this issue.  There was one phone call received and it was only 
interrogative in nature.  Chairman Pastor opened the public hearing and no 
comments were received; therefore, he closed the public hearing and asked for 
a motion from the Board.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by 
Supervisor Marcanti, the Board unanimously adopted Ordinance No. 2015-05 
amending the Zoning Map for Unincorporated Areas of Gila County for the 
rezoning of Assessor's tax parcel number 205-08-005 (1451 E. Highway 188, 
Globe, AZ) from C3 and R1-D8 zoning to R1-D8 zoning.  (A copy of the 
Ordinance is permanently on file in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.) 
 
Item 3 – REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:  
 
A.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve the Amended Landfill User 
Fee Schedule dated October 27, 2015, which specifies a 50% waiver of the 
standard "All Other Waste" category for qualifying religious organizations 
that have obtained an approved Landfill Fee Waiver Permit.   



Page 3 of 4 
 

Chairman Pastor stated that several years ago he received requests from a 
couple of local churches to waive fees at the landfill.  At that time he conferred 
with Sharon Winters, Gila County Landfill Manager, and it was decided to deny 
their request because there was no County approved process in place to allow 
the fee waiver.  In April 2015, Chairman Pastor was approached by the Divine 
Grace Presbyterian Church with a request to provide funding from Chairman 
Pastor’s Constituent Services Fund in order to help with the Church’s roof 
demolition/remodeling project.  Chairman Pastor advised that he had not 
previously received a request from a religious organization, so at that time he 
conferred with Bryan Chambers, Deputy County Attorney and Civil Bureau 
Chief.  Mr. Chambers responded in writing to Chairman Pastor and the letter 
cited several different applicable cases and a statement that it is not 
permissible for the County to gift funds to religious organizations.   
 
Chairman Pastor advised that luckily the church was able to obtain some 
funding for its project; however, later on he was again approached by the 
church with a request to deposit debris from the project at the County landfill 
with a 50% reduction in the landfill fees.  Chairman Pastor discussed that 
option with County Manager Don McDaniel at which time Mr. McDaniel 
suggested conducting a survey of other counties or municipalities throughout 
the state regarding waivers or reductions on landfill fees, which was done.  In 
reviewing all of the information, Chairman Pastor believes the best avenue was 
to amend the County’s Landfill User Fee Schedule to include the 50% reduction 
on the landfill fees for the “All Other Waste” category, whereby qualifying 
religious organizations could apply for a permit in order to receive the 50% 
reduction of the landfill fees.   
 
Vice-Chairman Martin added that she would like for special taxing districts to 
be included in this benefit.  Supervisor Marcanti agreed with her and stated 
that although this type of request doesn’t come up very often, he would like to 
explore the options of expanding the scope of this topic.  Mr. McDaniel 
commented that this topic has been explained well and he acknowledged that 
the Board has directed him to explore the possibility of broadening the areas to 
include other organizations.  He advised that County staff will look at other 
areas that a reduction in fees or a complete waiver of fees could be applied.  He 
added for clarification that the requesting organization would have to provide 
documentation of its tax-exempt status along with the application for a fee-
waiver permit in order to receive the 50% reduction in landfill fees.  Upon 
motion by Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board 
unanimously approved the Amended Landfill User Fee Schedule dated October 
27, 2015.    
 
Item 3 – CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is held for public 
benefit to allow individuals to address the Board of Supervisors on any 
issue within the jurisdiction of the Board of Supervisors. Board members 
may not discuss items that are not specifically identified on the agenda. 



Page 4 of 4 
 

Therefore, pursuant to Arizona Revised Statute §38-431.01(H), at the 
conclusion of an open call to the public, individual members of the Board 
of Supervisors may respond to criticism made by those who have 
addressed the Board, may ask staff to review a matter or may ask that a 
matter be put on a future agenda for further discussion and decision at a 
future date.  
 
There were no requests to speak from the public. 
 
Item 4 – At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S. §38-
431.02(K), members of the Board of Supervisors and the County Manager 
may present a brief summary of current events. No action may be taken 
on issues presented.  
 
Each Board member and the County Manager presented information on 
current events.  
 
There being no further business to come before the Board of Supervisors, 
Chairman Pastor adjourned the meeting at 10:30 a.m. 
 
 
APPROVED: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board 



Page 1 of 7 
 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MEETING MINUTES 
GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 

 
Date:  October 20, 2015 
 
MICHAEL A. PASTOR                                              MARIAN E. SHEPPARD 
Chairman        Clerk of the Board 
 
TOMMIE C. MARTIN  By: Laurie J. Kline 
Vice-Chairman                                                              Deputy Clerk 
 
JOHN D. MARCANTI                                                 Gila County Courthouse 
Member         Globe, Arizona                          
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
PRESENT:  Michael A. Pastor, Chairman; Tommie C. Martin, Vice-Chairman 
(via telephone); John D. Marcanti, Member; Don E. McDaniel, Jr., County 
Manager; Michael Scannell, Deputy County Manager; Jefferson R. Dalton, 
Deputy County Attorney and Civil Bureau Chief; Marian E. Sheppard, Clerk of 
the Board; and Laurie J. Kline, Deputy Clerk.  
 
Item 1 – CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - INVOCATION  
 
The Gila County Board of Supervisors met in a regular session at 10:00 a.m. 
this date in the Board of Supervisors’ hearing room.  Jeff Hessenius led the 
Pledge of Allegiance and Pastor Jay Petty of the Living Waters Community 
Church in Globe delivered the invocation. 
 
Item 2 – PRESENTATIONS:  
 
A.  Presentation of the Southern Gila County Dictionary Program by Kevin 
Kinney of the Pinal Mountain Elks Club.  
 
Kevin Kinney, a member of the Pinal Mountain Elks Club #2809 and 
Coordinator of the Dictionary Project, provided an explanation and history of 
the Dictionary Project.  It was initiated about five years ago by a group of civic-
minded organizations with the purpose of providing free dictionaries to 3rd 
grade students attending public, charter, and private schools in Globe, Miami, 
San Carlos, and Superior.  Dictionaries will also be available for home-schooled 
students through the Gila County School Superintendent’s Office.  The group 
of local community service organizations formed a 501 (C) tax-exempt 
corporation comprised of all volunteers.   Approximately 520 dictionaries will 
be distributed to teachers and students.  The Board members commented 
favorably regarding the Dictionary Program presentation.   
 
 



Page 2 of 7 
 

Item 3 – REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:  
 
A.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve Intergovernmental 
Agreement No. 082015 to provide an Economic Development Grant in the 
amount of $40,000 to the Town of Miami to assist the Town in meeting 
its 10% monetary contribution for a Federal Emergency Management 
Agency grant to build a new crossing at Mackey Camp and provide 
permanent access for residents in the area and emergency vehicles.   
 
Steve Sanders, Public Works Division Director, provided information that the 
flooding in Arizona which occurred in 2010 severely impacted the Town of 
Miami and caused a complete collapse and disintegration of the Mackey Camp 
Bridge.  According to the terms of the Federal Emergency Management Agency 
(FEMA) grant referenced above, FEMA will pay 75% and contract the execution 
of the project; the State of Arizona will pay 15%; and, the Town of Miami is 
required to pay the remaining 10% of the cost of the project.  Staff recommends 
that the Board approve the Intergovernmental Agreement to assist the Town of 
Miami in providing the 10% ($40,000) contribution required to complete the 
construction of a new crossing at Mackey Camp.  Upon motion by Vice-
Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the Board unanimously 
approved Intergovernmental Agreement No. 082015 to provide an Economic 
Development Grant in the amount of $40,000 to the Town of Miami to assist 
the Town in meeting its 10% monetary contribution for a Federal Emergency 
Management Agency grant to build a new crossing at Mackey Camp and 
provide permanent access for residents in the area and emergency vehicles. 
 
B.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve a one-year extension on the 
existing contract with the Bose Public Affairs Group to provide consulting 
and lobbying services for Gila County at the federal government level; and 
increase the contract amount to $75,000.   
 
Don McDaniel, County Manager, provided a brief history of Gila County’s 
association with Bose Public Affairs Group (BPAG).  On May 12, 2009, the 
Board of Supervisors approved the initial contract with BPAG with subsequent 
extensions of the contract and increases in the contract amount being made 
since that time.  On November 18, 2014, the Board approved Contract No. 
103114 contract with BPAG.  This agenda item is for the Board to approve 
Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 103114 to extend the contract for one 
additional year, from November 18, 2015, to November 17, 2016; and to 
increase the contract amount from $55,000 to $75,000, to be expensed if 
needed and as requested.  Upon motion by Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by 
Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously approved Amendment No. 1 to 
Contract No. 103114 with Bose Public Affairs Group. 
 
C.  Information/Discussion/Action to accept a Citizens' Petition to begin 
the process to establish E. Eagles Bluff as a Primitive Road.   



Page 3 of 7 
 

Mr. Sanders advised that recent field visits revealed information that needs to 
be followed up on prior to moving forward with establishing E. Eagles Bluff as a 
Primitive Road.  Mr. Sanders asked that the Board table this item to a later 
meeting until additional information is obtained.  Upon motion by Vice-
Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the Board unanimously 
tabled this item to a later meeting.   
 
D.  Information/Discussion/Action to review the bid received for Request 
for Proposals No. 080515-1 for the complete rebuild of an 816F CAT 
compactor utilized by the Recycling and Landfill Department; award to 
the lowest, most responsive and qualified bidder; and to authorize the 
Chairman's signature on the award contract for the winning bid.   
 
Jeff Hessenius, Finance Division Director, stated that this agenda item is a 
request for the Board to award a contract so that work can be performed on the 
816F CAT compactor as outlined in Request for Proposals (RFP) No. 080515-1.  
The compactor was purchased new on May 31, 2000, and since that time it has 
been in use for approximately 20 hours per week for a total of 12,400 hours of 
use (approximate).  Staff reviewed the option of purchasing a new compactor 
versus rebuilding the existing compactor, and the Recycling and Landfill 
Manager has recommended rebuilding the compactor.  Empire Southwest, LLC 
(Empire) was the only company that submitted a bid in response to the RFP.  It 
was explained that until the engine is disassembled, Empire would not know 
the total amount of work to be completed, so that is the reason the bid 
contains different pricing scenarios.  Staff recommended awarding a contract to 
Empire.  Upon motion by Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by Vice-Chairman 
Martin, the Board unanimously awarded a contract to Empire Southwest, LLC 
for Request for Proposals No. 080515-1 and authorized the Chairman's 
signature on the contract.   
 
E.  Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the Chairman’s signature 
on the comment letter to be submitted to the United States Forest 
Service supporting the National Environmental Act Policy Act (NEPA) 
proposals for the Fossil Creek Wild and Scenic River corridor.   
 
Chairman Pastor wanted it noted in the record that the language on this 
agenda item was slightly changed to make it easier to understand; however, the 
content was not changed.  He then proceeded to read aloud the corrected 
language as stated above. 
 
Mr. McDaniel stated that the United States Forest Service (USFS) is seeking 
comments on its intention to initiate the NEPA for two Fossil Creek Wild and 
Scenic River (FC-WSR) proposals.  He advised that in recent times the Sheriff’s 
Posse and Sheriff’s deputies in Payson have responded to calls in that area 
because hikers have gotten stranded and for other reasons such as visitors 
parking their vehicles and blocking residential driveways, roads, etc.  The 



Page 4 of 7 
 

USFS describes its purpose in initiating NEPA for FC-WSR is to address public 
safety issues and to protect water resources.  It is the intent of the USFS to:    
 
• Implement managed day use, and reduce overnight camping; 
 
• Establish an online reservation system, vehicle access, and deploy entry 

booths to manage traffic according to the reservation system; and, 
 
• Conduct a geotechnical soil survey with sample drilling and material 

excavation in preparation for replacement of Fossil Creek Bridge.   
 

Mr. McDaniel added that the comments must be submitted to the USFS by 
October 22, 2015, and staff has recommended that the Board submit the letter 
in support of managing this site better than it has been managed in the past.  
Vice-Chairman Martin stated that this proposed action by the USFS is a short-
term solution, but she believes that it is a necessary action.  Supervisor 
Marcanti agreed with her and stated that by providing better management of 
the area it would improve the safety for the citizens.  The Board held a brief 
discussion regarding the safety issues relating to citizens who visit the Fossil 
Creek area.  Upon motion by Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by Chairman 
Pastor, (Vice-Chairman Martin’s phone call disconnected during the motion; 
however, contact was made before the vote was taken.) the Board unanimously 
authorized the Chairman’s signature on the comment letter to be submitted to 
the USFS supporting the NEPA proposals for the FC-WSR corridor.   
 
F.  Property Tax Sale/Auction for the sale of Assessor's parcel number 
206-21-201, a vacant parcel of land located in Miami, Arizona that was 
deeded to the State of Arizona by Treasurer's Deed in the year 1936.   
 
Chairman Pastor read aloud the agenda item and asked if anyone was present 
in Globe or Payson to bid on the parcel.  There was no response.  (Note:  On 
October 6, 2015, the Board of Supervisors held a live auction to sell this parcel 
of land at the request of an interested citizen; however, no one submitted a bid 
at that time so the Board continued this item to today’s agenda.) 
 
Jon Cornell, KQSS Radio reporter, inquired if an individual could offer a bid 
which is less than the lien amount to which Chairman Pastor replied that the 
minimum acceptable bid is the lien amount.  Chairman Pastor asked a second 
time if anyone was present in the audience in Globe or Payson to bid on this 
parcel.  No one placed a bid on the parcel; therefore, Chairman Pastor asked 
for a motion to place parcel number 206-21-201 on the “not for sale” parcel list 
held by the Clerk of the Board.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, 
seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the Board unanimously voted to place this 
parcel on the “not for sale” list. 
 



Page 5 of 7 
 

Item 4 – CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS:  (Any matter on the Consent 
Agenda will be removed from the Consent Agenda and discussed and voted 
upon as a regular agenda item upon the request of any member of the 
Board of Supervisors.)  
 
A.  Approval to allow the County Manager to sign Amendment No. 1 to 
Contract No. 010314 with Wright Asphalt Products Company for 
the purchase of CRS-TR tire rubber modified asphalt emulsion for a period 
from July 18, 2015 to July 17, 2016.  
 
B.  Approval of the Gila County Rodeo Committee's request to use the Gila 
County Fairgrounds rodeo arena for a barrel race on October 24, 2015, 
with all associated Fairgrounds' use fees waived due to the Committee's 
501(c) (3) status.  
 
C.  Approval of a fee-waiver request submitted by the Cobre Valley 
Regional Medical Center Foundation for use of the Fairgrounds Exhibit 
Hall from November 1, 2015, through November 7, 2015, for the 
November 6th Art and Wine Auction, as all stipulations regarding the 
event insurance and 501 (c) (3) status verification have been met.  
 
D.  Acknowledgment of Michael Clark's resignation from the Pine-
Strawberry Fire District Board of Directors and the appointment of 
Charles Ackerman to fulfill Mr. Clark's unexpired term which ends on 
December 31, 2018.  
 
E.  Acknowledgment of the September 2015 monthly activity report 
submitted by the Globe Regional Justice of the Peace's Office.  
 
F.  Approval of the September 29, 2015, and October 6, 2015, Board of 
Supervisors' meeting minutes, and the October 5, 2015, Board of 
Equalization meeting minutes.  
 
G.  Acknowledgment of contracts under $50,000 which have been 
approved by the County Manager for the weeks of September 21, 2015, 
through September 25, 2015; September 28, 2015, through October 02, 
2015; and, October 05, 2015, through October 09, 2015.  
 
H.  Approval of finance reports/demands/transfers for the weeks of 
October 13, 2015, and October 20, 2015.   
 
October 13, 2015 
 
$1,707,343.76 was disbursed for County expenses by check numbers 272941 
through 273090.  
 



Page 6 of 7 
 

October 20, 2015 
 
$261,958.19 was disbursed for County expenses by check numbers 273091 
through 273176.  (An itemized list of disbursements is permanently on file 
in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.) 
 
Upon motion by Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the 
Board unanimously approved Consent Agenda Action Items 4A – 4H. 
 
At 10:32 a.m. Vice-Chairman Martin left the meeting (via telephone). 
 
Item 5 – CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is held for public 
benefit to allow individuals to address the Board of Supervisors on any 
issue within the jurisdiction of the Board of Supervisors. Board members 
may not discuss items that are not specifically identified on the agenda. 
Therefore, pursuant to Arizona Revised Statute §38-431.01(H), at the 
conclusion of an open call to the public, individual members of the Board 
of Supervisors may respond to criticism made by those who have 
addressed the Board, may ask staff to review a matter or may ask that a 
matter be put on a future agenda for further discussion and decision at a 
future date.  
 
There were no comments from the public. 
 
Item 6 – At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S. §38-
431.02(K), members of the Board of Supervisors and the County Manager 
may present a brief summary of current events.  No action may be taken 
on issues presented.  
 
Each Board member (excluding Vice-Chairman Martin) and the County 
Manager presented information on current events.  
 
Item 7 – EXECUTIVE SESSION ITEMS:  (Should the Board of Supervisors 
vote to go into executive session on any of the items listed below, no 
action will be taken by the Board while in executive session.)  
 
Upon motion by Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by Chairman Pastor, the Board 
convened into Executive Session at 10:37 a.m. 
 
A.  Information/Discussion/Action to vote to go into executive session to 
receive legal advice from its attorney regarding CV201400260 the Town 
of Miami, Arizona v. Sho Me Copper Company and consider its position in 
the lawsuit; and instruct its attorney how to proceed pursuant to A.R.S. § 
38-431.03(A)(3)-(4).  If the Board does go into executive session, the 
County Attorney’s Office suggests that after adjourning from executive 



Page 7 of 7 
 

session, the Board vote to instruct the County Attorney’s Office to 
proceed as directed in executive session.   
 
At 10:51 a.m. Chairman Pastor reconvened the meeting.  Upon motion by 
Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by Chairman Pastor, the Board instructed the 
County Attorney’s Office to proceed with a disclaimer of any interest in the 
lawsuit regarding CV201400260, the Town of Miami, Arizona v. Sho Me Copper 
Company.   
 
There being no further business to come before the Board of Supervisors, 
Chairman Pastor adjourned the meeting at 10:52 a.m. 
 
APPROVED: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board 



   
ARF-3234     Consent Agenda Item      5. U.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 11/17/2015  
Reporting
Period:

10/06/15, 10/13/15, 10/20/15, and 10/27/15

Submitted For: Erica Raymond, Human Resources Assistant 
Submitted By: Erica Raymond, Human Resources Assistant Sr.,

Human Resources Department

Information
Subject
Human Resources reports for the weeks of October 6, 2015, October 13,
2015, October 20, 2015, and October 27, 2015.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the Human Resources reports for the weeks of
October 6, 2015, October 13, 2015, October 20, 2015, and October 27,
2015.

Attachments
HR Summary Report
10/06/15 Human Resources Report
10/13/15 Human Resources Report
10/20/15 Human Resources Report
10/27/15 Human Resources Report



Summary
Year To 
Date Jan‐15 Feb‐15 Mar‐15 Apr‐15 May‐15 Jun‐15 Jul‐15 Aug‐15 Sep‐15 Oct‐15 Nov‐15 Dec‐15

Human Resources Action Items

DEPARTURES 119 8 18 7 12 11 20 19 7 9 8

NEW HIRES REGULAR STATUS 86 9 9 8 9 2 8 13 10 13 5

NEW HIRES TEMPORARY STATUS 22 3 2 2 4 0 4 1 1 2 3

NEW VOLUNTEERS 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS 55 6 4 4 4 3 3 8 6 13 4

END PROBATIONARY PERIOD 69 2 2 10 5 8 8 6 11 9 8

OTHER ACTIONS 64 11 2 1 10 5 9 10 9 4 3

REQUEST TO POST 102 7 14 5 9 5 18 13 11 10 10

  Total Transactions 517 46 51 37 53 34 70 70 55 60 41 0 0

 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
OCTOBER 6, 2015 

 
DEPARTURES: 
 

1. Amy LaFleur – Sheriff’s Office – 911 Dispatcher – 10/08/15 – General Fund – DOH 10/16/06 
2. Nancy Hinojos – Clerk of Superior Court – Court Clerk – 10/02/15 – General Fund – DOH 09/08/15 
3. Linda Lemon – Clerk of Superior Court – Courtroom Clerk Technician – 10/09/15 – General Fund – 

DOH 07/28/08 
 
TEMPORARY HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICES: 
 

4. Carl Melford – Health and Emergency Services – Temporary Executive Administrative Assistant – 
10/19/15 – General Fund  

 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
 

5. Shaunae Casillas – Health and Emergency Services – Community Health Specialist – 10/01/15 – 
Tobacco Free Environment Fund  

6. Travis Todd – Sheriff’s Office – Deputy Sheriff – 09/29/15 – General Fund  
 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
 

7. Bethany Cheney – Health and Emergency Services – From Worksite Wellness Coordinator (.50) – To 
Community Health Policy Analyst – 10/12/15 – From Population Health Policy Initiative Fund – To 
Population Health Policy Initiative Fund(.50)/Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program 
Education(.50) Funds 

 
OTHER ACTIONS: 
 

8. Joshua Beck – Health and Emergency Services – Emergency Management/Public Health Emergency 
Preparedness Manager – 10/05/15 – From Bio Terrorism Program(.30)/General(.70) Funds – To Various 
Funds – Change in fund codes – Change in fund codes 

 
REQUEST TO POST: 
 

9. Recorder’s Office – Recorder’s Clerk – Vacated by Rhonda Rolf 
10. Public Works – Building Maintenance Technician – Vacated by Arthur Power IV 
11. Clerk of Superior Court – Courtroom Clerk Technician – Vacated by Linda Lemon 
12. Community Development – Temporary Administrative Clerk – Vacated by Patsy Clayton 

 
 
 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
OCTOBER 13, 2015 

 
DEPARTURES: 
 

1. Chris Phillips – Health and Emergency Services – Community Health Specialist – 10/15/15 – Teen 
Pregnancy Prevention Services – DOH 07/02/07 

2. John McCrory – Public Works – Flood Control Technician – 10/16/15 – General Fund – DOH 06/02/14 
3. Stacie Allison – Finance – Accountant Senior – 10/23/15 – General Fund – DOH 09/25/06 
4. Bernadette Ortiz – Public Works – Rural Addressing Analyst – 10/08/15 – General Fund – DOH 

09/14/15 
 

TEMPORARY HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICES: 
 

5. Mary Stemm – Library District – Temporary Library Assistant Senior – 10/07/15 – Library Assistance 
Fund 

 
NEW HIRES: 
 

6. Mark De Los Reyes – Assessor’s Office – Property Appraiser 1 – 10/19/15 – General Fund – FY 16 
budgeted position 

 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
 

7. Jade Kaufman – Community Development – Permit Technician – 10/27/15 – General Fund  
8. Bianca Melford – Health and Emergency Services – Administrative Clerk Senior – 10/20/15 – Health 

Service Fund 
 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
 

9. Jerry M. Moore – From Public Works – To Community Development – From Building Maintenance 
Technician – To Zoning and Building Inspector – 10/19/15 – From Facilities Management Fund – To 
General Fund – Replacing Mark Kaufman 

 
OTHER ACTIONS: 
 

10. Estelle Belarde – Community Services – Housing Services Administrator – 07/01/15 - From Housing 
Fund – To Housing(.50)/Housing Rehabilitation(.50) Funds – Change in fund codes 

 
REQUEST TO POST: 
 

11. Public Works – Rural Addressing Analyst – Vacated by Bernadette Ortiz 
12. Finance – Accountant Senior – Vacated by Stacie Allison 
13. Health and Emergency Services – Community Health Specialist – Vacated by Chris Phillips 
14. Public Works – Flood Control Technician – Vacated by John McCrory 

 
 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
OCTOBER 20, 2015 

 
DEPARTURES: 
 

1. Robert Gould – Community Development – Director of Community Development – 12/31/15 – General 
Fund – DOH 09/04/06 

 
NEW HIRES: 
 

2. Paul Curzon – Assessor’s Office –Mapping Technician – 11/02/15 – General Fund – Replacing Susan 
Pontel 

3. Donna Krah – Probation – Surveillance Officer – 10/26/15 – General(.50)/Adult Probation Service 
Fees(.50) Funds – Replacing Danny McKeen 

 
TEMPORARY HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICES: 
 

4. Felicia Trembath – Health and Emergency Services – Temporary Public Health and Emergency 
Preparedness Planner – 10/26/15 – Bio Terrorism Program Fund – Replacing B. Todd Whitney 

 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
 

5. Jessica Moul – Health and Emergency Services – Administrative Clerk Senior – 10/27/15 – Health 
Service Fund  

6. Wayne Morgan – Assessor’s Office – Property Appraiser 1 – 10/07/15 – General Fund  
 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
 

7. Susan Williams – From Globe Regional Justice Court – To School Superintendent’s Office – From 
Accounting Clerk Senior – To Administrative Assistant – 10/26/15 – General Fund – Replacing Natalie 
Lister 

 
OTHER ACTIONS: 
 

8. Nancy Rutherford – Health and Emergency Services – Health Programs Manager – 10/19/15 – Various 
Funds – Change in fund codes  

 
REQUEST TO POST: 
 

9. Sheriff’s Office – Records Clerk – Vacated by Rose Holiday 
 
 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
OCTOBER 27, 2015 

 
NEW HIRES: 
 

1. Lauren Molzen – Health and Emergency Services – Animal Care Worker – 11/02/15 – Rabies Control 
Fund – Replacing Amanda Olvera  

2. Richard Dwyer – Assessor’s Office – Property Appraiser 1 – 10/26/15 – General Fund – Replacing 
Joseph Williams 

 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
 

3. Adela Johnson – County Attorney’s Office – Legal Secretary – 11/04/15 – General Fund 
4. Heather Lutye – County Attorney’s Office – Legal Secretary Senior – 11/18/15 – General Fund 

 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
 

5. Jessica Palmer – Health and Emergency Services – From Animal Regulations Enforcement Officer – To 
Community Health Specialist – 11/02/15 – From Rabies Control Fund – To Teen Pregnancy Prevention 
Services Fund – Replacing Nancy Rutherford  

 
REQUEST TO POST: 
 

6. Globe Regional Justice Court – Accounting Clerk Senior – Vacated by Susan Williams 
 
 



   
ARF-3444     Consent Agenda Item      5. V.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 11/17/2015  
Reporting
Period:

October 16, 2015; October 23, 2015; and October 30,
2015

Submitted For: Jeff Hessenius, Finance Director 
Submitted By: Jeannie Sgroi, Contracts Administrator, Finance Division

Information
Subject
Report for County Manager Approved Contracts Under $50,000 for Weeks
Ending 10-16-15; 10-23-15; and 10-30-15.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of contracts under $50,000 which have been approved
by the County Manager for the weeks of October 12, 2015, through
October 16, 2015; October 19, 2015, through October 23, 2015; and,
October 26, 2015, through October 30, 2015.

Attachments
Report for County Manager Approved Contracts Under 50,000 for
Weeks Ending 10-16-15, 10-23-15, and 10-30-15
Service Agreement No. 101215-Mountain Retreat Builders
Contract Agreement Form-SD Crane Builders
Service Agreement No. 082115-Anderson Collision Center
Authorization to utilize State contract with Blackstone Security
Service Agreement No. 092215-A-O Painting, Inc.
Service Agreement No. 081415-American Fence
Amendment No. 1-Ponderosa Medical Waste
Amendment No. 2-Messinger Mortuary
Service Agreement No. 100915-1-Empire Southwest
Service Agreement No. 080615-2-South West Mobile Storage, Inc.
Amendment No. 1-KWIK KOOL Refrigeration
Smith's Detection Service Agreement
Cable One-Addendum for month to month term



Amendment No. 1-Rodriguez Constructions, Inc.
OverDrive, Inc.-Digital Library Reserve Access Agreement



  
Page 1 

 
  

 
COUNTY MANAGER APPROVED CONTRACTS UNDER $50,000 
 
 
October 12, 2015 thru October 16, 2015 

 

Number/Vendor Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 
 

101215 
Mountain Retreat 

Builders 

 

 
Service Agreement No. 

101215 
URRD Project HH#2700 

 

 
$1,800.00 

 
10-13-15 to 06-30-15 

 
10-13-15 

 
Expires 

 
Contractor to provide labor and 
materials to build and install a new 
handrail. 

 
ADSPO12-031788 

SD Crane Building, Inc.  
 

 

 
Authorization to Utilize 
State Procurement JOC 
Contract with SD Crane 

Building 
 

 

 
$46,917.33  

 

 
10-13-15 to 12-03-15 

 
10-13-15 

 
Expires 

 
Contractor shall furnish and install all 
labor, materials and equipment for the 
Globe Jail kitchen renovation project, as 
scoped out by Facilities Management.  
Contractor pricing is per Contractors’ JOC 
contract with the State of Arizona 
Procurement Office. 
 

 
082115 

Anderson Collision 
Center 

 

 
Service Agreement No. 

082115 
Body Repair Work on 

Vehicle B-181 

 

 
$1,412.22  

 
10-13-15 to 10-27-15 

 
10-13-15 

 
Expires 

 
During a police investigation, damage 
occurred to the passenger front door and 
right rear quarter panel of Vehicle B-181.  
Contractor shall repair damage. 
 

 
ADSPO13-054359 

Blackstone Security 
Services  

 

 

 
Authorization to Utilize 

State Procurement  
Contract with Blackstone 

Security Services, Inc. 
 

 

 
$39,058.00 

 
10-12-15 to 04-01-16 

 
10-13-15 

 
Option to Renew 

 
Payson Courthouse employees feel that 
they are in need of a more secure 
working environment.  They have 
requested armed security guards be 
stationed at the front Public entrance to 
screen people coming in and out of the 
building. 
  
 

 

 

 

 

 



  
Page 2 

 
  

October 19, 2015 thru October 23, 2015 

 

Number/Vendor  Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 
 

092215 
A-O Painting, Inc. 

 

 
Service Agreement No. 

092215 
Paint 20,000 Gallon Fuel 

Tank 

 

 
Not to exceed 

$11,340.00 
 

 
10-20-15 to 12-03-15 

 
10-20-15 

 
Expires 

 
This fuel tank is 19 years old and is in 
need of being completely stripped to the 
bare metal, primed and repainted.  This 
paint job should protect the fuel tank for 
an additional 20 years.  

 
 081415 

American Fence 
Company of Arizona  

 
Service Agreement No. 

081415 
Relocate and Modify Globe 

Jail Security Gates at 
Dumpster Bin Alcove 

 

 
Not to exceed 

$3,300.00 
 

 
10-21-15 to 11-20-15 

 
10-20-15 

 
Expires 

 
The purpose of this contract is to install 
gates on the old dumpster bin alcove 
which will allow the bin enclosure walls 
and fencing to be removed. This will give 
earth moving equipment access to the 
outer areas of the fence to clean away 
dirt and rocks that sluff off the 
surroundings slopes which builds up 
against the fencing causing damage to it 
allowing mud and debris to pass through 
the fencing causing other issues in the 
jails operations. 
 

 
100914-1 

Ponderosa Medical 
Waste Services 

 
Amendment No. 1 to 

Service Agreement No. 
100914-1 

Medical Waste Disposal 
Gila County Injury 

Prevention 
 

 

 
$1,840.00 

 

 
11-04-15 to 11-03-16 

 
10-20-15 

 
Option to renew for one 

additional year 

 
Amendment No. 1 will serve to extend 
the agreement from November 04, 2015 
to November 03, 2016. In addition 
Amendment No. 1 will serve to increase 
the original contract by $940.00 to cover 
the cost of medical waste disposal that 
may be required during the term of the 
contract.  
 

 
022514-1 

Messinger Mortuary & 
Chapel, Inc. 

 
Amendment No. 2 to 

Service Agreement No. 
022514-1 

Forensic Center Facility for 
Gila County Medical 

Examiner 
 

 

 
$20,000.00 

 

 
10-14-15 to 10-13-16 

 
10-20-15 

 
Option to renew for two 

additional one-year 
periods 

 
Amendment No. 2 will serve to extend 
the term of the contract for one 
additional year, from 10-14-15 to 10-13-
16, at the annual fee of $20,000.00.  
 

 
 
 



  
Page 3 

 
  

October 19, 2015 thru October 23, 2015 

 

Number/Vendor  Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 
 

100915-1 
Empire Southwest, LLC. 

 
Service Agreement No. 

100915-1 
Emergency Repair-Engine 

Overhaul on Caterpillar 
D7R Crawler 

 

 

 
$43,736.42 

 

 
10-20-15 to 12-03-15 

 
10-20-15 

 
Expires 

 
The dozer (crawler) is needed for daily 
use to cover up waste materials in 
County landfills.  This is a requirement of 
ADEQ.  Additionally, the dozer is 
essential if a fire breaks out, in order to 
cut the burning debris away from the 
rest of the trash.   
  

 
 
 
October 26, 2015 thru October 30, 2015 

 

Number/Vendor  Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 
 

080615-2 
South West Mobile 

Storage 

 
Service Agreement No. 

080615-2 
Relocation of Two Conex 

Boxes 
 

 

 
$1,350.00 

 

 
10-27-15 to 11-01-15 

 

 
10-27-15 

 
Expires 

 
Project consists of moving two Conex 
boxes from the landfill.  One will be 
moved to 5515 S. Apache, Globe, AZ and 
the other will be moved to the animal 
shelter at 700 W. Shelter Lane, Globe, AZ. 
  

 
102714 

KWIK KOOL 
Refrigeration 

 

 

 
Amendment No. 1 to 

Service Agreement No. 
102714 

HVAC Repair and 
Maintenance-Copper 

Region  
 

 

 
$4,500.00  

 

 
12-10-15 to 12-09-16 

 
10-27-15 

 
Option to renew for one 

additional one-year 
period 

 
Amendment No. 1 will serve to extend 
the term of the contract for an additional 
year. Facilities wants a blanket Purchase 
Order with an HVAC company that can 
respond to miscellaneous heating and 
cooling problems in Southern Gila 
County. 
 

 
12020-RFP 

Smiths Detection 
 

 

 
Service Agreement 

  
 

 

 
$17,423.16  

 

 
10-01-15 to 09-30-19 

 
10-28-15 

 
Expires 

 
The X-Ray machine is a highly sensitive 
and technical machine. It must be 
calibrated and tested every year to keep 
in compliance with the Arizona Radiation 
Regulatory Agency.  These forms are 
filled out on our behalf by Smiths 
Detection when they perform the annual 
preventative maintenance 
 



  
Page 4 

 
  

October 26, 2015 thru October 30, 2015 

 

Number/Vendor  Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 
 

Cable One Business 
 

 

 
Addendum to Commercial 

Service Agreement 
  
 

 

 
$3,455.00 

 

 
Month-to-Month 

 
10-26-15 

 
Expires when cancelled 

 
Effective November 16, 2010, Gila 
County entered into a Commercial 
Service Agreement with Cable One. The 
term of the agreement called for 
automatic subsequent renewals terms of 
12 months until cancelled.  The IT 
Department has requested the term be 
modified from 12 months to a month to 
month term.  There will be no change in 
the previously agreed to pricing. 
 

 
092215-1 
Rodriguez 

Constructions, Inc. 
 

 

 
Amendment No. 1  to 

Service Agreement No. 
092215-1 

Major Rehabilitation 
Project HH#10435 

 

 

 
Increase 
original 
contract 

amount of 
$31,960 by 
$3,000 for a 

new total 
contract 

amount of 
$34,960  

 

 
9-23-15 to 11-27-15 

 
10-27-15 

 
Expires 

 
Amendment No. 1 will increase the 
original contract amount of $31,960.00 
by $3,000.00 to replace the existing 
porch damaged by leakage and weather. 
 

 
OverDrive, Inc. 

 

 

 
Digital Library Reserve 

Access Agreement 
 

 

 
$10,000 per 

year 
 

 
10-28-15 to 10-27-19 

 
10-28-15 

 
Automatically Renews 

for four one-year 
periods 

 
OverDrive, Inc. will create an online 
website for the Library District, from 
which the public, once they have 
obtained a library card, may download 
books to read. 
 

 

























































































































































































   
ARF-3475     Executive Session Item      8. A.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 11/17/2015  
Submitted For: Jefferson Dalton, Deputy County Attorney, Civil Bureau

Chief 
Submitted By: Athena Gooding, Legal Secretary, Lead, County Attorney
Department: County Attorney

Information
Request/Subject
The Gila County Attorney's Office requests the board of supervisors
consider its position and instruct its attorneys regarding SATR Holdings,
LLC, vs. Gila County.

Background Information
SATR Holdings, LLC owns property in Gila County.  SATR Holdings, LLC
was dissatisfied with the Gila County Assessor's valuation of some of its
properties; it exhausted its administrative remedies and then filed suit
against Gila County in the Arizona Tax Court.

Evaluation
The Gila County Attorney's Office has had settlement discussions with the
attorney for SATR Holdings. LLC, and needs the board to consider the
matter and give it instructions regarding the board's position regarding
the litigation and settlement discussions.

Conclusion
The Gila County Attorney's Office requires the board's direction regarding
litigation and settlement discussions in SATR Holdings, LLC, vs. Gila
County.

Recommendation
The Gila County Attorney's Office recommends that the board of
supervisors vote to go into executive session, under A.R.S. Section
38-431.03(A)(3)-(4), to receive legal advice from its attorneys and to
consider its position in SATR Holdings, LLC vs. Gila County, and instruct
its attorneys regarding the litigation and settlement negotiations.  The
Gila County Attorney's Office further recommends that the board vote to
reconvene in a public meeting for the purpose of discussing the matter,
deliberating on it, and take action regarding it.



Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to vote to go into executive session to
receive legal advice from its attorney regarding TX 2013-000185 the SATR
Holdings LLC v. Gila County and consider its position in the lawsuit; and
instruct its attorney how to proceed pursuant to A.R.S. §
38-431.03(A)(3)-(4).  If the Board does go into executive session, the
County Attorney’s Office suggests that after adjourning from executive
session, the Board vote to instruct the County Attorney’s Office to proceed
as directed in executive session.   (Jeff Dalton)

Attachments
No file(s) attached.


	Agenda
	 Item 2.A. - Presentation of the City of Globe PSAP Closure and Transition of Dispatch Services to the Gila County Sheriff's Office
	Att1_Presentation 
	 Item 3.A. - Public Sale for a portion of Canal Street as shown on Official Map No. 45, Gila County Records, Gila County, AZ
	Att1_Notice of Sale
	Att2_Elmer Area Map
	Att3_Public Notice of Sale Acknowledgment 9-8-15
	 Item 4.A. - Intergovernmental Agreement between Maricopa County and Gila County regarding Maricopa County Sheriff's Office Basic Training Academy
	Att1_Intergovernmental Agreement No. C-50-16-008-M-00
	 Item 4.B. - MOU Agreement No. 2015-405D-502 between the Governor's Office of Highway Safety and the Gila County Sheriff's Office for a Regional DUI Van 
	Att1_Memorandum of Understanding 
	Att2_Request Letter
	Att3_Letter of Support-GPD
	Att4_Letter of Support-DPS
	Att5_Letter of Support-PPD
	Att6_Letter of Support-TAPD
	Att7_Letter of Support-HPD
	Att8_Letter of Support-MPD
	Att9_DUI Van Information 
	Att10_Picture No. 1
	Att11_Picture No. 2
	Att12_Picture No. 3
	Att13_County Attorney Memo Re DUI Van
	 Item 4.C. - Intergovernmental Agreement No. 041015-1-Town of Star Valley-Law Enforcement Services
	Att1_Approved as to Form
	Att2_Intergovernmental Agreement No. 041015-1-Town of Star Valley
	Att3_Intergovernmental Agreement-2009-Town of Star Valley
	 Item 4.D. - Intergovernmental Agreement Contract No. ADHS16-110815 with Arizona Department of Health Services
	Att1_IGA Contract No. ADHS16-110815
	Att2_CDC
	Att3_Presentation
	Att4_Approved As To Form
	 Item 4.E. - Approval to Purchase Voting Equipment and Obtain Additional Funding for Said Purchase
	Att1_Attachment A - Vote Centers Cost Saving Sheet
	Att2_Attachment B - Price Quotes
	Att3_Attachment C - Additional Funding Requests
	 Item 4.F. - Application and petition to begin the process to abandon a portion of Elaine Way 
	Att1_Petition
	Att2_Plat Map
	Att3_Record of Survey
	 Item 4.G. - Begin the process to abandon a portion of W. Cocopah Lane adjacent to Lot 14 Geronimo Estates Unit One
	Att1_Citizens' Petition Re W. Cocopah Lane
	Att2_Map Showing W. Cocopah Lane
	 Item 4.H. - Contract No. 041515-7 for Legal Services with Steven E. Burk, Attorney
	Att1_Professional Services Contract No. 041515-7-Steven E. Burk
	Att2_Approved As To Form
	GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY

	 Item 4.I. - Agreement No. 103015-1 with Pinal-Gila Council for Senior Citizens
	Att1_Pinal-Gila Council for Senior Citizens Agreement No. 103015-1
	Att2_Pinal-Gila Council for Senior Citizens Request for Funds-2015
	Att3_Approval as to Form
	 Item 4.J. - Resolution No. 15-11-02 for County Supervisors Association Legislative Priorities for 2016
	Att1_Resolution 15-11-02
	Att2_Sample Letter to Legislators
	 Item 5.A. - Application for a Waiver of Fairgrounds Rental Fees and Security Fees for Gila County Gem & Mineral Society
	Att1_GC Gem Show Waiver App
	Att2_FG Use Application
	Att3_GC Gem and Mineral 2014 Application
	Att4_GC Gem and Mineral 501(c) (4) 
	Att5_GC Gem and Mineral Letter
	 Item 5.B. - Application for a Waiver of Fairgrounds' Exhibit Hall Rental Fees and Security Fees for Gila County Cattle Growers Association Dance
	Att1_GCCGA Waiver App
	Att2_GCCGA FG Use App 2015
	Att3_GCCGA 501(c)(5) Documentation
	Att4_GCCGA Liquor License 2015
	Att5_GCCGA Waiver Request Letter
	 Item 5.C. - Pleasant Valley Fire District Board Appointment
	Att1_Oath of Office for Stan Marshall
	Att2_9-16-15 Meeting Minutes
	Att3_9-16-15 Meeting Agenda
	Att4_Tom Sexton's Resignation Letter
	Att5_ARS 48-803
	 Item 5.D. - Amendment No. 2 to an Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No. ADHS14-053062) with Arizona Department of Health Services. 
	Att1_Amendment 2
	Att2_Amendment 1
	Att3_IGA Contract No. ADHS14-053062
	Att4_Approval As To Form
	 Item 5.E. - Amendment No. 4 to Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No. ADHS12-010890) with Arizona Department of Health Services
	Att1_Amendment _4
	Att2_Amendment _3
	Att3_Amendment _2
	Att4_Amendment _1
	Att5_CFSP IGA Contract No. ADHS12-010890
	Att6_Approved As To Form
	 Item 5.F. - Amendment No. 1 to the 2014-2015 Independent Contractor Agreement Contract No. 01142015
	Att1_Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 01142015
	Att2_Contract No. 01142015
	 Item 5.G. - Arizona Department of Housing Owner Occupied Housing Rehabilitation Contract No. 309-13
	Att1_HOME Program Close-Out Report 
	Att2_Amendment 1 to Contract No. 309-13
	Att3_Contract No. 309-13
	 Item 5.H. - Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) between the Arizona Community Action Association and the Gila County Community Services
	Att1_MOA between ACAA and Gila County Community Services
	 Item 5.I. - Amendment No. 6 to Weatherization Low-Income Assistance Agreement No. SW-ESA-2182-02 with Governor's Office of Energy Policy
	Att1_Amendment No. 6 Contract No. SW-ESA-12-2182-02
	Att2_Amendment No. 5 Contract No. SW-ESA-12-2182-02Y4
	Att3_Amendment No. 4 Contract No. SW-ESA-12-2182-02Y4
	Att4_Amendment No. 3 Contract No. SW-ESA-12-2182-02Y3
	Att5_Amendment No. 2 Contract No. SW-ESA-12-2182-02Y3
	Att6_Amendment No. 1 Contract No. SW-ESA-12-2182-02Y2
	Att7_OEP Contract No. SW-ESA-12-2182-02Y2
	Att8_Approved as to Form
	 Item 5.J. - Amendment No. 3 to a Weatherization Low-Income Assistance Agreement Contract No. EW-ESA-14-4181-02
	Att1_Amendment No. 3 Contract No. EW-ESA-14-4181-02
	Att2_Amendment No. 2 Contract No. EW-ESA-14-4181-02
	Att3_Amendment No. 1 Contract No. EW-ESA-14-4181-02Y2
	Att4_Michael Frary E-Mail Contract EW-ESA-4181-02Y3 to 02Y2
	Att5_Contract No. EW-ESA-14-4181-02Y3
	Att6_Approved as to Form
	 Item 5.K. - Amendment No. 5 for  Weatherization Low-Income Assistance Agreement _LW-ESA-12-2182-02Y4 
	Att1_Amendment No. 5 to LW-ESA-12-2182-02Y4
	Att2_Amendment No. 4 to LW-ESA-12-2182-02Y4
	Att3_Amendment No. 3 to LW-ESA-12-2182-02Y3
	Att4_Amendment No. 2 to LW-ESA-12-2182-02Y3
	Att5_Amendment No. 1 to LW-ESA-12-2182-02Y2 OEP
	Att6_Contract LW-ESA-12-2182-OEP
	Att7_Approval as to Form
	 Item 5.L. - Rental Housing Bridge Subsidy Program Agreement  - Close-Out Version with Health Choice Integrated Care, LLC
	Att1_Rental Housing Bridge Subsidy Program Agreement - Close-Out Version
	 Item 5.M. - Gila County Board of Health Appointments
	Att1_Gila County Board of Health-Proposed Membership
	 Item 5.N. - Globe Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for September 2015
	Att1_September 2015 
	 Item 5.O. - September 2015
	Att1_Payson Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for September 2015
	 Item 5.P. - September 2015
	Att1_September 2015 Monthly Report
	SKMBT_C45215100516100.pdf
	jp 0404 sept 20155

	 Item 5.Q. - September 2015
	Att1_Clerk's Report for September 2015
	 Item 5.R. - August 2015
	Att1_Monthly Report August 2015 
	 Item 5.S. - September 2015
	Att1_Recorder's Office September 2015 Monthly Report
	 Item 5.T. - October 20, 2015 and October 27, 2015
	Att1_10-27-15 BOS Meeting Minutes
	Att2_10-20-15 BOS Meeting Minutes
	 Item 5.U. - 10_06_15, 10_13_15, 10_20_15, and 10_27_15
	Att1_HR Summary Report
	Att2_10_06_15 Human Resources Report
	Att3_10_13_15 Human Resources Report
	Att4_10_20_15 Human Resources Report
	Att5_10_27_15 Human Resources Report
	 Item 5.V. - October 16, 2015_ October 23, 2015_ and October 30, 2015
	Att1_Report for County Manager Approved Contracts Under 50,000 for Weeks Ending 10-16-15, 10-23-15, and 10-30-15
	Att2_Service Agreement No. 101215-Mountain Retreat Builders
	Att3_Contract Agreement Form-SD Crane Builders
	Att4_Service Agreement No. 082115-Anderson Collision Center
	Att5ization to utilize State contract with Blackstone Security
	Att6_Service Agreement No. 092215-A-O Painting, Inc.
	Att7_Service Agreement No. 081415-American Fence
	Att8_Amendment No. 1-Ponderosa Medical Waste
	Att9_Amendment No. 2-Messinger Mortuary
	Att10_Service Agreement No. 100915-1-Empire Southwest
	Att11_Service Agreement No. 080615-2-South West Mobile Storage, Inc.
	Att12_Amendment No. 1-KWIK KOOL Refrigeration
	Att13_Smith's Detection Service Agreement
	Att14_Cable One-Addendum for month to month term
	Att15_Amendment No. 1-Rodriguez Constructions, Inc.
	Att16_OverDrive, Inc.-Digital Library Reserve Access Agreement
	 Item 8.A. - SATR HOLDING, LLC VS. GILA COUNTY  TX 2013-000185

